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Company Profile
ATIEN

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”, “we"” or “us”) are a leading spicy snack food

enterprise integrating R&D, production and sales in China.

Based on traditional formulas, the Group started the Chinese seasoned
flour products (also commonly known as Latiao (3R{4)) industry, created
our first Latiao (3R1&) snack in 2001, leading the standards construction of
Latiao industry. With our outstanding product development capabilities,
the Group has successfully diversified into vegetable products, bean-based
products and others, including Konjac Shuang (EE%£3%), Fengchi Kelp (&
7 /8%, 78° Braised Egg (78°8 %) and others. The Group has further
launched new products like spicy Latiao (%R1§) “BADAO PANDA (3@
i), konjac vegetarian tripe “XIAO MO NV (/]\EE%Z)" and spicy crisp
Latiao “CUI HUO HUO (is/A k)" in the Current Year, which are quite
popular among consumers.

Adhering to our product development philosophy of “maximizing the
intrinsic value of nature with an industrialized approach”, the Group
continuously upgrades existing products and launches new products,
focuses on quality through establishing an industry-leading production
system and strict quality assurance system.

We are a popular snack food brand among young consumers in China.
The Group focuses and understands the needs of young consumer
groups, constantly enhances brand value through novel and interesting
interactions with consumers, and keeps up with current hot topic
trends to give the brand new vitality. In 2023, we have won more than
30 awards, including the “2023 Vibrant Brands Favored by College
Students” by the 30th China International Advertising Festival and the
“TopBrand2023 Top 500 Chinese Brands” by the Chinese Brand Festival.

The Group has an omni-channel sales and distribution network that
effectively reaches young consumers, we have quickly adapted to
the evolving purchasing behavior of consumers and expanded to
supermarkets, chained convenience stores, traditional e-commerce
channels and emerging snacks specialty retailers, content e-commerce
channels and social e-commerce channels which have wide exposure to
young consumers.

We adhere to the mission “to let the world fall in love with Chinese
flavors” and are continuously committed to the good vision of “making
authentic Chinese gourmet more entertaining, casual, convenient and
affordable, and embrace digital-intelligentization and ultimately build a
great business that brings joy and happiness to people for 123 years”.
We adhere to the core value of “customers first, employee oriented,
operating business with integrity and creating changes”, continuously
offer consumers better products and a cheerful consumption experience.

The Group was listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9985.HK) on December 15, 2022. On February 29,
2024, the Group has been included in the China Index of the MSCI Global
Small Cap Indexes and the MSCI China All Shares Small Cap Index.
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Definitions

"AGM"
[FERRERAE ]

"Articles of Association” or “Articles”

[ARER I EE

“Audit Committee”
[BEZZEE

“Board” or “Board of Directors”
3=

“Cayman Companies Act” or
“Companies Act”

[R2EE(REE)ERFNE)]

“China” or “PRC" or “Mainland China”

[FPEE ekl AR E A

"Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ =R AR R

"Corporate Governance Code”
KpEER<TAD]

"COVID-19”
(RIS

“Current Year” or “Year"” or “2023"

[ RFE ]
“Date of Adoption”
[ERA B EA )

“Director(s)”

=

"ERP system”

[ERPE %]

"ESG"
[ESG]

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, June 6, 2024
RRAKF20245F6 A6 H (R BN BRMFEERRARE

the articles of association of the Company, as amended, which was effective on the
Listing Date
ARER LT BEERRARER (BT

the audit committee of the Company

ARBEZEREE

the board of Directors of the Company

ARREES

the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
MEREEEE2B(RAREI 1961 FE3FEN - K& HRIERT) GETEERT - #
FESIAE A TT HAE2K)

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this annual report, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan

FEARAMNE @ AAFEREM S - TEEDE  RFIREE

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules, and unless the context
otherwise requires, refers to Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping, HH Global Capital,
Amused Town Limited, Decision Stone Limited, Adroit Fairy Limited, Beacon Flash
Limited, HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group

MXESERMEN  BIETEE  FEFHRE - MAMEIRER - Amused Town
Limited * Decision Stone Limited * Adroit Fairy Limited * Beacon Flash Limited  F1%
FERLRAMERELFT AR ETRADME T RE

Corporate Governance Code in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

CEMARBDMIERCI<REERFRID

the contagious respiratory illness caused by a newly identified coronavirus

i — T IR AT A 5 5 E ) B R M B R S

the year ended December 31, 2023
BE2023F12A31HIELFE

January 1, 2021, the date on which the Company approved and adopted the RSU
Scheme
202151 BB - BIZRR AL I ER AN R HIAR 19 B AL 5T 814 B 5B

director(s) of the Company

RRRIES

enterprise resource planning systems, which is a business process management
system consisting of integrated software applications that help manage a business
and automate many back office functions related to technology, service and human
resources

EERRE RS —BEs —BEERTEREFNERREERER - AIRE
BEBIWHZIERMN - IRERADERIBENEZ ARSI

environmental, social and governance
BB HekEn

ERERSRIERERAT
2023 F#f



Definitions &3

"FSSC 22000

[FSSC 22000]

“Group” or “our Group” or
e or “us”

[ RS E sk 4P
"HACCP”

[HACCP]

"HH Global Capital”
[ A2 IRE A ]

“HH Green Philosophy”
[FFAR I

“HH Innovation Group”
[ FnF0&E B 8l

“Hong Kong” or “HK"

[&#]

“Hong Kong Listing Rules” or
“Listing Rules”

[KF&EEEmRAD IS EMmARRID

"Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or
“Stock Exchange”

[ & BB 2 Pl Sk B 2 P |

"IFRS(s)"”
BB E 2R ]

“Initial Public Offering” or “IPO"
[BRAFREE]

"ISO”

[sol

“Latest Practicable Date”
[ &% AT H &
“Latiao”

[ #R1E ]

“Listing”
=i

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Food Safety System Certification, a food safety management certification scheme
that consists of three components: ISO 22000, sector specific Pre-Requisite Programs
and additional requirements. Besides these three components there is a FSSC
22000-Quiality option based on the additional requirements of ISO 9001
EmEZEREARE  —HE AKX INRMELE2EEREE - ANISO
22000 ~ FETTHEMRIR T R MERK - Bz E = HER LI - SHEERISO
9001 KT I ZSKAIFSSC 22000 — & 2315

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of its
subsidiaries, as the context may require)
ARRNEMBAR(RMNENE  ARRREEA-KHZHKHERR)

a quality management system which identifies and evaluates points during production
in order to set up measures and control hazards to ensure product safety
—EEEERER  BBHR RO EERET RS - fIEZEEETIEGE
= RMERERLTE

HH Global Capital Ltd
MMEIREARER DA

HH Green Philosophy Ltd
MR EERBRAR

HH Innovation Group Ltd
FMEFRFER DA

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R EERRITHER

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EEMERXIMABRARRES ETRA - EARHERT » FRs AR M SR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMERHMAR AR

International Financial Reporting Standards
CEURR B s 52 A1)

the Hong Kong public offering and the international offering
EEAREEREREE

an International Organization for Standardization, a non-governmental organization
based in Geneva, Switzerland, for assessing the quality system of business
organizations

BI R LM - —(EAMRNIH L B AR IFEBTELR - Bat R At AR

BEER

April 18, 2024, being the latest practicable date for the purpose of ascertaining
certain information contained in this annual report prior to its publication

202441818 » BIAF | ENFISLAEE N FRMATHE T ERNRERAITTHH

a type of seasoned flour product, which is a popular spicy snack food in China made
from wheat flour and chili

—RERRES S - /N R P BIRTTRR AR R &

listing of the shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
PRANTA B BB P AR BT



Definitions &

“Listing Date”
[ EHEE]

“Luohe Pingping Plant”
2R T

“Luohe Weidao Plant”
2 &S TR

"Luohe Weilai Plant”

[ 8A 7 2 T |

“Luohe Xinglin Plant”
RA AT

“Model Code”
[<iEZE=FAID]

“Nomination Committee”
[REZEE

“OEM”
[OEM ]

“Ping Ping Foods”
[FFRE

“Previous Year” or “2022"

[ EFE ]

"“Prospectus”

1B |
“province”
(4]

“R&D"
[

“Remuneration Committee”

[(FMZE&)]

"Reporting Period”
[$REH

“RMB" or “Renminbi”
[AR®

“RSU Scheme”

[ MR B

"SFO"
[ 77 B FBI]

Thursday, December 15, 2022, the date on which our shares are listed and from
which dealings therein are permitted to take place on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
AR E BB EH REERREERNB R - /20224124158 (E28H)

one of our production plants located in Luohe, Henan Province

B —FRKALRO B &R T H) A EE TR

one of our production plants located in Luohe, Henan Province
A —RELHA Eg & R T H A 2E TR

one of our production plants located in Luohe, Henan Province

HAI— AL B &R T H) A EE TR

one of our production plants located in Luohe, Henan Province
AP —RELHA EG & R T H A 2 TR

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers under
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
CETARBDMECK M EITAEFETES XSRS

the nomination committee of the Company
AARREERER

original equipment manufacturer

REREIER

Luohe Ping Ping Foods Co., Ltd.
BT FRMEREEAR

the year ended December 31, 2022
BZE2022F 12318 EFE

the prospectus of the Company dated December 5, 2022
HER20226 12 ASHM AR A HBREGH S

a province or, where the context requires, a provincial level autonomous region or
municipality, under the direct supervision of the central government of the PRC

A WINXEME  ERBRRETETRBFEXREENEED

research and development
DIy

the remuneration committee of the Company
RAFFWNEES

the period from January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023
202341 1HZ2023F12 A31 A ER

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

RENEEEBARE

the restricted share unit scheme which was approved and adopted by the Company
on January 1, 2021 to motivate and reward the Directors, senior management
members and other employees who contributed to the development of the Group
20211 A1 B AR AIHLE R LR HIAR (5 B Azt & - B R BB R E
EERELHERNES  SREREREMESR

The Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(EHEHERGIN(EBEIFES71E)

ERERSRIERERAT
2023 F#f



Definitions &3

“subsidiary(ies)”
[FHE AR ]

"Weilong Biotechnology”
[ DR

“Weilong Commerce”
[DREE]

"WL Delicious” or “the Company”
or "our Company”

[PREWK IR ARF

“Zhumadian Weilai Plant”

[ 555 15 &5k T |

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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has the meaning ascribed to it in Schedule 1 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
HBEBBENIE622BC ARG R IFTERE

Luohe Weilong Biotechnology Co., Ltd.
BT DI AT AR A A

Luohe Weilong Commerce Co., Ltd.

BRI E AR AR

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd (I Jr Jbk 4 BKiZAE AR A F)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on July 6, 2018
DRERBHIZERBRAA - —FKN20185F7 Ho B EREHSHMK LM ERR

27

our production plant located in Luohe, Henan Province

HAILFOA R A B T A A TR



Corporate Information
nEER

SHARE LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(Stock Code: 9985)

LISTING DATE
December 15, 2022

REGISTERED OFFICE
PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN PRC

Southwest Corner

Intersection of Dongfanghong Road and Zhongshan Road
Shaoling District

Luohe, Henan

PRC

TB-East Building, MIXC Park
No. 6, Lane 206, Haojing Road
Minhang District

Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 701, 7/F

Tower 2, Silvercord

No. 30 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.weilongshipin.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Weiping (Chairman)

Mr. LIU Fuping (Vice Chairman)

Mr. SUN Yinong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. PENG Hongzhi

Mr. LIU Zhongsi

Mr. CHEN Lin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. XU Lili

Mr. ZHANG Bihong

Ms. XING Dongmei

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Ms. SHEN Xiaochun
Mr. LI Kin Wai

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. ZHANG Bihong (Chairman)
Ms. XU Lili

Ms. XING Dongmei

Bz L
ERBERFER AT
(F&A 5% + 9985)

LH B
20224128158

AMRERE
PO Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

BERPEETEERBE

=

AR T

=l
RITAIBESILERIXO
iz

e

g

BI1TI®

R S 820675655
BROERLTB—HIR

ERTEEEME
aB

JLBE
RPIEERE30%
L2

7701E

NGIEEN

www.weilongshipin.com

EE8

HITES

BT (EER)
BET e (BEEFR)
BN SEE(BEHITE)
LRESE

2B Bt

RS 4

B EPTES
“®RRLT
SR A S
MRt

BEQRWE
EBELL
TR S

BEREEY
RIS (E/F)
i & T

RS e

DR ERSRIZERERD A
2023 F#f
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. LIU Weiping (Chairman)

Ms. XU Lili

Mr. ZHANG Bihong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Ms. XING Dongmei (Chairladly)

Ms. XU Lili

Mr. CHEN Lin

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Luohe Wuyi Road Branch
China CITIC Bank Zhengzhou Beilong Lake Branch
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.
Zhengzhou Zhenggang Six Road Branch

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISOR
Clifford Chance

27/F, Jardine House

One Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

PRC LEGAL ADVISOR
Commerce & Finance Law Offices
12-14th Floor, China World Office 2
No. 1 Jianguomenwai Avenue
Beijing

PRC

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Mont Avenir Capital Limited
Unit A, 23/F, Central 88

88-98 Des Voeux Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER AGENT

Maples Fund Services Limited

P.O. Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong
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Financial Overview

IIEHE

For the year ended December 31,

HE12A31BLEE
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20195 2020F 20215 20225 2023F
(RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) (RMB in million)
(AREBERL) (AREBERT) (AR%EER) (ARBEET) (AR%AER)
Revenue WA 3,384.8 4,120.4 4,800.2 4,632.2 4,871.7
Gross profit E 1,254.3 1,565.7 1,793.0 1,959.6 2,322.7
Profit for the year FRFE 658.1 818.8 826.7 151.3 880.4
Adjusted net profit for the year' 4 PR FTEH A B! 659.0 8212 907.8 913.1 970.3
Adjusted basic earnings per share GRS HBEAEF
(RMB) (AR¥T) 033 0.41 045 042 0.42
Note: MEE -
1. Equals profit for the year plus share-based payment expenses and Listing 1.  ERFRFEMNEAKG AEROMNRASL L ETH
expenses. X o

As at December 31,
128318
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194 2020 20214 20226 20234
(RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) ~ (RMB in million) (RMB in million)
(AREBET) (AREEBEER) (AREEER) (AR%®EER) (AR¥EER)
Current assets TEEE 1,085.9 1,860.1 2,986.3 3,557.2 2,874.7
Non-current assets EREEE 558.0 1,080.4 2,2043 3,373.1 4,178.9
Total assets BEQE 1,643.9 2,940.5 5,190.6 6,930.3 7,053.6
Current liabilities MEBE 786.8 1,168.0 1,255.5 1,000.2 908.0
Non-current liabilities FnBEE 429 140.2 2652 405.7 439.7
Total liabilities BERT 829.7 1,308.2 1,520.7 1,405.9 1,347.7
Net assets FEE 814.2 1,632.3 3,669.9 5,524.4 5,705.9
Working capital BIEER 299.1 692.1 1,730.8 2,557.0 1,966.7
IRERSRERERAA

2023 F#f



Financial Overview Ef 7%t &

SUMMARY OF KEY FINANCIAL METRICS

AR B ERRAS

2023 2022 Change
2023F 20224 23
Gross margin EF= 47.7% 42.3% 5.4 pp
Adjusted EBITDA margin' AR BRI ITE R Y AR R 31.2% 28.6% 2.6 pp
Adjusted net profit margin? L EFE R &2 19.9% 19.7% 0.2 pp
Adjusted return on assets? (KA FE B TR R 3 13.9% 15.1% -1.2 pp
Adjusted return on equity® AR e [ g R4 17.3% 19.9% -2.6 pp
Inventory turnover days FEREERE 73 days X 82 days & -9.0 days X
Trade receivables turnover days E SRR A E R E 4.4 days X 4.9 days X -0.5 day &
Trade payables turnover days B SRR AERE 25 days X 26 days & -1.0 day X
Gearing ratio® BRBELES 3.2% 2.9% 0.3pp
The liability-to-asset ratio® BEABL RS 19.1% 20.3% -1.2 pp
Adjusted cash flow ratio of KRBLLFDHES
operating activities’ mE &7 1.2 1.3 -0.1
Notes: B s
1. Equals adjusted net profit for the year plus depreciation and amortization 1. SRERABEEFFEM LITEHBER F 88

expenses, interest expenses and income tax expense, divided by revenue and A - SR E AR LA - BFELA100%

multiplied by 100%

I
Ha|

2. Equals adjusted net profit for the year divided by revenue and multiplied by 2.  FREHEERZZFFERIAUA - BFEA100%

100%

ENEFABREEFFERIAZ PR R AR EELR
B TFHER - B LA100%

3. Equals adjusted net profit for the year divided by the average of the beginning 3.
and ending balance of total assets for that period and multiplied by 100%

N R EEE FFERR A AR R R AR 42
FER) T4 - BRA100%

4. Equals adjusted net profit for the year divided by the average of the beginning 4.
and ending balance of total equity for that period and multiplied by 100%

5. Equals total interest-bearing borrowings divided by total equity and multiplied 5.  HREt BIEEEEEM AR5 - BRLA100%

by 100%
6.  Equals total liabilities divided by total assets and multiplied by 100% 6. SRABREGERAEERRE  BFEA100%
7. Equals cash amount from operating activities divided by adjusted net profit 7. P ERB TSI © SRR AR FEFFHE

for the year

1 0 WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2023
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHE

“We specialize in turning authentic Chinese gourmet into casual snack food that consumers can enjoy anywhere and
anytime. We are committed to adhering to the core value of “Customer first, employee oriented, operating business with
integrity and creating changes” and the vision of “Making authentic Chinese gourmet more entertaining, casual, convenient
and affordable” that continuously provides better products and pleasant consumption experience for consumers.”

[BABIREHEERERITEREEEAIERELZFRNARERR - RIFAEPE— BITAX  #EREE - 8l&
1 RO EEBMN hEERXRREY - KEL - B RRICIDEFES  SETEOAEEERRETNER
MR E R R - |

PREHRESRERERA A 11
2023 Fifk
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Chairman'’s Statement /&R

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of WL Delicious, | hereby submit to all shareholders the annual
results of the Group for the Current Year.

The year of 2023, for WL Delicious, was a year to take the initiative to
innovate and accelerate the omni-channel construction. The domestic
economy has gradually recovered after the impact of the COVID-19,
and consumers’ lifestyle and consumption concepts were undergoing
many changes, which also brought diversified changes in the snack food
industry channels and diversified needs of consumers, bringing new
opportunities and challenges to our development.

Under such a background, the Group remained confident and actively
embraced changes and trends, and the overall business operations
and financial performance remained stable. The overall revenue of the
Group for the year was RMB4,871.7 million, representing an increase
of 5.2% as compared with the Previous Year; gross profit margin was
47.7%, representing an increase of 5.4 percentage points as compared
with 42.3% in the Previous Year; net profit was RMB880.4 million,
representing an increase of 481.9% as compared with the Previous
Year and the adjusted net profit was RMB970.3 million, representing an
increase of 6.3% as compared with the Previous Year.

BHMHSAER

AAERRIEERABRREZEANFEAEEZFE
ES

2023F R P HEREH AN MINIREE 2 REEZR
H—F  BAKBENTRIEEERESER BB
ENEFEHAANAHES AT ERERS (L B8
bR TARBRMITERENZ TLEBUREE
HFHREEACER - BRMNBFESR T Ha#a Ak
B o

EEBENBET  AEBRRTEL - BEERE(CN
B BREBELSRVBEARBETE  294%
BB AFEARKAS7TITEEL BEFE LA
5.2% ; $R8EFRBAT 7% 8 FENL2 3%RF

T5AEBEDE - FHAEREEARKES04EETT - &
FFE EF481.9% o EHABFFHESARE70.3
BHEL B8LEFELEFH63% -

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2023



Chairman’s Statement E[E3R&E

During the Current Year, the Group actively explored the consumer
needs through market research, expanded its product lines to conform
to consumer preferences, and constantly innovated and launched new
products. Following the launch of the new spicy Latiao “BADAO PANDA
(FBIBAEH)” in September during the Current Year, the Group also
launched the new konjac vegetarian tripe “XIAO MO NV (/NEZZ)" in
October and the new spicy crisp Latiao “CUI HUO HUO (ffg/A k)" in
December during the Current Year, further enriching the Group's product
matrix.

During the Current Year, the Group continued to strengthen the building
of online and offline omni-channels, comprehensively developed and
served all channels, and actively embraced new opportunities brought
by emerging offline snack specialty retailer channels and online content
e-commerce channels. At the same time, the Company was also actively
expanding overseas markets.

During the Current Year, the Group actively strengthened its brand
building and engaged with young consumers through novel, interesting
and topical activities, thereby capturing consumers’ interest points and
creating topics with public communication power, thereby enhancing
the brand exposure and visibility of the Group. At the same time, the
Group also paid attention to the “humanistic core” of the brand, actively
participated in brand public welfare and fulfilled social responsibilities to
improve the Group'’s brand image.

During the Current Year, the Group also actively introduced and cultivated
talents to continuously strengthen its core management strength. At
the same time, the Group also continued to promote the supply chain
upgrading, digital upgrading, to comprehensively enhance the operating
and management efficiency of the Group.

Looking forward to the new year, the Group will continue to strengthen
product innovation and enhance the core competitiveness of products;
strengthen brand building, and continue to create a popular brand
image among young consumers. At the same time, the changing
consumer demand is reshaping the channel landscape, and the Group will
continue to strengthen the omni-channel building, actively embrace the
development advantages brought by emerging channels with consumer
flows, and strengthen the supply chain, digital capabilities and enhance
organizational team building, and constantly improve the Company’s
operating efficiency, so as to strive to create values for the shareholders
and customers.

LIU Weiping
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, China
March 21, 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED AT

MACRO AND INDUSTRY ENVIRONMENT

Looking back at 2023, China’s GDP grew by 5.2% year-on-year. Under
the impact of external pressures and internal challenges, China saw a
continuous and stable recovery in its economy. China’s consumer market
also showed a trend of rebound, with the total retail sales of consumer
goods for the Current Year increasing by 7.2% as compared with the
Previous Year. The macro-economy continued to recover, and the internal
driving force of the economy was gradually strengthened.

According to the “2023 China Consumer Brand Growth White Paper”
issued by CBNDATA, 2023 is the year of consumption boost in China.
Chinese consumer brands are proactively “responding” to the intensifying
competition by increasing their investment in product research and
development, supply chain and channel construction, as well as focusing
on refining channel operation and creating more value enhancement for
consumers. Although the growth of total consumption is slowing down
and consuming behavior is increasingly diversified, companies that actively
adapt to changes are expected to seize new opportunities and develop in
fierce competition with the reconstruction of consumption logic.

In the consumer market, the food industry, as a basic necessity of
life, occupies an important position in consumer spending. The snack
food industry also plays an important supporting role in the process of
consumption recovery, with significant resilience in various categories of
consumer goods. As competition in the industry becomes more intense,
price-performance consumption and rational consumption tend to be
prominent. Meanwhile, sales channels also show a trend of diversified
development. The retail industry is evolving towards miniaturization,
communities and households, and the snack specialty retailers are
developing rapidly in particular. All of these factors accelerate the change
of the snack food industry ecology and bring new opportunities and
challenges for the industry in terms of product pricing, store channel
management, supply chain efficiency and others. Competition in online
channels is also tough. The rapid development of content e-commerce
platforms represented by Douyin has enriched consuming and purchasing
scenarios, thus bringing more growth space and vitality for online
channels.

Diversified sales channels require consumer goods enterprises to refine
their operations and adapt to the new situation. To achieve long-term
sustainable development, snack food enterprises have to flexibly utilize
omni-channel strategies to reach different consumer bases to the utmost
extent, therefore satisfying the ever-changing needs of consumers, and
developing steadily to seize the opportunities in the market.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2023
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, the Group continued to specialize in turning authentic Chinese
gourmet into casual snack food that consumers can enjoy anywhere and
anytime. We have improved the Group’s corporate culture by upgrading
our core values to “Customer First, Employee Oriented, Operating
Business with Integrity and Creating Changes” while maintaining our
original mission of “To let the world fall in love with Chinese flavors”
and the vision to “make authentic Chinese gourmet more entertaining,
casual, convenient and affordable, embrace digital-intelligentization and
ultimately build a great business that brings joy and happiness to people
for 123 years”, which aims to serve our customers better and achieve
employees’ values, so as to promote the sustainable development and
growth of the Group continuously, thereby offering consumers better
service and experience.

During the Year, we focused on continuous innovation and exploring
a multi-category strategy to meet diversified consumer needs through
consumer insights. Meanwhile, we strengthened our research and
development capabilities and introduced several types of innovative
spicy snack foods to expand our product portfolio. Furthermore, we will
continue to enhance our brand building and brand influence.

During the Year, new retail channels such as 020, snack specialty retailers
and content e-commerce platforms saw rapid development. Diversified
channels have driven accelerated changes in the snack foods industry.
In the face of this development trend, we have kept pace with the times
by actively embracing the development opportunities brought by new
channels and continuously strengthening our omni-channel operation
and expansion strategies, thereby establishing closer connections with
consumers and making it more convenient for them to buy our products.

During the Current Year, the Group recorded a total revenue of
RMB4,871.7 million, representing an increase of 5.2% as compared with
RMB4,632.2 million in the Previous Year, primarily due to an increase
in the sales from the emerging channels such as 020, snack specialty
retailers and content e-commerce platforms, partially offset by a decrease
in the sales from offline traditional channels, which was caused by a drop
in the consumer flow. The Group’s gross profit increased by 18.5% from
RMB1,959.6 million in the Previous Year to RMB2,322.7 million in the
Current Year, and the Group's gross profit margin increased from 42.3%
in the Previous Year to 47.7% in the Current Year, mainly due to (i) an
increase in the average selling price resulted from the Group’s structural
adjustment of main products in the Previous Year; (ii) a decrease in the
price of raw materials in the Current Year; and (iii) the optimization
of the Group’s cost management by streamlining production process
flow continuously. The Group’s net profit increased by 481.9% from
RMB151.3 million in the Previous Year to RMB880.4 million in the Current
Year, primarily due to (i) the increase in gross profit; and (ii) the share-
based payments related to Pre-IPO Investments of RMB628.8 million in
the Previous Year. The Group's adjusted net profit increased by 6.3%
from RMB913.1 million in the Previous Year to RMB970.3 million in the
Current Year, and adjusted net profit margin increased from 19.7% in the
Previous Year to 19.9% in the Current Year, primarily due to the increase
of gross profit.
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OUR PRODUCTS

Our products have accompanied the growth of young generations
in China. Dedicated to using household food materials as our main
ingredients, the Group adheres to the product development philosophy of
“maximizing the intrinsic value of nature with an industrialized approach”.
Leveraging rigorous and profound fundamental research and advanced
production techniques, the Group actively launched new products to
respond to changing market conditions and satisfy consumers’ changing
needs.

During the Current Year, the Group continued to adhere to the strategy
of “multiple categories and large single product”. Currently, the Group's
products cover seasoned flour products, vegetable products, and bean-
based and other product categories. Seasoned flour products, also
commonly known as Latiao (Bf1%), primarily comprise Big Latiao (RZEA),
Mini Latiao (/NEAR), Spicy Hot Stick (fi¥k#E), Mini Hot Stick (/NEREE),
Kiss Burn (32%%), Mala Mala (i #RIIER), BADAO PANDA (538 RR3H) and
CUI HUO HUO (fig A 2k). Vegetable products primarily comprise Konjac
Shuang (FE¥3%), Fengchi Kelp (RMZ/E%5) and XIAO MO NV (/NEZ).
Bean-based and other products primarily comprise Soft Tofu Skin (XS %),
78° Braised Egg (78°8%) and others.

During the Current Year, the Group launched new products such as spicy
Latiao “BADAO PANDA", konjac vegetarian tripe “XIAO MO NV” and
spicy crisp latiao “CUI HUO HUO". The new products not only represent
our innovation in authentic gourmet, but also reflect our insights into
the changes in the consumer market. The new products will satisfy
consumers with more diversified taste experiences. Meanwhile, they will
further enrich the Group’s product portfolio and enhance its category
competitiveness.

Spicy Latiao “BADAO PANDA" is derived from authentic Sichuan cuisine.
Based on profound insights into the market demand, the Group has
extensively researched and validated the essence of classic Sichuan flavors.
Simultaneously, the Group is committed to inheriting and promoting
non-heritage cooking techniques of Sichuan cuisine, continuously
enhancing and upgrading authentic spicy flavors through improving flavor
experiments. Furthermore, in the design and names of new products,
"BADAO PANDA" embodies WL Delicious’s youthful brand ethos and
aspiration to preserve traditional culture.
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Konjac vegetarian tripe “XIAO MO NV"” offers big and crisp slices with
less burdensome. It is an innovation in the konjac category following WL
Delicious’s introduction of Konjac Shuang. “XIAO MO NV” maximizes
the crispness and shape of hot-pot tripe, meanwhile, with each slice
of “35x35mm"” vegetarian tripe benefiting from the Group’s product
cutting upgrade, so as to provide consumers with a more gratifying taste
experience. At the same time, “XIAO MO NV” features a thoughtfully
crafted two-dimensional brand image with a smart elf on the packaging
IP. This cute and funny imagery fully satisfies the emotional and aesthetic
preferences of young consumers.
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Spicy crisp latiao “CUI HUO HUO" are made from premium wheat,
carefully selected high-quality chili peppers and peppercorns. With non-
fried extrusion cooking technology, these chips are crispy yet not crumbly,
with a tasty and delightful flavor. They address a common challenge in
the market that Latiao products lack sufficient crispiness and extrusion
food lacks sufficient spiciness. Focusing on crispness and spiciness,
“CUlI HUO HUO" further attracts youthful consumers through a lively,
quirky, and funny brand image, continuing to build up a brand image that
understands young consumers.
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During the Current Year, our revenue was primarily derived from the sales
of seasoned flour products and vegetable products. The following table
sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by product categories for the years
indicated:

REER - RPN E AR 8RR o N B
HmMEER - TREIINAIRFERMRERER
20 H YA BRAR -

Year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLEE
Product category EmER| 2023 2022
2023%F 20224

% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARBTRT HHEKRA% ARBTIT (HEKA%
Seasoned flour products KRS 2,549,244 52.3 2,718,613 58.7
Vegetable products AR 2,118,519 43.5 1,693,339 36.6
Bean-based and other products SRIGREMER 203,903 4.2 220,269 4.7
Total &5t 4,871,666 100.0 4,632,221 100.0

Revenue generated from our seasoned flour products decreased by
6.2% from RMB2,718.6 million in 2022 to RMB2,549.2 million in 2023,
primarily due to the impact on a drop in the consumer flow of offline
traditional channels. Our revenue from our seasoned flour products as a
percentage of total revenue decreased from 58.7% in 2022 to 52.3%
in 2023, reflecting our more diversified product mix following the sales
growth of our vegetable products.

Our revenue from our vegetable products increased by 25.1% from
RMB1,693.3 million in 2022 to RMB2,118.5 million in 2023 and its
percentage to our total revenue increased from 36.6% in 2022 to 43.5%
in 2023, primarily due to (i) the Group actively tapped into consumers’
demand for such products and continuously upgraded such products; and
(i) we also continued to expand our production capacity for such products
in 2023.

Revenue from our bean-based and other products decreased by 7.4%
from RMB220.3 million in 2022 to RMB203.9 million in 2023 and its
percentage to our total revenue slightly decreased by 0.5 percentage
points in 2023 as compared with 2022, primarily due to the decrease in
the sales of the Group’s bean-based products.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by product
categories for the years indicated:

TREIRARFERPIRERERE D
il

SR ONE

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLFE
2023 2022
2023F 20224
Seasoned flour products ton 124,427.2 150,557.5
RMB/kg 20.5 18.1
Bl RS A
AR¥ET/ T3
Vegetable products ton 71,454.7 54,523.5
RMB/kg 29.6 31.1
B m A
AR,/ T3
Bean-based and other products ton 5,315.4 6,087.4
RMB/kg 38.4 36.2
SR mREMER A
AR/ T3

During the Current Year, our sales volume of seasoned flour products
decreased by 17.4% as compared with the Previous Year, mainly due to
the impact on a drop in the consumer flow of offline traditional channels.
Our sales volume of vegetable products increased by 31.1% as compared
with the Previous Year, mainly because the Group actively tapped into
consumers’ demand for such products and continuously upgraded such
products. Besides, our sales volume of bean-based and other products
decreased by 12.7% as compared with the Previous Year, primarily due to
the decrease in the sales of the Group’s bean-based products.

OUR CUSTOMERS AND SALES CHANNELS

Customers of the Group are primarily offline and online distributors, and
to a much lesser extent, individual consumers who purchase from our
self-operated online stores and certain snack specialty retailer system
customers. Through in-depth channel building over years, we have a
nationwide distribution network that deeply penetrates the Chinese
market. As of December 31, 2023, we cooperated with 1,708 offline
distributors. In addition, as of December 31, 2023, our products were
sold through distributors to 147 national or regional operators for
hypermarkets, supermarkets and chained convenience stores.
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We have a professional sales team that aids our distributors in expanding
the coverage of retail points of sale and enhancing the execution and
service ability of our stores, so as to improve the sales performance of
POS. During the Current Year, emerging channels such as 020 and snack
specialty retailers saw rapid development, and became new channels in
the snack food industry that can not be ignored. In the second half of
2023, the Group expedited the process of embracing these emerging
channels and established close cooperation with major systems of snack
specialty retailers.

Additionally, we have established our presence in major e-commerce
platforms, including both traditional e-commerce platforms and emerging
content e-commerce platforms, so as to cover all channels of e-commerce
platforms. By analyzing online users and sales data, we are able to create
a product mix that better suits consumers’ consumption habits, thereby
effectively reaching consumers. Our online models include online direct
sales and online distribution, complementing our offline channels. We
create topics and increase our interaction with consumers through short
videos, internal live streaming and influencer live streaming to enhance
traffic conversion and repurchase of content e-commerce platforms.

The table below sets out our revenue by sales channels for the years
indicated:

BPEEEENHEEN WK ERRATER R
BE  RIPIENRITHIRB LD - EMBEFAR T
HPIERHERSE - AFER - 020 - TREREF
FERERRRE - RAKEIRBERE TR 2EH
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Year ended December 31,

BZE12A318LFE
2023 2022
2023 20224
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARBTT MEBEBA% ARBTT (HEKA%
Offline channels” ETEE 4,361,222 89.5 4,145,924 89.5
Online channels R ERE 510,444 10.5 486,297 10.5
— Online distribution® — R e 195,932 4.0 236,727 5.1
— Online direct sales® — R EHHO 314,512 6.5 249,570 5.4
Total a5 4,871,666 100.0 4,632,221 100.0

m Offline channels mainly include distribution through our offline distributors.
Our revenue generated from offline channels other than offline distributors
and snack specialty retailers was immaterial.

@ Online distribution refers to the sales model under which we distribute goods
to online retailers such as Tmall Supermarket and JD Supermarket, or other
online distributors, who then sell our products to consumers.

e Online direct sales refer to the sales model under which we sell products
directly to consumers through our self-operated online stores on multiple
third-party online platforms, such as Tmall, JD.com, Pinduoduo, Douyin and
Kuaishou.
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Our revenue from offline channels increased by 5.2% from RMB4,145.9
million in the Previous Year to RMB4,361.2 million in the Current Year,
primarily due to an increase in the sales from the emerging channels such
as 020, snack specialty retailers and others partially offset by a decrease
in the sales from traditional offline channels, which was caused by a drop
in the consumer flow.

Revenue from online channels increased by 5.0% from RMB486.3 million
in the Previous Year to RMB510.4 million in the Current Year, of which
our revenue from online distribution decreased by 17.2% from RMB236.7
million in the Previous Year to RMB195.9 million in the Current Year and
our revenue from online direct sales increased by 26.0% from RMB249.6
million in the Previous Year to RMB314.5 million in the Current Year,
reflecting that the Group closely follows the traffic change trend of online
platforms and actively captures the revenue growth opportunities brought
by online traffic ports such as content e-commerce represented by Douyin.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenue contribution as a
percentage of our total revenue from offline distributors by geographic
locations of the offline distributors’ registered offices during the years
indicated:

AEERN BRTIREELENRKABRLEFEHARE
414598 BT INS 2% ERFEMNARKAL361.28
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Year ended December 31,

BZ12831BLLEE
2023 2022
2023F 20224
% of total % of total
RMB’000 revenue RMB’000 revenue
ARETRT HEKRA% ARBTT (HEKA%
Eastern China FEH 967,111 22.2 876,993 21.2
Central China FErh 749,874 17.2 797,083 19.2
Northern China #F#ib 643,350 14.8 642,391 15.5
Southern China R 781,126 17.9 692,216 16.7
Southwestern China PRI 548,759 12.6 488,063 11.8
Northwestern China R 573,379 13.1 583,704 14.1
Overseas” BN 97,623 2.2 65,474 1.5
Total &t 4,361,222 100.0 4,145,924 100.0

We generated relatively balanced revenue from offline distributors in
different geographic areas in China. The geographic distribution of our
domestic revenue is generally in line with the economic development and
population of different regions in China. Revenue generated overseas
increased significantly in the Current Year due to the active expansion of
our business into overseas markets.

@ Revenue contributed overseas is from offline distributors registered overseas.
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OUR PRODUCTION FACILITIES AND CAPACITIES

We strive for the advancement of our capabilities in production and
quality control. Most of our production lines have achieved automation,
and we have implemented strict monitoring of key parameters throughout
the production process. We have an electronic control and mechanical
design professional team, engaged in R&D of automated production
equipment and systems based on our process requirements. Most of our
automation equipment is developed in-house. Meanwhile, we established
partnerships with equipment manufacturers to automate our production
procedures and upgrade our production facilities.

Through the automation and standardization of production lines, the
Group can effectively implement precise quality control and reduce labor
and energy costs, enabling us to have extremely flexible production
capabilities. Meanwhile, to maximize production efficiency and broaden
our product portfolio, the Group also cooperates with reliable OEM
suppliers for the production of products that we sell in relatively smaller
amount.

As of December 31, 2023, the Group had five plants in Henan, namely
Luohe Pingping Plant, Luohe Weilai Plant, Zhumadian Weilai Plant, Luohe
Weidao Plant and Luohe Xinglin Plant, of which Luohe Xinglin Plant is
expanding its production capacity and part of the production lines of the
plant have already been put into operation.

The tables below set out the details of our designed production capacities,
actual production volume, and utilization rates for the years indicated, by
product types and by plants:

BMNEERERER

BMBEIN RS ELEEMEEZH T LN o I
WEZHEERHCERAR WARMERELE
BRETHBRSMEREENET - RAEFEERN
EIEMEMRRETER - RERMOTEER - t£8
B EERBMRGNFE - HAIAFD BEBERE
BRNEFE - Rl - BARREEEREL A FRH
FASEERF BB - WHHRE I EERE o

BREERNBBCNREL  AEEABEITHA
BB MR AT MEERKA - HRMAERS
FUEREERD - A - REREEMEZACNA
REFNEMRAS - AKREITEAENOEMEEA S
EEERMFEERYRENES -

HE2023F12A31H  "EBEIEEHERET
W DRIARAFEE TR RAERIMR - EHEEE
I SRR EE TR RN ST - ERRAA
MIMEERERERD  ZIMOITDEFERE -

TREDNBFIR AR FEIRE RN TS D8R
FTERE BREENERNAXRFE

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31HLEE
2023 2022
20235 2022
Designed Designed

Production Actual Utilization Production Actual  Utilization
Type of Products EmER Capacity Production Rate Capacity  Production Rate
RITERK BREE ERNAR RitER BRES ERNAX

(ton) (ton) (ton) (ton)

(1) (1) (18) (7)
Seasoned flour products AR 237,722.4  114,791.6 48.3% 242,4223 138,447.0 57.1%
Vegetable products mEE S 96,228.0  69,309.0 720% 843920  54,357.0 64.4%
Bean-based and other products S & M EMER 5,934.5 3,893.4 65.6% 3,257.0 2,609.0 80.1%
Total Foh 339,884.9 187,994.0 55.3% 330,071.3 195,413.0 59.2%

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Our designed production capacity for seasoned flour products in the
Current Year decreased compared with the Previous Year, primarily due
to the planning adjustment of production lines for some products. Our
designed production capacity for vegetable products increased compared
with the Previous Year, primarily due to the addition of new production
lines in Luohe Xinglin Plant. Our designed production capacity for bean-
based and other products also increased compared with the Previous Year,
primarily due to the addition of production lines in Luohe Xinglin Plant
for braised egg products. Our overall utilization rate decreased compared
with the Previous Year, primarily attributable to the drop in utilization rate
of seasoned flour products.

AEER - RAFARAR AR EER EFEEM
T TERHARBOERERNREIFE - HiXH
mARETERRLFE LA TERRA/RTEMT
BIEINTER  SHRIECEMNRTELRL
FEMEN  TERANVRIEMR TGN T NEE
R BRERNAXTELFEAMTE  T2RHN
R R ERE NIRRT o

Year ended December 31,

BZENANALEE
2023 2022
2023F 20224

Designed Actual Utilization  Designed Actual  Utilization
Production Plants EETR Capacity Production Rate Capacity  Production Rate
REtERE BREE EFIAXR FHEE BZREE ENREX

(ton) (ton) (ton) (ton)

(mg) (mg) (18) (18)
Luohe Pingping Plant B TR 95,168.2  46,707.7 49.1% 107,244.7 60,011.3 56.0%
Luohe Weilai Plant SR 1T PR TR 57,462.2 31,984.8 55.7% 57,647.3 37,1144 64.4%
Zhumadian Weilai Plant EYESTERTR IR 67,435.1 24,502.5 36.3% 57,665.0 23,020.3 39.9%
Luohe Weidao Plant SRR & E TR 89,892.0 56,787.5 63.2% 96,204.5 65,073.1 67.6%
Luohe Xinglin Plant SR AR TR 29,927.4 28,0115 93.6% 11,309.8 10,193.9 90.1%
Total et 339,884.9 187,994.0 55.3% 330,071.3 195,413.0 59.2%

During the Current Year, the changes for the annualized designed
production capacity among our plants were mainly attributable to (i)
the shift of some production lines to Luohe Xinglin Plant with higher
efficiency; (i) the adjustment of some product specifications; and (iii) the
adjustment of some production lines for some products. Overall utilization
rate in 2023 decreased compared with 2022, primarily attributable to the
drop in utilization rate of seasoned flour products..

AEEAR - RS THOF(CRFERNIGRE L -
TE2EZRAROE D ERBEBINEE SRR AT
g (AP D Emm R TR ¢ (i)l D EmELRTE o
2023F VB EBERNMAERB2022F B TR £2
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OUR FOOD SAFETY AND QUALITY CONTROL

We uphold the quality-oriented principle, view food safety as our “lifeline”
and continuously improve the construction of the food safety system. We
adhere to the bottom line of product quality to ensure food safety, and
promote innovation and research and development to create healthier
and more delicious snack food for consumers.

The Group established a sound food safety and quality assurance
system of the whole chain and the whole product life cycle. The system
covering the whole process of production, covering R&D, procurement,
manufacturing, storage, distribution to sales and other links. Throughout
the production process, the entire production process can be controllable
by using the HACCP hazard analysis and critical control points. In terms of
product inspection and release, “Product Inspection and Release Control
Procedures” are strictly implemented; in terms of detection capacity,
HPLC-MS, GC-MS, ICP-MS and other high-end detection equipments
are applied to strictly monitor the food additives, heavy metals and other
indicators; in terms of risk management, advance prevention is carried
out through the “Food Safety Information Collection and Early Warning”,
“Food Safety Monitoring and Risk Assessment Norms”, “Food Safety
Self-inspection Management System” and other systems. In terms of risk
management of new products, risk assessment is carried out under “New
Product Quality Inspection Standards”.

The Group has also set up a quality management department, which
is mainly responsible for raw materials and packaging materials
management, production process management and product testing
management, OEM and customer service management and food safety
and quality assurance, and strives to build a closed-loop management
system of source control, production control, strict certification control
and after-sales control, so as to provide consumers with the best quality
products.

OUR R&D CAPABILITIES

We always adhere to our R&D philosophy of “maximizing the intrinsic
value of nature with an industrialized approach”. In order to constantly
enhance the competitiveness of our products, we have been focusing on
upgrading existing products and launching new products. In particular,
the modularized R&D model which integrates different teams forms the
core of our product development. The Group built R&D teams in food
technology, industrialized production techniques and packaging and
preservation technology, pairing technical talents to conduct in-depth
specialized research. Through close collaboration among teams, the
Group integrated the technologies in each module across multiple product
development phases, which significantly improves the success probabilities
of the Group's existing product upgrade and new product launch.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2023

BANEmEEZMmEES
AMBRAEEALR  BARRBARZEROEIE
HRINRA BEBEARTEBRER - AME
TERREES REAKEZE  RBAFHE - 7
FRMREANEHTRE  EXROAMAM -

AEEZEY TRENZHEEK  2EDERNRERZS
MAERERER - ZRABETEREENDBRE
BEME  RE - £E - 7 KHIHEESRE
FERAE A B2 F FAHACCPEE DT LRI 5212 51|25
HREELEBRRAE  ERBRITHERTRIEN
(ERRBEBTENRZR)  mRNENAE BB
5 i 79 48 78] 5% 5 HPLC-MS + GC-MS - ICP-MS &5 &1 %t
BRAINE  EBSHESETRRELR : fRRE
BHE BE(RRELE2EEREREE) (RR%
FERARRBRTHRE) (RRLEEEEEFE)
LHIEETERTEN c EMERRBRERS®E  KIE
(M EBFEEETRRITE

AEBENRY T mEERHA - TEAERMHER
EMHER  FEAEEENERRBRER  RIK
ARBFPRBEEUANRREEMRERE 2017
EIRIBEE  AEEE  RERE - SRICIENER
EEER EtMAREERREEBENES

IR RED

BR—BEFRAIUIRCES  BFXREHNEES
RCERINAEIES - ZFER-EFERTERH
Fh o HIRBRAERNTAERMMERFE - &
T R ECHEREARRMERFTEEBROZL ° K
SEERMBIM - TE(AEETE  AREERNS
BIRTEEE - E BRI AT ETRANFIR
% BEBEFENBREER - SEREORTEA
Az EERMAEERSD  AERAAKEARBRAE
ST E R o



Management Discussion and Analysis & I & 5 5m B2 2547

The Group has also established long-term cooperative relationships with
top universities in the domestic food science industry to jointly build the
industrialization demonstration base of the food engineering technology
research center and developed our talent reserves to strengthen our edge
in product and technology R&D. As of December 31, 2023, the Group
has established two application R&D centers, one in Henan and the other
in Shanghai, and had a professional R&D team with specialties covering
food engineering, food safety and nutrition, polymer chemistry, biology,
inspection and testing and other fields. Relying on various R&D activities,
we invested in upgrades, renovation and R&D of emerging technologies
to meet ever-changing consumer preferences and promote the sustainable
growth of sales.

OUR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group continued to strengthen WL Delicious’s digital strategy and
promote digitalization-related work continuously to improve the quality
and efficiency of its business departments and achieve the goal of
“interconnection and digital intelligentization of all business processes”
("EEER  —YIEBEHEL"). Leveraging the good foundation of
information technology, the Group effectively monitored and optimized
its management system, procurement, sales, R&D and other processes.
The Group's information system is based on its four major types of
infrastructure, including laaS/PaaS system, three-tier network architecture,
data center and hybrid cloud. In addition, the Group realized a series
of functions such as product operation and information management
through the complementary application of the ERP system, sales
management system, item-specific serial code information system, storage
and transportation system, supplier relationship management system,
enterprise asset management system, 5G+ Industrial Internet of Things,
smart manufacturing base management system, equipment management
system, production execution and control system, piece-wage system, OA
process approval system, and expense control and reimbursement system.

During the Current Year, we continued to promote the construction
of the sales management system so as to enable us quickly expand the
market, improve the points of sales (the “POS") coverage and operation
efficiency and further enhance the quality of the POS management and
control. At the same time, we continued to build an agile and responsive
supply chain system, and establish supply chain planning system, three-
dimensional warehouse management system, quality management
system, R&D project management system, human resources performance
management system, financial centralized management project and Bl
self-service analysis platform, etc., which improve the overall efficiency of
enterprise. In addition, we continued to promote process standardization
and streamline the end-to-end business process, especially the sorting
and optimization of sale and supply chain planning and collaborative
management process and R&D project management process, to eliminate
bottlenecks in the business flow, simplify unnecessary process steps,
increase risk control points, and drive business operations more efficiently
with procedures. Besides, we are also continuously advancing the
optimization of ERP system, supplier collaboration management system,
e-commerce middle platform system and Industrial Internet of Things
project and other projects to empower our business comprehensively and
enhance the enterprise operational efficiency.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The following financial results are extracted from the financial report of
the Group prepared in accordance with the IFRS during the Reporting
Period:

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group recorded a revenue of RMB4,871.7 million in the Current
Year, representing an increase of 5.2% as compared with RMB4,632.2
million in the Previous Year, primarily due to an increase in the sales from
the emerging channels such as 020, snack specialty retailers and content
e-commerce platforms, partially offset by a decrease in the sales from
offline traditional channels, which was caused by a drop in the consumer
flow.

Gross profit of the Group increased by 18.5% from RMB1,959.6 million in
the Previous Year to RMB2,322.7 million in the Current Year. Gross profit
margin of the Group increased by 5.4 percentage points from 42.3% in
the Previous Year to 47.7% in the Current Year, primarily due to (i) an
increase in the average selling price resulted from the Group’s structural
adjustment of main products in the Previous Year; (ii) a decrease in the
price of raw materials in the Current Year; and (i) the optimization of
the Group’s cost management by streamlining production process flow
continuously.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses of the Group amounted to RMB806.7
million in the Current Year, representing an increase of 27.4% as
compared with RMB633.3 million in the Previous Year. In the Current
Year, distribution and selling expenses of the Group accounted for 16.6%
of the total revenue, representing an increase of 2.9 percentage points as
compared with 13.7% in the Previous Year. The increase in the Group'’s
distribution and selling expenses was mainly due to (i) an increase in the
employee benefit expenses from RMB248.7 million (including share-
based payment of approximately RMB17.4 million) in the Previous Year
to RMB346.3 million (including share-based payment of approximately
RMB17.3 million) in the Current Year, primarily due to the continuous
expansion of the sales team of the Group; (ii) promotion and advertising
expenses increase by 53.6% from RMB139.3 million in the Previous Year
to RMB214.0 million in the Current Year as a result of the increased
promotion and advertising investments; and (i) a decrease in professional
fees.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group decreased by 4.7% from RMB481.7
million in the Previous Year to RMB458.9 million in the Current Year,
primarily due to an increase in employee benefit expenses offset by a
decrease in professional fees and Listing expenses of the Group. The
proportion of administrative expenses to total revenue decreased from
10.4% in the Previous Year to 9.4% in the Current Year.

Other Income, Net

Other Income, net, of the Group decreased by 59.6% from RMB107.6
million in the Previous Year to RMB43.5 million in the Current Year,
primarily due to the decrease in government subsidies.

Other Gains/(Losses), Net

The Group recorded RMB2.8 million in other gains in the Current Year
compared to RMB597.7 million in other losses in the Previous Year,
primarily due to the share-based payments related to Pre-IPO Investments
in relation to the supplemental share purchase agreement in April 2022 of
RMB628.8 million.

Finance Income, Net

Net finance income of the Group increased by 204.3% from RMB57.7
million in the Previous Year to RMB175.6 million in the Current Year,
primarily due to an increase in interests from banks.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense of the Group increased by 52.8% from RMB261.1
million in the Previous Year to RMB398.9 million in the Current Year,
primarily due to (i) an increase of the taxable income of the Group in
the Current Year; and (ii) an increase in the amount of withholding
tax provision for subsequent profit distribution from the subsidiaries
incorporated in the PRC.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year of the Group increased by
481.9% from RMB151.3 million in the Previous Year to RMB880.4 million
in the Current Year, primarily due to the share-based payments related
to Pre-IPO Investments in the Previous Year as well as an increase in gross
profit of the Group in the Current Year.
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Adjusted Net Profit (Non-IFRS Measure) and Adjusted Net
Profit Margin (Non-IFRS Measure) for the Year

To supplement the Group’s consolidated financial statements that are
presented in accordance with IFRS, the Group also use adjusted net
profit (Non-IFRS measure) as an additional financial measure, which is not
required by, or presented in accordance with IFRS. The Group believes that
this non-IFRS measure facilitates comparisons of operating performance
from period to period and company to company by eliminating
potential impact of items that the management does not consider to be
indicative of the Group’s operating performance. The Group believes
that this measure provides useful information to investors and others
in understanding and evaluating the Group’s consolidated results of
operations in the same manner as it helped the Group’s management.
However, the Group's presentation of adjusted net profit (Non-IFRS
measure) may not be comparable to similarly titled measures presented by
other companies. The use of this non-IFRS measure has limitations as an
analytical tool, and the investors should not consider it in isolation from,
or as a substitute for analysis of, the Group's results of operations or
financial conditions as reported under IFRS.

The Group defines adjusted net profit (Non-IFRS measure) as net profit
for the year adjusted by adding back share-based payment expenses
and Listing expenses. The following table reconciles our adjusted net
profit (Non-IFRS measure) for the years presented to the most directly
comparable financial measures calculated and presented in accordance
with IFRS, which is net profit for the years:
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Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR%T ) (AREEFTT)
Reconciliation of net profit to adjusted % I/ 82 &R FH & 2 758 (3E
net profit (Non-IFRS measure) (EIR B KR EEA)TE) FAEX
Profit for the year FRHHE 880,354 151,297
Add: hn
Share-based payment to employees” 1R B R LARR (D AERE R FRBO 89,981 98,133
Listing expenses? k@ = 34,852
Share-based payments related to Pre-IPO HERAFREERIRER BN
Investments® ity REM R = 628,811
Adjusted net profit R FRE
(Non-IFRS measure) (e EIBRB TS 3R E 2 RIFHE) 970,335 913,093
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Notes:

(1) Share-based payment to employees, which is non-cash in nature mainly
represents the arrangement that the Group receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments of the Group.

(2)  Listing expenses mainly relate to the IPO.

(3) Share-based payments related to Pre-IPO Investments refer to the
supplemental agreement of share purchase agreement the Company
entered into with certain Pre-IPO investors, pursuant to which the Company
issued and sold to these investors a total number of 157,626,890 ordinary
shares, at a par value of US$0.00001 of each share, for a consideration of
US$1,576.2689 in April 2022.

Adjusted net profit (Non-IFRS measure) of the Group for the year increased
by 6.3% from RMB913.1 million in the Previous Year to RMB970.3 million
in the Current Year, primarily as the result of an increase in gross profit
of the Group and adjusted net profit margin (Non-IFRS measure) of the
Group increased from 19.7% to 19.9%, for the respective years.

Dividends

Based on the Group’s overall performance, having accounted for,
including but not limited to, surplus, overall financial conditions, capital
expenditures of the Group in the Current Year, the Board will propose
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to declare
a final dividend (the “Final Dividend”) of RMBO0.10 per share as of the
end of Current Year (inclusive of tax, amounting to a total Final Dividend
of approximately RMB235.1 million), representing approximately 27 %
of the net profit of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023.
The proposed Final Dividend and the Interim Dividend declared by the
Board at the board meeting held on August 29, 2023, totaled RMB517.3
million, representing approximately 60% of the net profit of the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2023. Besides, considering that the year
of 2023 is the 1st anniversary of the Listing of the Group, the Board will
propose to declare a special dividend (the “Special Dividend”) of RMBO0.11
per share (inclusive of tax, amounting to a total Special Dividend of
approximately RMB258.6 million), representing approximately 30% of the
net profit of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023. However,
the implementation of the Final Dividend and the Special Dividend is
subject to the approval of the annual general meeting. Final Dividend and
Special Dividend are expected to be paid on or about June 28, 2024.
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Term Deposits with Initial Term over Three Months,
Restricted Cash, Cash and Cash Equivalents and
Borrowings

As of the end of Current Year, the sum of term deposits with initial term
over three months, restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to RMB4,690.5 million, representing an increase of
19.1% as compared with RMB3,939.3 million as of the end of Previous
Year, mainly attributable to the cash generated from operating activities
during the Current Year. Borrowings of the Group were RMB161.3 million
and RMB180.9 million as of the end of Previous Year and Current Year,
respectively. Borrowings of the Group were secured bank loans which the
Group obtain for the construction of plants and purchase of machinery
and equipment.

Inventories

Inventories of the Group decreased by 29.9% from RMB599.3 million as
of the end of Previous Year to RMB419.9 million as of the end of Current
Year. Inventory turnover days of the Group decreased from 82 days in
the Previous Year to 73 days in the Current Year, primarily due to (i) a
decrease in raw materials of the Group; and (ii) the increased reserve of
finished goods at the end of Previous Year for the Chinese New Year in
mid January 2023.

Trade, Other Receivables and Prepayments

Trade receivables of the Group decreased by 22.3% from RMB66.4
million as of the end of Previous Year to RMB51.6 million as of the
end of Current Year, primarily because the online retailers placed more
orders with the Group in December of Previous Year in anticipation of
the Chinese New Year in mid January 2023. The turnover days of trade
receivables decreased from 4.9 days in the Previous Year to 4.4 days in
the Current Year.

Other receivables of the Group decreased by 38.0% from RMB62.4
million as of the end of Previous Year to RMB38.7 million as of the end
of Current Year, primarily due to a decrease in receivables from local
government.

Prepayments of the Group increased by 9.0% from RMB111.2 million as
of the end of Previous Year to RMB121.2 million as of the end of Current
Year, primarily due to an increase in prepayments for consulting services
provided by a third-party service provider partially offset by a decrease in
prepayments for raw materials and input VAT recoverable.
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Group decreased
by 67.9% from RMB382.4 million as of the end of Previous Year to
RMB122.8 million as of the end of Current Year, because the Group
strategically decreased its investments in structured deposits products and
fund management products.

Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables of the Group decreased by 12.1% from RMB187.3 million
as of the end of Previous Year to RMB164.7 million as of the end of
Current Year, primarily due to an increase in purchase from the suppliers
in December of Previous Year in anticipation of the Chinese New Year in
mid January 2023. The turnover days of trade payables decreased from 26
days in the Previous Year to 25 days in the Current Year.

Other payables of the Group were RMB502.5 million and RMB498.0
million as of the end of Previous Year and Current Year, respectively,
which remained relatively stable.

Contract Liabilities and Refund Liabilities

Contract liabilities and refund liabilities of the Group decreased by 8.4%
from RMB225.3 million as of the end of Previous Year to RMB206.3
million as of the end of Current Year, primarily because the distributors
placed more orders with the Group at the end of Previous Year in
anticipation of the Chinese New Year in mid January 2023.

Gearing Ratio

As of the end of Current Year, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is
calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings divided by total equity, was
3.2%, as compared with 2.9% as of the end of Previous Year.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management approach for its
treasury policy to ensure that the Group’s liquidity structure comprising
assets, liabilities and other commitments is able to always meet its capital
requirements.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group mainly operates in China with most of the transactions settled
in RMB. The functional currency of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
is RMB, while the functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
outside Mainland China is HKD or USD. Both the entities in and outside
Mainland China have assets and liabilities, like cash at bank and other
major licensed payment institutions, restricted cash, term deposits with
initial term over three months which are denominated in USD and HKD.
Foreign exchange risk arises from the fluctuations in exchange rates.
The Group has continued to closely track and manage its exposure to
fluctuation in foreign exchange rates confronted by the majority of the
Group's deposits denominated in foreign currencies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As of the end of Previous Year and Current Year, the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of the end of Current Year, the Group had capital commitments for
the construction of property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB49.4 million (Previous Year: RMB79.5 million).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of the end of Current Year, the Group has pledged land use right
amounting to approximately RMB91.8 million (Previous Year: RMB93.8
million).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITION
AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any significant investments held, or any material
acquisition or disposal of any relevant subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the Reporting Period.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

As of the Latest Practicable Date, save for the “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have any
existing plans for acquiring other material investments or capital assets.

GOING CONCERN

On the basis of current financial projections and financing available,
the Group has adequate financial resources to continue its operation in
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.
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OUTLOOK

In line with the mission of “To let the world fall in love with Chinese
flavors”, the vision to “make authentic Chinese gourmet more
entertaining, casual, convenient and affordable, embrace digital-
intelligentization and ultimately build a great business that brings joy
and happiness to people for 123 years”, and the value of “Customer
First, Employee Oriented, Operating Business with Integrity and Creating
Changes”, the Group continues to build a leading company in the
spicy snack food industry, thus providing more value to its customers,
employees, and consumers.

Looking ahead, the Group will continuously strengthen brand building,
actively build its brand recognition advantage, and obtain profound
consumer insights. Oriented by consumers’ needs and experiences, the
Group will actively explore the penetration of consumers’ minds through
brand activities centering around young consumers as well as enhancing
the refined operation of online content e-commerce platforms, social
e-commerce platforms and other channels with consumer flows, so as to
continuously enhance the Group’s brand awareness and reputation.

The Group will continue to invest in product development and quality
improvement. In order to provide better products and services to
consumers, we have introduced our new products into the market
immediately after their launch during the Year. These innovative products
not only enrich our product portfolio, but also strengthen the Group's
position in the spicy snack food industry. We believe that continuous
innovation, breakthroughs and keeping pace with the times are the key
factors to success in business growth.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue to strengthen its online and offline
omni-channel development strategy. The rapid development of snack
specialty retailers and Douyin e-commerce platform has brought new
development opportunities for snack food enterprises. As the competition
is intense, the Group will proactively take corresponding measures and
reinforce its omni-channel construction. On the one hand, the Group will
focus on enhancing the operational efficiency of traditional distribution
channels and the implementation quality of stores. On the other hand,
the Group will intensify collaborations with the system of snack specialty
retailers and continue to expand into stores in the system of snack
specialty retailers. Furthermore, emphasis will be placed on bolstering
online omni-channel construction. By refinedly operating traditional
e-commerce platforms and expanding into emerging content e-commerce
platforms, the Group will cater to different consumer needs, thereby
improving omni-channel operation and omni-channel brand influence.

KERE

AEB-—HRAEERAANE LPBEK I HERIA
RIERERREL - KB - B BRI &
Bt ZE123FNERTEINES  BRHIZEFE
— BIAK  BELKE AESLINEER 5
BIERER REIL RHEBERHEZEENR
KRB RMBEBLE -

REARE  ARBERTE IR REER  BREER
FERRAES - RAHBERE - LWEBEENFT RN
BRAER  WEEBNFEREE SR ONMRELS
AR IR ENARER - HRXEMSRERENIFA
LiEes  BERRFVEBEENLEZE - M TEHREA
AEENMEMEBENEEE

AEERFHECEREZRNRERRERA - BT R
HEERUEHNERMRS - FARPROIE®RE
HRMBEATS - BLAFEMTESE TR
EmEE - 158t T ARBEERKAKE R MBI
7 - BAIARE - TETRORIRT - OB S HERHAE R (2
R EBRESE -

RIS - REEREBINRR ER T2 REBRERME -
ZRERRE HEERFHREELETRERS
FEEEREE - ERFNBENERT - NEBEKE
REE - NEERERR - —TEFEERREHR
BHELRERURPIENRITESE - BT EEEN
BRETREREFNAE  HEDRTRARNMASE
BE M ARERGERKLOE2REER  F
BEGERTEBALESARFEARTERNA
B {tmeE RS S ORBEENGR  Emats
REBLENRNTERENRIETEN -

ERERSRIERERAT
2023 F#f

33



34

Management Discussion and Analysis & I & 5 5m B2 2547

In addition, to seize the opportunities brought by channel changes, the
Group will continue to enhance its supply chain capabilities to better
meet the demand of customers and the market. The Group will continue
to improve its R&D capabilities and organizational capabilities, and
strengthen the construction of digital intelligence in order to improve its
overall operational efficiency.

Finally, the Group will stay true to its original aspiration and mission, and
strive to maximize returns for consumers, clients, shareholders, investors,
employees and the society.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company attaches great importance to corporate governance,
especially the establishment of a diligent and conscientious Board of
Directors, and a sound risk management and internal control system. The
Company believes that this is very important for its development and the
protection of the interests of its shareholders. The Company has adopted
good governance and disclosure practices, and will continuously optimize
and improve the practices, and gradually establish a corporate culture
with high integrity.

During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to strengthen the
implementation of the Company’s corporate culture through a number of
measures, details of which are set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
in the report.
For further information of the Company’s corporate culture, please refer
to the Group’s 2023 Sustainability Report (ESG Report) issued with the
report.

Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to the best practices in corporate governance,
and had complied with all the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2023.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and management of the
Company and is primarily responsible for formulating the overall strategy
of the Company, setting performance and management objectives,
evaluating business performance and monitoring management
performance. The Board assumes the responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the
business of the Group by directing and supervising the Group'’s affairs. All
the Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

a) Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and disposal of significant assets;

b)  Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan;

C)  Supervise the management of the Company;

d)  Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports.
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The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise
its powers in an informed manner, management provides monthly
management report and updates to the Board for the management
report, to provide detailed data on the Company’s performance, financial
position and prospects, supported by the most up-to-date financial data,
in order to ensure the Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information and may take independent professional advice if necessary.

The authorization granted by the Group’s Board to the management
mainly includes:

a) Decision-making rights of daily production, management and
operations (including purchasing raw materials, selling goods and
other transactions related to daily operations);

b) To implement annual production plans, investment plans, financial
budget and final accounts plans and capital expenditure matters
within the scope approved by the general meeting of shareholders
and the Board;

¢)  Appointment or dismissal of employees such as heads of various
departments and branches of the Company and other employees
excluding those who should be appointed or dismissed by the Board;

d)  Other matters authorized by the Articles of Association or the Board.

As for the matters that should be decided by the Board according to
laws and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company, as
well as the matters that need to be decided by the Board, such as major
decisions, important personnel appointment and removal, key projects
arrangement and major capital operations, as well as the matters that
need to be decided by the general meeting of shareholders, shall not be
granted to the management to execute. The management shall faithfully
and diligently perform their duties in strict accordance with the scope
authorized by the Board.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
Directors to buy and sell the Company’s securities.

After making specific inquiries to all Directors, they confirmed that they
complied with the provisions of the Model Code for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Board and
independence in decision-making.

The Board of the Company comprises nine Directors, including six
executive Directors, namely Mr. LIU Weiping (Chairman), Mr. LIU Fuping,
Mr. SUN Yinong, Mr. PENG Hongzhi, Mr. LIU Zhongsi and Mr. CHEN
Lin, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. XU Lili,
Mr. ZHANG Bihong and Ms. XING Dongmei. The Board is required to
review periodically the contribution of the Directors in discharging their
responsibilities to the Company and whether they have devoted sufficient
time to discharge their responsibilities to the Company.

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationship among the Board
members are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Board has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules for the Current Year relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
and at least one independent non-executive director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement under Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the members of the Board
must be appointed as independent non-executive directors. The Board has
received from each of them a confirmation of independence according to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As each of the independent non-executive
Directors has confirmed their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, the Company considers them to be independent.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among the members of the Board, except as disclosed in the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual
report.
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INSURANCES FOR DIRECTORS
The Company has made appropriate insurance arrangements with regard
to any legal proceedings against its Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the Year, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer were
separated and held by different individuals to ensure a balance of power
and authority. The Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company
is Mr. LIU Weiping and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company is Mr.
SUN Yinong (both are the executive Directors of the Company).

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

We have adopted the Board diversity policy, which sets forth the means
to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. Under the Board diversity
policy, candidates for the Board will be selected based on a number of
diversity indicators, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, industry experience, technical ability,
professional qualifications and skills, knowledge, length of service and
other relevant factors. We will also consider our own business model and
special needs. The final selection of Director candidates will be based on
the value and contribution that the candidates will bring to the Board.
As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board comprises professionals
from different professional backgrounds in economics, finance,
accounting, law and management with different gender, age stages and
industry experience, which provide favorable support and protection to
ensure the good functioning of the Board. Meanwhile, there are two
female members on the Board of Directors, accounting for 22.22% of
the total number of Directors. The composition of the Board of Directors
complies with the provisions of the Listing Rules on the gender diversity
of Board members and the Company’s Board diversity policy. So the
Board does not make any measurable objectives. The Company values the
importance and benefits of gender diversity of Board members, and the
Board diversity policy of the Company can ensure that the Board will have
potential alternative successors to continue the existing gender diversity of
the Board.

Our Nomination Committee is responsible for the implementation of the
Board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee will review the Board
diversity policy from time to time to ensure its ongoing effectiveness and
we will disclose the implementation of the Board diversity policy annually
in our Corporate Governance Report.
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EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

As at December 31, 2023, the proportion of the Company’s male and
female employees (including executive Directors and senior management)
was 42.7% and 57.3%, respectively, therefore, the Company’s employees
(including executive Directors and senior management) has achieved
gender diversity. The Company will continue to consider the view of
diversity when hiring, which includes gender diversity.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
with its written terms of reference as set out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

d)  toreview the Company’'s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance practices and compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board made a lot of efforts in improving the
corporate governance system of the Company and enhancing the
corporate governance standards, including developing and amending
relevant internal management rules in accordance with the requirements
of relevant laws, regulations and regulatory rules as amended from
time to time, as well as the practice of the Company; monitoring and
organizing corresponding training courses for Directors and company
secretaries; regularly reviewing the Company’s compliance with the
domestic and overseas regulatory requirements and its implementation of
various internal corporate governance rules and policies, and reviewing
the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
the disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report. We will periodically
review and improve our corporate governance practices with reference to
the latest corporate governance developments.
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable training
for the Directors. The office of the Board has provided all Directors with
relevant guideline materials regarding the roles, duties and responsibilities
of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to them,
duty of disclosure of interests and business of the Company. They have
also made timely updates on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and enhance all Directors’ awareness of good corporate governance
practices. The Company has mechanisms in place to allow the Directors
of the Company to seek independent professional advice in the discharge
of their duties and responsibilities to ensure that the Board has access
to independent views and opinions. The Board adopted a policy on
the seeking of independent professional advice by Directors on March
23, 2023 and will review the implementation status and effectiveness
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of these mechanisms on an annual basis. The Directors confirmed that 4% o
they have complied with Code Provision C.1.4 under Section Il of the
Corporate Governance Code on Directors’ training. During the Year, all
of the Directors have participated in training courses or reading materials
on corporate governance and related topics to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and provided relevant records of training to the
Company.
Training
Participated in
(Note)
Name of Directors EEMR e D)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. LIU Weiping BIE T E ab.c
Mr. LIU Fuping BT EE ab.c
Mr. SUN Yinong BRIMEREE a.b.c
Mr. PENG Hongzhi TRERE ab.c
Mr. LIU Zhongsi BBEE a.b.c
Mr. CHEN Lin BRARSE A4 ab.c
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Ms. XU Lil IRERBR A+ ab.c
Mr. ZHANG Bihong RIMATE a.b.c
Ms. XING Dongmei MLt ab.c
Notes: 3T
a:  Law firm training a. ERNEBFTE
b:  Internal training and/or seminars and/or conferences and/or forums b.  REEIIRSHEERSREHER SwE
¢ Reading or watching documents or information regarding Directors’ ¢ BIESBEEEEETR KO EERREMBMESE

responsibilities and/or corporate governance and other related topics

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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POSITIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for providing leadership and control of the
Company, overseeing the Company’s business, investment and strategic
decisions, maintaining an effective risk management and internal control
system of the Company and monitoring the performance of the Company.
The Board currently has three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Each
Committee has its own terms of reference and reports to the Board on a
regular basis.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS
For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company held four Board

ESENBURER

EESRERENEREARAE BEEARRER &
BREERE - AR R AU RERER RN ERE
HERG  BEEARBNKRE - EEERA TR=ZEZ
8g AEZZEe REZESNFMZEE %
SENEERERE  WEHREES®RS -

A

o

EEE2ERRRA®
BHE2023F12A31HIEFE - ARARIERT 7K

meetings and a general meeting. The attendance record of each Director Z#EE2 & @ — B EAD KREEFREETLLHM
at the Board meetings and general meetings is as follows: AR ERsENT
Attendance/No. of Meetings held
HEREBITERRE
Board Meetings  General meetings
Directors = Exge= REXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. LIU Weiping BT E 4/4 1”n
Mr. LIU Fuping BRI L 4/4 11
Mr. SUN Yinong BRIMERAE 4/4 11
Mr. PENG Hongzhi TRERE 4/4 1”1
Mr. LIU Zhongsi BB BIE 4/4 11
Mr. CHEN Lin PR AR A 4/4 1Al
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Ms. XU Lili BRI+ 4/4 11
Mr. ZHANG Bihong SR a5A S 4/4 11
Ms. XING Dongmei IS S g 4/4 11

At Board meetings, the senior management of the Company reported
the information regarding business activities and development of the
Company to all Directors on a timely basis. The executive Directors also
often communicate with the non-executive Directors for their opinions on
the Company’s business development and operations. If any Director has
conflict of interests in any proposed resolution to be considered by the
Board, such Director shall abstain from voting on such resolution.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Chairman of the Company
held one meeting with independent non-executive Directors without the
attendance of other Directors.

REFZEHRYRE  ARRSREEBERBRSME
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As of December 31, 2023 and up to the Latest Practicable Date, the Audit
Committee of the Company comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. ZHANG Bihong, Ms. XU Lili and Ms. XING Dongmei.
Mr. ZHANG Bihong currently serves as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

a) to review significant financial policies of the Company and their
implementation, and supervise the financial activities of the
Company;

b)  to review the financial information and relevant disclosures of the
Company;

) to consider and approve the risk management and internal control
evaluation proposal of the Company, and supervise and evaluate the
risk management and internal control of the Company;

d) to consider and approve the audit budget, remuneration of staff
and appointment and dismissal of major officers of the Company,
supervise and evaluate the work of internal audit of the Company
and formulate the medium- to long-term audit plan, annual working
plan and internal audit system setting plan of the Company as
authorized by the Board, and report to the Board;

e) to propose the appointment or dismissal of an external accounting
firm, supervise the work of the external accounting firm, and
evaluate the report of the external accounting firm to ensure that
the external accounting firm undertakes its audit responsibilities;

f)  to facilitate communications and monitor the relationship between
the internal audit department and the external accounting firm;

g) to monitor the non-compliance of the Company in respect of the
financial reports and the risk management and internal control; and

h)  other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory documents,
the rules of the securities regulatory authority of the place where
the shares of the Company are listed and the requirements of the
Memorandum and the Articles of Association, and as authorized by
the Board.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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The Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the Audit Committee
shall at least meet twice a year. The Audit Committee held four meetings
for the year ended December 31, 2023.

(EBARTINDRE  BRZEQREVTFRITN
K& o BE2023F12A310IEFE EZEEE

BITTHRER

Attendance/No. of Meetings held

Directors = HERYBITERRE
Mr. ZHANG Bihong (Chairman) SRFEA T E(F ) 4/4
Ms. XU Lili R+ 4/4
Ms. XING Dongmei IS S g 4/4

As of the Latest Practicable Date, the Audit Committee has reviewed
the annual result announcement of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2023, and believes that the Company has complied with
all applicable accounting standards and regulations and made sufficient
disclosures. The Audit Committee has reviewed all material internal control
rules, including the financial and operational and compliance controls, as
well as risk management of the Company in 2023. The Audit Committee
was satisfied with the effectiveness and sufficiency of the internal control
mechanism in its operations. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the
adequacy of the Company’s resources, staff qualifications and experience
in the accounting and financial reporting function and the training
programmes and budgets received by its staff.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration of the auditors for
2023 and recommended the Board to re-appoint Ernst & Young, Certified
Public Accountants, as the auditors of the Company for 2024, subject to
the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

As of December 31, 2023 and up to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Nomination Committee of the Company comprises the Chairman of the
Board and executive Director (Mr. LIU Weiping) and two independent
non-executive Directors (Ms. XU Lili and Mr. ZHANG Bihong). Mr. LIU
Weiping currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

a) to formulate procedures and standards for the election of Directors
and senior management and make recommendations to the Board
on the proposed procedures and standards;

b) to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination of
candidates for Directors, Presidents and secretary of the Board,;

c)  to preliminarily examine the eligibility of candidates for Directors and
senior management;

d) to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination of
candidates for chairmen and members of the Board committees; and
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e)  other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory documents,
the rules of the securities regulatory authority of the place where
the shares of the Company are listed and the requirements of the
Memorandum and the Articles of Association, and as authorized by

e) AR RS REUXXM - ARBR EHiE
HFEETIRRIERMEMEIERA R SERMA
BREMNNARESTERENEMEE -

the Board.
The Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the Nomination ({¥EA<FRNRT  IBREE@ES L TERT—
Committee shall meet at least once a year. The Nomination Committee R &3 - B ZE2023F 128310 IFFE  22ZE&
held one meeting for the year ended December 31, 2023. BITT—RgE® o
Attendance/No. of Meetings held
Directors B= HERY T BIEBRE
Mr. LIU Weiping (Chairman) RIBEFERE(FE) 71
Mr. ZHANG Bihong SR IRBASEAE ”n
Ms. XU Lil REEBR L+ /1
DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY EERBHX
The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authorities for selection %?AEHﬁﬁ?ﬁkﬂlﬁEﬁ NRAIEFMEETFE R
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the FARQGIREZELZES

Company.

The Company has adopted a Director nomination policy, which sets out
the Company's criteria, procedures and processes for the nomination
and appointment of Directors, as well as relevant considerations for the
check and review of the composition of the Board. The aim is to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diverse
perspectives to meet the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Director nomination policy sets out the factors used to assess
candidates for the proposed appointment of Directors and the re-

appointment of retired Directors, including but not limited to:

a) To evaluate, screen and recommend Director candidates to the
Board

Reputation for character and integrity;

i.  Achievements, experience and other professional qualifications
in relevant industries involved in the Company’s business;

iii.  Available time and related benefits to be invested in the duties
implementation of the Board;

iv.  Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,

skills, knowledge and years of service;

v.  The potential contributions that the candidate can bring to the
Board; and

vi.  Plans for Board succession in order.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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To assess and recommend to the Board the re-appointment of one
or more retiring Directors

The overall contributions and service of the retiring Director
to the Company, including but not limited to attendance
at Board meetings and/or committee meetings and general
meetings, if applicable, other than the level of participation
and performance at the Board and/or its committees;

ii.  Period of service for the retiring Director; and

ii.  Whether the retiring Director continues to comply with the
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will give due considerations to a number
of factors, including but not limited to, the Listing Rules, as amended
from time to time

The Nomination Committee will make recommendations to the Board on

the appointment of Directors in accordance with the following procedures
and processes:

The Nomination Committee may consult any sources (such as
referrals by the current Directors, advertising, recommendations
from third parties and shareholders of the Company) that it thinks
appropriate in the search or selection of suitable candidates and take
due account of the criteria;

The Nomination Committee may adopt any procedure, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks, that it deems appropriate in assessing the
suitability of candidates;

The proposed candidates will be asked to submit the required
personal data for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may request additional information and
documentation from candidates if necessary;

After considering suitable candidates for the position of Director,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by a written
resolution, if deemed appropriate, to approve a recommendation for
appointment to the Board;

The Nomination Committee will provide the Remuneration
Committee of the Company with relevant information about the
selected candidate for consideration of the remuneration package of
the selected candidate;
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. Thereafter, the Nomination Committee will make recommendations
to the Board on recommended appointments and, in the case of
non-executive Directors, the Remuneration Committee will make
recommendations to the Board on recommended remuneration
packages;

e  The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be interviewed
by a member of the Board who is not a member of the Nomination
Committee before the Board considers and decides on the
appointment (as the case may be); and

e All appointments of Directors will be confirmed by filing with the
Companies Registry of Hong Kong the relevant Directors’ consent
to be Directors (or any other similar document requiring the relevant
Directors to confirm or accept their appointment as Directors, as
the case may be) for filing and updating the Register of Directors
of the Company. A Director shall agree to publicly disclose his or
her personal information in any document or relevant website in
connection with his or her appointment as Director.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director nomination policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. XING Dongmei and
Ms. XU Lili, and one executive Director, namely Mr. CHEN Lin. Ms.
XING Dongmei currently serves as the chairlady of the Remuneration
Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are as
follows:

a) to organize and formulate the remuneration policy and plan of
Directors and senior management and submit to the Board for
approval, and propose the remuneration distribution plan according
to the performance evaluation of Directors and senior management
and submit to the Board for approval; and

b)  other matters required by laws, regulations, regulatory documents,
the rules of the securities regulatory authority of the place where
the shares of the Company are listed and the requirements of the
Memorandum and the Articles of Association, and as authorized by
the Board.

The Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee of the Company
stipulates that the Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a
year. The Remuneration Committee held one meeting for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2023

s Hfp REZBEMERZTRESSRLE
& MEZEFPTESNERT  HFHZES
RSB ES SR RS

o EHETUWHEEREAAFRERZEGHEN
EFENEETED  HRBHEFSEIMR
EREEFERME) : &

s FBEEFZENEBRAEEAREMERER
EERIEFRAEEEREREFTERLE
REFLZENEMEMBLU - RFERM
EMEFREMEN AR FEES LM T ARR -
EREAENEMAXH AR AREERS
TRERNEEAREBEEBAARGER -

REZBEREEHRNESTSRABOR - UWERE
g3

AR
%ﬁ@dﬂ% 8
ADAHMER G A BB IENTES (AL

ﬁi&f??@%ﬁi)&-%%ﬂ”%%(ﬂﬂﬁw?ﬁi)iﬁ
BX e PR T BREEFHEESLIE - HZE
EHERREWNT

a) MAEHITEEREATEENTIHRERARY
%m EEEHE WETF%%&H EIBENE

MERRELHFM ORI ENEELIRREETSH
i
b) AR EM - BB - AABRND EHE

FEEEEMBRTEREIEAANLEZME
RENNAREZERENEMEE -

AReKFHNEZESNRERERT  FTHZESE
EVEFRIT-RNGHE - HZE2023F12A31HLEF
E HNEEB 8T T INEHE -

T



Corporate Governance Report ¥ E RS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Remuneration Committee has
formulated the Directors’ remuneration policy and determined the
Directors’ remuneration policy in relation to the performance of the
executive Directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023, evaluated the performance of the executive Directors, and
considered and approved matters relating to the existing share-based
share scheme, including the approval and adoption of the 2024 share
Incentive Scheme.

HEREATHRE  FHEZEESCHTESHMECR
WEFARREE2023F12A31B ILFEHTES
WERREEEZOFIECR @ FHERITEEHRE -
B RIDENRERG AERARGTEIRESEERS
FEHE A R SR AN 2024 IR 10 B 5T 2

Attendance/No. of Meetings held

Directors BE HERE BITERRE
Ms. XING Dongmei (Chairladly) ML= (EE) 71
Mr. CHEN Lin BRARSE A 171
Ms. XU Lili BT+ 11
TERM OF OFFICE OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FEHITESNES

Starting Date Expiry Date

Name i Eapea=h:] & B &
Ms. XU Lili TRERBR L+ April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
202147278 2024F4726H

Mr. ZHANG Bihong SRFBEATE April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
202144 A27H 202494 F26H

Ms. XING Dongmei e syt April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
202144 F27H 202494 F26H

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS IN RELATION TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors confirm their responsibility to prepare the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2023.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company in relation
to its reporting responsibility for financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 96 to 102.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external
auditor, Ernst & Young, for audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended December 31, 2023 is set out below:
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Fees Paid/Payable

B ENER

Service Category BR A& Bl (RMBAR¥)

Annual Audit Services FEEZR 3,800,000
Non-audit Services (internal control and IEFZARTE (RIE &

ESG-related consultancy) ESGHHEER) 980,000

Total et 4,780,000
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors are responsible for supervising the preparation of annual
accounts in order to give a true and fair view of the financial position,
operating results and cash flow of the Company during the year. For
the purpose of the preparation of the financial statements for the
Reporting Period, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies, adopted applicable accounting principles, made judgments and
assessments that are prudent and reasonable and ensured the financial
statements were prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors have
confirmed that the Company’s financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the requirements of laws and applicable accounting
principles.

The Directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company. The review covered all the material aspects of its
internal controls, including the supervision of the financial and operational
and compliance affairs, as well as risk management.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the ability of the Company
to operate as a going concern. The statement of auditors about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. SHEN Xiaochun was appointed as the joint company secretary of the
Company on April 27, 2021. She joined the Company in October 2020
and has been responsible for investor relations management since then.
In July 2021, she was appointed as the investor relations director of the
Company. Since March 2024, she was appointed as the person-in-charge
of the capital market department of the Company.

Mr. LI Kin Wai was appointed as the joint company secretary of the
Company on April 27, 2021. Mr. Li is a senior manager of Corporate
Services of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional services provider
specializing in integrated business corporate and investor services. He has
over 10 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field.

The Company will ensure that Ms. SHEN Xiaochun and Mr. LI Kin Wai
continuously receive relevant training and support in relation to the Listing
Rules and the duties required to be performed by the company secretaries
of issuers listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Ms. SHEN Xiaochun
and Mr. LI Kin Wai received at least 15 hours of relevant professional
training in the previous financial year, which complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules. The primary contact person of Mr. LI Kin Wai at the
Company is Ms. SHEN Xiaochun.
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WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

The Company has put in place whistleblowing policy which applies to
all the Directors and employees (including but not limited to permanent,
full-time, part-time and contract employees, etc.) of the Group and any
parties who deal with the Group (including but not limited to investors,
customers, contractors, suppliers, creditors and debtors, etc.). The policy
is designed to provide the employees and any external parties with
confidential whistleblowing channels to report to the Group the actual
or suspected illegal activities and misconducts in corporate financial
reporting, internal control or other areas. For the year ended December
31, 2023, the Company was not aware of any illegal activities and
misconduct.

ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Group does not tolerate any corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or
money laundering during the course of its business activities. As such,
it has formulated an anti-corruption policy which prohibits all forms
of corruption practice by making reference to the relevant laws and
regulations. The anti-corruption policy forms an integral part of the
Group's corporate governance framework, which sets out the specific
behavioural guidelines that the employees of the Group must follow to
combat corruption. The anti-corruption policy is reviewed and updated on
a regular basis to align with the applicable laws and regulations as well as
the industry best practices.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE ASSESSMENT MECHANISM
The Company has established a mechanism to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board. This is achieved by giving
Directors access to external independent professional advice from legal
advisers and auditor, as well as the full attendance of all independent
Directors at all the meetings of the Board and its relevant committees
held during the Reporting Period. The Board reviews the implementation
and effectiveness of the aforementioned mechanisms on an annual basis.
The Board Independence Assessment Letter has been sent to all Directors
for assessment and the Directors are satisfied with the structure, size,
composition and independence of the Board of Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

BEBUR
ARAHETEARNEBMBESME L(BFET
RRKA - 2B REBNAGRGETSE)AREEH
BEBERNEMNES (BRETRREEE &
B Ren - HER  ERANEBAS)NREK
% o ZIREE £ R B TAEAIMNB T RERZ B R
REUAMEBERERRMBERS - AEREHIKEAE
B ERKRLIEEZBIIEITR - BIE20235F12
AALEE  ARBABEZREMPEEHRTE
Tk

REBE
AEBEEREEBHTRITREMES - Bl -
= BFFEORETTR - At ARESEHREN
BET -BEREBER  ZIE—URANEISTAR -
(REBER)ZEASBEEREGRBNEZMEKA D -
RIAREEER THRITEE SR VARG THARITAE
5l e BFE R MEF(REBR) - ARAERN
EREMME R REED -

EESB ML HE

RARBEES  BREFSRSELERMZE
Fo AEBLEMBIE  EENESEZERRAZEAD
RERINPBIEEER  URFAABYEES2EH
EREHANBITNESSREEBEZESNMEY
# o EETSEUFES FMBEBIMBITERNMNRER - E
FeR M EREBERGERES®HITE  2E
2023F N ANEILFE ESHEZTS2EE R
B AR B RHERERE o

IRERSRIZRERAD A
2023 F#f

49



50

Corporate Governance Report ¥ E RS

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company shall convene an extraordinary general meeting at the
request of shareholders who individually or collectively hold more than
10% of the Company’s shares. However, prior to the announcement
of the resolutions approved at the general meeting, the number of the
Company'’s shares individually or jointly held by the above shareholders
shall not be lower than 10% of the total number of the Company’s shares
with voting rights and the Members’ requisition must state the objects of
the meeting and the resolution proposed to be included in the agenda of
the meeting; should the shareholding is less than 10%, resolutions passed
at the extraordinary general meeting would become invalid.

The Directors may call general meetings, and they shall on a Members’
requisition forthwith proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of
the submission of the Members’ requisition duly proceed to convene a
general meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionists, or
any of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of the requisitionists, may themselves convene a general meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall be held no later than the day which falls
three months after the expiration of the said 21-day period. A general
meeting convened as aforesaid by requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner as nearly as possible as that in which general meetings are
to be convened by Directors.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from January 1, 2023 to the Latest Practicable Date, the
Company did not make any changes to its Articles. The latest version of
the Articles is available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries. The
shareholders may put enquiries to the investor relations working team
of the Company or the Office of the Board via email (ir@wlspjt.com) as
stated in this annual report.
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CORPORATE TRANSPARENCY AND INVESTOR
RELATIONSHIPS

The Company always endeavors to improve transparency and
accountability to its shareholders in the best possible way. The senior
management of the Company participates in various investor relations
activities including investors and analysts meetings from time to time.
These provide the investors with an opportunity to further understand
the business of the Company. The Company actively liaises and carries
out high-quality communication with shareholders and investors via
diversified communication channels. In the future, the Company will
also hold press conferences and investor presentations/conference calls
where the financial performance, business review and prospect of the
Company are presented. This also sets an open communication platform
for the Company’s senior management to address any questions that
the investment community and the media may have. The Company
issues press releases and announcements where appropriate to provide
updated information about the Company’s business development in a
timely manner. The Company also updates its website regularly to ensure
information about its latest development disseminated promptly.

The Group had made effective implementation of work in investor
relations in the Current Year under the leadership and support of the
Board and management. After issuing the interim results announcement
and annual results announcement, the Group will hold a performance
presentation meeting to fully communicate with investors and analysts. In
addition, we also maintain continuous and effective communication with
shareholders and investors by holding Investor Day activities, exchange
meetings, attending investor forums and investment summits, etc.

During the Current Year, the Group’s management team attended over
150 investor meetings. This provided the investment community with an
opportunity to understand the business of the Group better. As a result
of various investor relations activities undertaken, as at the end of the
Current Year, 14 securities companies provided research coverage on the
Group.

SHAREHOLDERS' COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy after

Listing to ensure its implementation status and effectiveness. With the
implementation of the following measures, the Company believes that the
shareholders’ communication policy is now effectively implemented.
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Purpose

The shareholders’ communication policy provides shareholders of the
Company and investors (including potential investors) with equal and
timely access to information about the Company, in order to enable
the shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to
allow them to actively participate in the affairs of the Company, where
appropriate, and to facilitate the effective communication between
shareholders and investors and the Company.

General Policy and Principle

The Board of the Company shall maintain ongoing communication with
shareholders and investors, and shall regularly review the policy to ensure
its effectiveness. The Company follows the basic principles of fair and
timely communication to and open communication with shareholders and
investors, and discloses information of the Company to shareholders and
investors and communicates with them in accordance with the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws, regulations and rules.

Corporate Communications

Any documents issued or to be issued by the Company for reference or
action of any holders of its securities, including (but not limited to): (i)
annual report (including the Directors’ report, annual account together
with the auditors’ report and the environmental, social and governance
report) and interim report; and (ii) notice of the general meeting,
circular and proxy form, etc. Corporate communications provided to the
shareholders are prepared in plain language in both Chinese and English
versions to facilitate the shareholders’ understanding.

Shareholders have the right to choose the language (either English or
Chinese) or means (in printed copy or through electronic means) of
receipt of the corporate communications. Shareholders should access the
Company’s corporate communications through the Company’s website
(https://www.weilongshipin.com) or the Stock Exchange’s website
(https://www.hkexnews.hk).

Communication Channels

The Company has set up its website, https://www.weilongshipin.com.
Information disclosed by the Company on the website of the Stock
Exchange will also be published on the Company’s website immediately.
Shareholders may also obtain the press releases and other information
published by the Company from time to time from its website.
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Shareholders’ and Investors’ Enquiries

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shares held
in the Company (such as share transfer, change of address, replacement
of share certificate, etc.) to the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong. Shareholders and investors who have any
query in respect of the Company should contact the investor relations
department of the Company by email to ir@wlspjt.com.

General Meetings

The Board strives to maintain an ongoing dialogue with the shareholders
and, in particular, to communicate with the shareholders directly
through annual general meetings or other general meetings (including
extraordinary general meetings) of the Company. Board members, key
senior management (or their appointed proxies) and external auditors will
attend the annual general meetings to receive shareholders’ opinions and
answer their questions.

Communications with Investors

The Company welcomes institutional investors for continual discussions
and communications on matters of the Company’s development and
will organize various activities such as results presentation, roadshow,
media interview and investors or analysts meetings at the appropriate
time in order to facilitate the communications between the Company and
investors.

The Company also contacts or communicates with investors, analysts,
media or other external related persons through emails and individual
contacts.

Shareholders’ Privacy

The Company recognizes the importance of protecting the shareholders’
privacy. The Company will not disclose the shareholders’ information
without their consents, unless otherwise required by relevant laws,
regulations and rules.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is aware of its responsibility for risk management and internal
control systems and reviews their effectiveness at least once annually.
The system is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, to promote effective and efficient
operations, to reasonably guarantee the reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and to safeguard
the assets of the Company, and the system only to provide a reasonable,
but not absolute, guarantee against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has overall responsibility for assessing and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strategic objectives and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

Characteristics of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Organization System

In accordance with the requirements of Code Provision D.2.2 under
Section Il of the Corporate Governance Code, the Company has established
a sound risk management and internal control organization system which
includes the Board, the Audit Committee, the office of the Board, the
audit center, the internal control department, the legal department and
other departments to ensure that the Company has sufficient resources,
qualified and experienced staffs, training courses and related budget for
risk management and internal audit.

The Board of Directors, as the risk management supreme leading organ
of the Company, undertakes ultimate responsibility for establishing,
improvement and effective operation of the overall risk management
system, takes charge of the building, improvement and efficient operation
of the overall risk management system and has the discretion to delegate
senior management and operational division of each department in the
risk management system.

The Board of Directors is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks the Company is willing to take in achieving
its strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. The Board has established the Audit Committee, which
is responsible for monitoring the confirmation of the appropriateness
of the risk management system and internal control procedures and the
effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Company, and providing
a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.
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IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has adopted a comprehensive risk management policy
which sets out a risk management framework to assess all significant
control aspects, including financial control, operational control and
compliance control, based on internal control elements such as internal
environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and
communication and internal oversight, to continuously identify, assess,
analyze and monitor key risks related to our strategic objectives. The
Company’s senior management and even the Directors oversee the
implementation of the risk management policy. Risks identified by
management are analyzed according to their likelihood and scope of
impact, properly followed up, cushioned and corrected by the Group and
reported to the Board.

The Company’s internal control and internal audit departments regularly
review and discuss the Company’s annual risk assessment and monitor the
implementation of risk mitigation measures related to our business. Risk
assessment shows that the risks in 2023 mainly included operational risks.
We developed feasible solutions to effectively manage the risks according
to the actual situation of the Company:

Food safety risks: Food safety and quality are crucial to our reputation
and success. Maintaining consistent quality and food safety largely
depends on the effectiveness of our quality assurance system, which
in turn depends on many factors, including the design of our quality
assurance system and our ability to ensure that our employees and other
third parties involved in our operations comply with the quality assurance
policies and guidelines. Food safety risk is one of the key factors affecting
the business development of food enterprises, and negligence of any
detail in the process from research, development and production to
marketing may cause major food safety accidents. Failure of the Group
to inspect raw materials and finished products in accordance with the
latest laws, regulations and regulatory requirements or standardize
and effectively control the purchase, production and quality inspection
processes may lead to negative food safety incidents, thus affecting the
reputation of the Group and causing economic losses.
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Measures:

a)

We strive to enhance our core competencies in food safety and
quality controls, capitalizing on our source-to-sale product quality
management system. Our products are in compliance with the
HACCP and FSSC 22000 food safety system certifications.

We have established a stringent quality assurance system with
traceability from procurement to sales. We have a strict supplier
screening and assessment mechanism, and have set up a thorough
management system to inspect our procurement and storage
process to ensure the high quality and safety of raw materials.

Standardization and automation in production along with the
manufacture monitoring system have significantly increased the
stability of our production and product quality. We set up control
points for food safety and quality in every segment throughout the
production process and carefully track and inspect our formulas,
raw materials, food additives, and production processes. Our quality
management center is responsible for food safety management,
raw and packaging materials management, production process
management and customer service management, as well as the
establishment of food safety and quality assurance systems.

We have put in place quality monitoring and management system
for different products during our production and logistic process to
achieve seamless integration of food safety risk management across
the supply chain.

Market risks: Meeting market and consumer needs is a key factor in
our success, and our future growth depends on our ability to continue to

introduce new products, flavors and packaging, as well as our ability to
introduce new products with rapid growth or acceptable profitability. The
development and sale of new products may be risky and expensive, and

our new products or flavors may not be accepted by the market or meet

the specific tastes or requirements of consumers. In addition, we need
to reduce the production of products in declining demand in a timely
and cost-effective manner. If we are unable to continuously improve our
product portfolio and introduce new products that meet consumer needs,
our market share and financial performance may be adversely affected.
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Measures:

a)  We have continuously strengthened our market research and
analyzed the market extensively in terms of social development, age
and structure of the population, food culture, consumption habits,
etc. According to the results of market research, we develop new
products or improve existing products to meet the potential needs
of consumers, and meet the market demand through continuous
enrichment of new products. We continue to carry out consumer
insights to study the preferences of consumers in different regions
and across different ages. By deeply understanding the needs of
consumers, knowing their expectations and preferences for products
or services, and their unmet needs, and making it the goal and
opportunity of our product innovation.

b)  We continue to enrich the variety, taste, packaging and image of our
products, and launch them on the basis of extensive investigation
and testing, so as to use new products to meet new consumer needs
and gain market advantages.

) At the same time, we are also strengthening the cultural creation
and promotion of our products, attracting consumers through online
and offline brand activities, in order to obtain continuous attention
and establish the brand and product image.

FORMATION OF LONG-TERM MECHANISM FOR RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL MONITORING

In order to actively prevent and respond to risks in production and
operation, the Company has a comprehensive risk management and
internal control system, audit, internal control and legal departments to
identify major risks that hinder the achievement of the objectives, and
control the risks to an acceptable level, so as to ensure the achievement
of business objectives, improvement in the operational efficiency, and
the reliability of financial reports and compliance with national laws and
regulations. Meanwhile, the Company regularly evaluates the effectiveness
of internal control systems and risk management, and regularly puts
forward relevant risk management suggestions to the management.
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We evaluate and check the effectiveness of our risk management and FHfRBEERE BREEERAPIERKETT - £ 8
internal control system through the management, business units in the — REFEREIE K - EETATEEERK - SNERZERED KD
risk management system, the internal control team of the Group, the  BEAFREM - AR 58 8 KT E Bz B RRE
audit and inspection team of the Group, external auditors, external — &IE K& ARSI RSB RE - TEE B S -
compliance consultants and legal consultants, and improve the risk R - ARERERERERAEETZABEN » KA E
response measures. Meanwhile, in order to ensure the effective operation 3237 T ZPIME RSB /EMS] - BEBEMT ¢
of the risk management system, the Company has an inter-departmental

risk management cooperation mechanism, with specific responsibilities as

follows:

Internal Control

58

Audit Committee

EREEE

Reviewing and approving
annual internal audit plans
for the year, including risk

Internal Audit
Department

RS ER P

Developing annual internal
audit plans for the year,
including risk control plans

Department
MR IR

Developing annual Internal
control plans for the year,
including risk assessment

risk management and
internal control work of

— the Company

EBMFEARFNRR
EEMAEES TIF

audit and identifying risks
BATREDE SRR 2,

recording and tracking via
Risk Control Matrix

a8 I B B 3 S5 LB
HIFERETTIRE

Legal Department

| control plans and control plans T BUABAREIE
BEFENETE - B2
EEAYEFENEE [\ B 4% = ) HIEFEAZER - 25
BERREEE [ Bz T A R )
Supervising and evaluating Implementing internal Identifying risks, and Providing

Supervising and evaluating
the internal audit work of
the Company
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Organizing departments
to respond to risks

Collaborating with
business functions for risk
response and control
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Implementing audit
projects and supervising
rectification measures

EiE AR W EEEK
it

EIEEBP

Establishing legal
compliance policies

compliance-related training
and manage compliance
businesses
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REVIEW OF RISK AND INTERNAL MONITORING
SYSTEM IN 2023

According to the authorization of the Board of Directors, the audit
and inspection team of the Company focuses on business, financial
and compliance risks, and through agile audit, it can realize more
comprehensive and accurate risk monitoring, identify hidden risks more
quickly, and promote management and system process improvement, so
as to support the realization of the Company’s medium — and long-term
vision and strategic objectives.

The Company’s financial reporting, information disclosure and other
management processes strictly comply with the Listing Rules. The Board
office has developed the Information Disclosure Management System,
which was approved by the Board of Directors. The Board office established
the control procedures for information reporting, review and disclosure,
as required. Before disclosing relevant information to the public, the
Company will ensure that the information is kept confidential properly,
and inform the persons with insider information of their obligations and
supervise them according to regulations.

According to the independent review by the internal audit department
and the legal department of the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and major internal monitoring (including financial,
operational and compliance monitoring) in 2023, the internal audit
department and the legal department reported the results to the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors, and were responsible for the
follow-up to confirm that the management implemented the rectification
measures, and put forward the proposed rectification measures and
exchanged opinions with the management.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Board of Directors and
the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control system once, including the adequacy
of resources, employee qualifications and experience, training plan and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions.
During the review, the Board did not identify any significant concerns.
During the Year, the Company did not implement any changes to the
risk management and internal control system, except to further optimize
the implementation process of the risk management and internal control
system. The Board of Directors believed that there were no major defects
in the Company’s risk management and internal control system in terms
of completeness, rationality and effectiveness.
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EENGREEEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Weiping (2I%F), aged 46, is the Chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company and holds directorships and senior management
positions at various subsidiaries within the Group, including as the
chairman of Weilong Commerce since July 2014.

Mr. Liu has over 23 years of experience in the snack foods industry. In
2001, Mr. Liu established Ping Ping Foods Factory (&)1 ¥ & )
(currently known as Ping Ping Foods) with Mr. LIU Fuping and served
as the general manager of Ping Ping Foods Factory until September
2004. Mr. Liu also served as the general manager of Ping Ping Foods
from September 2004 to November 2006 and the general manager of
Zhumadian Ping Ping Foods from November 2006 to July 2014.

In July 2017, Mr. Liu graduated from Southwest University (FERIAE2) in
Chongging, the PRC where he majored in administration management
through online courses.

Mr. LIU Fuping (8/%8F), aged 43, is an Executive Director and the Vice
Chairman of the Board of the Company. Mr. Liu holds directorships and
senior management positions at various subsidiaries within the Group,
including as the President of Weilong Commerce since July 2014.

Mr. Liu has over 23 years of experience in the snack foods industry. In
2001, Mr. Liu established Ping Ping Foods Factory (231 F ¥ & 5 k)
(currently known as Ping Ping Foods) with Mr. LIU Weiping and served as
the deputy general manager of Ping Ping Foods Factory until 2004. Mr.
Liu also served as the deputy general manager of Ping Ping Foods from
September 2004 to November 2006 and the deputy general manager of
Zhumadian Ping Ping Foods from November 2006 to December 2011.
From December 2011 to July 2014, Mr. Liu served as the general manager
of Ping Ping Foods.

In July 2017, Mr. Liu graduated from Southwest University (FERIAE2) in
Chongging, the PRC where he majored in administration management
through online courses.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2023

HITES

BB L 465 ARDRIEERFNTES
IRAEANEHBRRTEESRERDREEH
fii  BEE2014F7 AREADLHEESR -

RIS ETRBRMITEEBB23FLE - 20014 -
B ERRARFAERARERTTEFRRBRCE
BEFRER)  WEMARITFEFIFERRALIEES
2004997 - B2004F9AE2006F 11 7 » BIFHETR
EAFFRMAMAEEIE - WH20065F11 S E201457 A
BERSEM R MEBEE -

2017578 BIEEEXRNTPEEENARAL &
BB RN EBITRERE -

BIR/FRE 435 AARAMITEERAEER -
BIRAERAEBANESHBEAREIEERELSHE
HET - BIEE2014F7 AR IET D v B -

RIS ERERBRMITERER@23FLR © 20014 » 2|
EERZEFEEARBILRATFEFEREBR R A
FERM)  UEERATFEIFRERBEREIEES
20044 » 200498 E20065 11 8 » Bl L IE
AFFRMEABLLIE - WE20065F11 A£20114F12
AEEESETEEFRMELREE - 52011F 1282
2014578 @ BIEEEETFFRMBILE -

2017578 BIEEEX¥NTEEENARALZ &
BIBG ERERZREBITHRER -



Biographies of Directors and Senior Management = K Sk

Mr. SUN Yinong (J27F2), aged 55, is the Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Sun has over 24 years’
experience in the food and beverages industry. From July 1999 to April
2016, he served various positions in Coca-Cola (China) Beverage Co., Ltd
(AT A4 (R E) #RELEFR A F]) and Coca-Cola Enterprise Management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd (RO AJ 242 &1 (H)8) BRAR]), including the
marketing general manager from October 2012 to August 2015 and the
regional general manager from September 2015 to April 2016. Mr. Sun
joined Xiamen Yinlu Foods Group Co., Ltd (EFTERER REEBRAE)
in May 2016 and served as the chief commercial officer, chief operating
officer and chief executive officer consecutively till May 2021. From June
2021 to September 2021, he worked as a management consultant in
Suzhou Aizhihui Management Consulting Co., Ltd (Er = #0FE & IR 54 3
ABRZAF]). Mr. Sun joined our Group in September 2021 and served as
the Special Assistant to the President of the Company till his appointment
as our Chief Executive Officer in December 2021.

Mr. Sun received a bachelor’s degree in electrical engineering and
automation from Zhejiang University (#77T A2 in Hangzhou, the PRC
in July 1991. He also obtained a master of business administration from
China Europe International Business School (FEIBIFR T Ep7) in
September 2008.

Mr. PENG Hongzhi (%), aged 42, is an Executive Director, the Chief
Financial Officer and Senior Vice-President of the Company and holds
senior management positions at various subsidiaries within the Group.

Mr. Peng has over 10 years of experience in operational management.
From March 2007 to June 2008, Mr. Peng served as an engineer in Beijing
Aoshi Sports Timing Service Co., Ltd. From October 2009 to September
2010, Mr. Peng served as an engineer in Guangdong Province Digital
Guangdong Research Institute. From October 2010 to March 2013, he
served as the assistant to the general manager of Ping Ping Foods. From
April 2013 to April 2016, he served as the deputy general manager at
Beijing Dermat Jiekang Technology Development Co., Ltd. From May
2016 to May 2019, he served as the director and general manager at the
Shenzhen Qianhai Xiangming Equity Investment Co., Ltd. From June 2019
to February 2023, he was mainly responsible for the financial center, IT
center and other management work of the Group. Since March 2023, he
has been mainly responsible for the management work of the financial
center and overseas business development center of the Group.
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Mr. Peng holds the qualification of senior project manager in information
systems awarded by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security
in May 2010. He was awarded the Changchun City Government Award
by the Changchun City Government in 2007, the Outstanding Talents of
Fangshan District in Beijing in 2013 and the Outstanding Young Talents in
Beijing in 2015.

Mr. Peng received a bachelor’s degree in geographical sciences from
Hunan University of Science and Technology (#FREHEAE) in Xiangtan,
the PRC in June 2005. He also received a master’s degree in cartography
and geographic information systems from Northeast Normal University (52
1bAf &K E2) in Changchun, the PRC in July 2008.

Mr. LIU Zhongsi (21:8./8), aged 39, is an Executive Director and Senior
Vice-President of the Company and is primarily responsible for the overall
research and development management of the Group, and has served
various positions at various subsidiaries within the Group.

Mr. Liu has over 17 years of experience in the snack foods industry. From
July 2007 to October 2008, he served as a food technology officer in Ping
Ping Foods. From October 2008 to December 2009, he served as a plant
manager in production in Zhumadian Weilai Foods Co., Ltd. (5 & & #2&
RmAEMRAT]). From December 2009 to December 2013, he served as a
plant manager in production in Ping Ping Foods. From December 2013 to
June 2020, he served as the director general of the technological research
and development department at Ping Ping Foods. Since June 2020, Mr.
Liu has served as the director general of the technological research and
development department at Luohe Weilong Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (&7
R E YT B R A R).

Mr. Liu received the China Business Federation Science and Technology
Award (PRI E£B A @R 2R iT#) and the National Business
Technology Progress Award (& B3 BHE# 20 48) from the China
Business Federation in December 2017.

Mr. Liu received a bachelor’s degree in sports education from Xiangnan
University (18R 2265%) in Chenzhou, the PRC in June 2007.
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Mr. CHEN Lin (Bf#%), aged 38, is an Executive Director and Senior Vice-
President of the Company and has served various positions at various
subsidiaries within the Group.

Mr. Chen has over 14 years of experience in the snack foods industry.
From June 2009 to March 2016, Mr. Chen served various roles in Ping
Ping Foods, including management positions in the quality control
department, research and development department, auditing department
and production and sales department. Since 2016, Mr. Chen has served
various positions in Weilong Commerce, including the production, sales
and equipment manager, the deputy director general of the general
production office and the supply chain deputy director general. From
March 2020 to January 2023, Mr. Chen has been responsible for the
management of supply chain center, procurement center and human
resource & administration center of the Group. Since January 2023, he
has been mainly responsible for the overall management of the Group'’s
production and manufacturing bases. Since March 2024, he has been
mainly responsible for the management of the Group’s procurement
center and the Office of the CEO.

Mr. Chen graduated from Yueyang Foreign Trade Vocational Technical
College (FHRZTIIMNE B ZEFAITE4R) in Yueyang, the PRC in July 2005.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. XU Lili ($8%2%£), aged 43, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on April 27, 2021. Ms. Xu has more
than 19 years of experience in financial leadership. She is now the chief
financial officer of Cloudr Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 9955), which operates ClouDr (B Z{#5), China's
Largest SaaS-based Digital Chronic Condition Management Solution
Provider. From March 2014 to September 2020, she was appointed as the
chief financial officer and executive director for Tongdao Liepin Group ([A]
EEEEEE), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6100).
Prior to that, Ms. Xu held various positions at General Electric Company,
a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: GE),
including as the chief financial officer of GE Power Generation Services
China, from January 2005 to March 2014. Ms. Xu currently serves as a
director of MINISO Group Holding Ltd (BAIEREEERERAR), a
company listed on both the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the New
York Stock Exchange (stock code: 9896.HK/MNSO.US) and Yalla Group
Limited, a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code:
YALA).

Ms. Xu is a public accountant certified by the Board of Accountancy of
Washington State of the United States since June 2012.
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Ms. Xu received a bachelor’s degree in international business from Nanjing
University (F§5AE2) in Nanjing, the PRC in June 2003 and a master of
science degree in local economic development from the London School of
Economics and Political Science in the UK in November 2004.

Ms. Xu was a director of Nenghe (Tianjin) Enterprise Management
Consulting Co. Ltd. (BER (K3F) bEEIEEBMAER QA since its
establishment in September 2017. It is a company established in the
PRC which principally engaged in provision of enterprise management
consultancy services before its cessation of business. As confirmed by
Ms. Xu, during her tenure, as the said company had ceased business
operation, its business license was revoked on June 17, 2021. Ms. Xu
confirmed that (i) the said company was solvent immediately prior to the
revocation of business license; (ii) there was no wrongful act on her part
leading to revocation of business license of the said company; (iii) she
is not aware of any actual or potential claim which has been or could
potentially be made against her as a result of revocation of business
license of the said company; and (iv) no misconduct or misfeasance had
been involved on her part in the revocation of business license of the said
company.

Mr. ZHANG Bihong (5E#354), aged 49, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on April 27, 2021.

Mr. Zhang has served as the deputy general manager responsible for
the financial management of Jonjee Hi-Tech Industrial and Commercial
Holding Co., Ltd. (FEEEFEMEERHBRAF]), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600872) from June 2021 to
July 2023, and previously as the assistant to the chairman of the board
from March 2019 to June 2021. He has also served as an independent
non-executive director and chairman of the audit committee of Pujiang
International Group Limited CRVLEIFREBE AR A 7]), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02060) since December 2016. He
has also served as the investment relationship director of Honworld
Group Limited (ZEBFMEEEHRRAF]), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2226) since June 2016, and previously as a non-
executive director from December 2013 to June 2016. From January
2010 to April 2012, Mr. Zhang served as a director and the chief financial
officer of Aoxin Tianli Group, Inc., (R X NEEHFRZAR]) (a company
currently known as Renmin Tianli Group, Inc., delisted from Nasdagq Stock
Exchange).
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Mr. Zhang has more than 28 years of experience in the areas of auditing
and taxation. He served as a senior manager at Reanda Certified Public
Accountants LLP (FIZiE & 5HAIEHFT) from October 2005 to July 2008.
Mr. Zhang also served as a partner of Zhong Cheng Xin An Rui (Beijing)
Certified Public Accountants LLP (F#{EZ % (Jb ) SFTENEFAT) from
August 2008 to October 2009. Mr. Zhang is currently a certified tax agent
in China as accredited by China Certified Tax Agents Association in June
2000. He is also a certified public accountant in China as accredited by
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants in December 2003.
He was a certified asset appraiser in China as accredited by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC in 2006.

Mr. Zhang graduated from the Forestry College of Inner Mongolia
Agricultural College (RS & #EFT) in Hohhot, the PRC with a diploma in
economics (accounting) in July 1995.

Ms. XING Dongmei (#84-#§), aged 53, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on April 27, 2021. Ms. Xing
joined East & Concord Partners (KiEFNERIEEFR) in July 2004 and
currently serves as a senior partner and member of the management
committee of the firm. She also works as an independent non-executive
director of Yinhua Fund Management Co., Ltd. (REESEEBRMHERA
A]), AVIC Shenyang Aircraft Company Limited (LR B R A 7)),
(@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600760)
and Greatwall Wealth Asset Management Company (K8 B RBE
EEERMHBRAT). Ms. Xing has over 26 years of experience in legal
practice, focusing on legal service in banking and finance, securities and
capital markets and corporate compliance. Before joining East & Concord
Partners, Ms. Xing served as an associate at C&I Partners (= 2 EF5FT)
(formerly known as China Legal Affairs Center (7 BIA/RZEFSH0) from
June 1995 to July 2004, and as a legal assistant at China Legal Affairs
Center from July 1994 to June 1995, during which time she advised on
the first and second rounds of Chinese state-owned enterprises reform
and the listing of such state-owned enterprises on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Xing is currently an expert adviser on civil and administrative law cases
of the Supreme People’s Procuratorate of the PRC (&S ARBRERE
THREMHFEHAZER). She has been selected for the fourth time as a legal
expert adviser by the China Banking Association (HEIfR1TE & A2 R
KEKE).
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Ms. Xing also takes an active role in terms of social responsibility. She
serves as a director of Beijing Lawyers Association (1t RTEEIH ),
and a supervisor of the Lead Foundation (Jt R BRKAZHESE).
She was also a representative at the 12th National Women's Congress
of China (B+-—EHEFEZRERAD). In 2019, Ms. Xing was awarded
as an A-List elite lawyer (A-List={EFEZE) by China Business Law Journal,
an Outstanding Lawyer by Chambers and Partners and an Outstanding
Lawyer in banking and finance by Asialaw Profiles 2020. She was also
recognized as one of the 2015 ALB China Top 15 Female Lawyers (2015
FP 154 22 £26W) by Asian Legal Business in October 2015.

Ms. Xing received an bachelor of laws degree from China University of
Political Science and Law (FRBIEAARZ) in Beijing, the PRC in July 1994,
and a master’s degree in law from Peking University (1t 52 K 22) in Beijing,
the PRC in July 2006.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

For the biographical details of Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping, Mr. SUN
Yinong, Mr. PENG Hongzhi, Mr. LIU Zhongsi and Mr. CHEN Lin, please see
the biographies of “Executive Directors” above.

Mr. LI Weihong (Z#E3#t), aged 50, is a vice president of the supply chain
center of the Company.

Mr. Li has over 26 years of experience in cross-category food industry.
From November 1997 to August 2022, Mr. Li held various positions
successively in Mondelez International, Inc., a company listed on Nasdaq
Stock Exchange (stock code: MDLZ), as the director of Shanghai Factory,
the general manager in manufacturing in East China, the director of
human resources of supply chain, the director of integrated supply chain
in Vietnam, the director of supply chain process improvement in Asia,
Middle East and Africa and the leader of global projects (supply chain
digitalization projects). Mr. Li joined the Group on August 15, 2022
and served as the person-in-charge of the supply chain center of the
Company. On March 3, 2023, he was appointed as the vice president of
the supply chain center by the Board.

Mr. Li graduated from Harbin Engineering University (1588 T2 A E2)
in China in July 1996, majored in thermal engineering, and received a
bachelor’s degree in engineering.
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Mr. YU Feng (5R[&), aged 33, is a senior vice president of the marketing
center and human resources center of the Company.

Mr. Yu has over 12 years of experience in the snack foods industry. From
October 2011 to May 2023, Mr. Yu served various roles in the Group,
including assistant designer, R&D engineer, R&D manager, general
manager of e-commerce center and head of media center. In August
2023, Mr. Yu was appointed by the Board of Directors as Vice President
of marketing center. Since November 2023, Mr. Yu was appointed as
the person-in-charge of the human resources center as well. Since March
2024, Mr. Yu was appointed as the senior vice president of the Company.
Mr. Yu is cousin of Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping and Mr. LIU Zhongsi,

Mr. Yu graduated from Hunan Vocational College of Science and
Technology CHEREHZEEZ2T) majoring in Animation Design in June
2011. He is currently studying for a course of general manager in China
Europe International Business School. He is also a member of Shanghai
Minhang Young Entrepreneurs Association.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. SHEN Xiaochun (Jt#%), aged 38, was appointed as the person-
in-charge of the capital market department of the Company since March
2024. In July 2021, she was appointed as the investor relations director
of the Company. In April 2021, she was appointed as a Joint Company
Secretary of the Company. She joined our Group in October 2020 and has
been responsible for investor relations management since then. Prior to
joining our Group, Ms. Shen served as a senior investor relations director
of Zhejiang Panxing Information Technology Co., Ltd. (I T 2 B{Z B,
iR 2 a]) from October 2019 to May 2020. From December 2016 to
September 2019, she served as a senior investor relations manager of
Comba Telecom Systems Holdings Limited ({215 ZFIER AR A7),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2342). Ms. Shen also
served as an assistant to the chairman of the board and the secretary to
the board in Aoxin Tianli Group, Inc., (B X W EEHRAF)) (a company
currently known as Renmin Tianli Group, Inc., delisted from Nasdaqg Stock
Exchange) from January 2010 to December 2016. She also worked as
the manager for the English department in Wuhan Sense Translation &
Interpretation Co., Ltd. (EUEME+#ZEHBRE A F]) from July 2007 to
January 2010.

Ms. Shen obtained her bachelor of arts degree from Hubei University of
Education (81t 58 —EM&3E2P%) in Wuhan, the PRC in June 2007, and her
master’s degree in international banking and finance, partially through
online course from the University of Salford in the UK in November 2019.

Ms. Shen received the Qualification Certificate of Board Secretary from
Shanghai Stock Exchange in May 2017.
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Mr. LI Kin Wai (Zf#), was appointed as a Joint Company Secretary of
the Company on April 27, 2021. Mr. Li is a senior manager of Corporate
Services of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional services provider
specializing in integrated business corporate and investor services. He has
over 10 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field.

Mr. Li is a Chartered Secretary and an associate member of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance
Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators). He obtained a master’s degree in corporate governance
from The Open University of Hong Kong.
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Report of the Directors

EFEWE

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2023.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is a leading spicy snack food company in China, mainly
engaged in the production and sales of spicy snack food in China.
The Group’s major products cover seasoned flour products, vegetable
products, bean-based and other products, etc.

We focus on turning authentic Chinese gourmet into casual snack
food that consumers can enjoy anywhere and anytime. Our products
accompanied the youthhood of the millennials in China, who became
our first loyal customers. Meanwhile, under the product development
philosophy of “maximizing the intrinsic value of nature with an
industrialized approach”, and with our outstanding category development
ability, we have diversified into vegetable products and bean-based
products. Our modern and well received products have satisfied the taste
buds of generations and accumulated a broad and customer base across
various age groups.

We constantly adapt to changing purchasing behavior of consumers and
have quickly expanded to supermarkets, chained convenience stores and
e-commerce channels, which have wide exposure to young consumers.
Meanwhile, we have strengthened our presence on major e-commerce
platforms. We use e-commerce and social media channels to build a
trendy and engaging brand image through interactive marketing activities,
turning young consumers into our natural brand promoters.

Leveraging our strong brand recognition, product competitiveness and
channel distribution capability, we believe that we will continue to
increase our market share and capitalize on future growth opportunities
in the spicy snack food industry.

Please see the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and notes
to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report, for a
pertinent review of the Group’s business and analysis using financial key
performance indicators, the major risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and a discussion on the future development of the Group’s business.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's results also depend on the support of key relationships
with suppliers, customers and employees. The Company maintains good
relationships with suppliers, customers and employees to ensure smooth
business operations.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
An analysis of the results of the Group for the Current Year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of operations of the Group for the Current Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 103 of the annual
report.

SHARES ISSUED
There is no change in share capital of the Company in the Current Year as
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

Based on the Group’s overall performance for the Year, and taking
into account the Group's surplus, overall financial position and capital
expenditures, at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, the Board will propose a final cash dividend of RMB0.10 per
share as of the Current Year (inclusive of tax, totaling approximately
RMB235.1 million), and a Special Dividend of RMBO0.11 per share (inclusive
of tax, totaling approximately RMB258.6 million) considering that 2023
is the 1st anniversary of the Listing of the Group. The distribution of Final
Dividend and Special Dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Further
details of the dividends are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company is not liable for any claim arising from the failure to
determine in a timely manner or erroneously determine the status of the
shareholders or any dispute over the withholding mechanism. The Board
of Directors is not aware that any shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividend.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We may pay dividends in cash or otherwise as the Board considers
appropriate. Distribution of dividends is at the discretion of the Board
and, if necessary, subject to the approval of the Shareholders. The
Board may propose future dividend distributions, in consideration of our
results of operations, financial position, operating requirements, capital
requirements, shareholders’ equity and any other conditions that the
Board may deem relevant.

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, our dividend policy is to
distribute to our shareholders no less than 25% of our distributable
profits for any particular year after the Listing. We cannot assure you
that we will be able to distribute dividends of the above amount or any
amount, or at all, in any year. The declaration and payment of dividends
may also be limited by legal restrictions and by loan or other agreements
that the Company and our subsidiaries have entered into or may enter
into in the future. Any declaration and payment as well as the amount
of dividends will be subject to our constitutional documents and the
Cayman Companies Act. We are a holding company incorporated under
the laws of the Cayman Islands. As a result, the payment and amount of
any future dividends will depend on the availability of dividends received
from our subsidiaries and other reserves lawfully available for distribution.
Our shareholders may approve any declaration of dividends in a general
meeting, which must not exceed the amount recommended by our Board.
No dividend shall be declared or payable except out of our profits and
reserves lawfully available for distribution.

DONATION

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Current
Year totaled RMB2,347,804 (2022: RMB2,021,391).

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS AND
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group’s business operations are principally conducted in China and
the Company’s shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Our
business is mainly subject to the laws of China, Hong Kong and other
relevant regions. During the year ended December 31, 2023 and up to the
Latest Practicable Date, we complied with relevant laws and regulations
in the applicable areas which had a significant impact on the Group.
Specifically, the operations of the Group as a spicy snack food producer in
China are subject to applicable food safety and environmental protection
laws and regulations of China. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not commit any material breach of these laws and regulations.

PURCHASE, DISPOSAL AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, disposed of
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities for the year ended
December 31, 2023 and up to the Latest Practicable Date.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING FHARERERR

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on  ZAAFIRRMDHR2022F 12 15 B LT - B .-
December 15, 2022. From the Listing Date to December 31, 2023, the T HHEIREE E2023F 128310 * ZAEBECRIER
Group progressively utilised the proceeds from the Initial Public Offering IR EFr&EEERAZRFTERE N AFRERESHIE o
according to the intended use set out in the Prospectus.

The net proceeds from the Initial Public Offering of the shares of the  ZARATIRHDARBERZFIER EMH BN AFEERER
Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (after deducting S EHzB(RINBEEERALEMBREAER%)4 /59033
underwriting fees and other related expenses) were approximately HEBIT o B ZE2023F 128318 * XEBEDRIER
HK$903.3 million. As of December 31, 2023, the Group utilized total EEFERTEHEE 2 HAMERIETHNL328.88
proceeds of approximately HK$328.8 million for the intended purposes EHTT @ (hFTEEEESM36.4% @ #2 N KRB AE
set out in the Prospectus, accounting for 36.4% of all raised funds, and  FIB4)A574 6B EBTT ©

the remaining unutilized proceeds were approximately HK$574.6 million.

Expected
Net Unutilized Actual Unutilized timeline Expected
proceeds  netamount netamount  netamount forfully  timeline as
from the as at utilized as at utilizing disclosed
Intended purposes of Listing December 31, for the December 31, unutilized in the
net proceeds FERERERERE available 2022  Current Year 2023 netamount  Prospectus
£m R20224 R2023%F BES

BgEs 128318 KEE 12A31H BRFE RRES
AR tei R ) A ERER e A E A S HEN wEH
HE bk k| B ERNE  BEREX
(HKS million)  (HK$ million) ~ (HK$ million) ~ (HK$ million)
(Bg#r) (BE®T) (AB#T) (ABAT)

Production facilities and supply EESmALERER 514.9 507.1 95.5 416 23yearsF  3-5yearsF
chain system

Expanding our sales and ARHENL RS 1355 1355 118.6 16.9 Tyeard  3-5years®
distribution network

Brand building RIEER 903 803 66.4 13.9 Tyearf  3-5yearsf

Product R &D activities and EmfEEHR 903 90.0 152 748 1-2years®  3-5years
enhancement of R 8D capabilities  #Za HiETt

Advancing the construction of HEESELER 723 723 14.9 574 1-2years®  3-5yearsF
digitization and intelligence

Total s 903.3 885.2 310.6 574.6 - -

Note: Due to rounding, there may be a difference between the sum of the — MiFF : BHREERAAMKRE - FLLAIKHIEZ MEEE A5

individual sub-values and the total amount. The balance of the proceeds BRZE - BRRFABREMERIEARIGEBRIEER
from the Initial Public Offering will continue to be utilized according to the ERTE ARG RLOIER - FEFIBNTEEEER
purposes and proportions disclosed in the Prospectus. The expected time R RIARLE R IBRR E R AT B M TR AR R R B PRl
for the full use of the proceeds was earlier than disclosed in the Prospectus, DEEARAREE ST A EERITEIFTE - 1k
which was mainly due to the Group’s reassessment of the business Hh - ZRIAFTNRATRUARRM BTN S -
execution plan. In addition, taking into account of the Company’s long- EESRZIVEBRETRENUNEEMBRH T
term development and changes in the supply of raw materials, the Board Rkt E o

of Directors decided to cancel the plan for construction of a new plant in
Quijing, Yunnan Province as disclosed in the Prospectus.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the name, principal place of business, country of incorporation
and issued share capital of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the changes in the reserves of the Group and the Company for
the year ended December 31, 2023 are set out in notes 25 and 36 to the
consolidated financial statements in the annual report respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
The distributable reserve of the Company as at December 31, 2023 was
RMB1,283.3 million (2022: RMB2,114.8 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Current Year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS
Details of the Group’s borrowings during the Current Year are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the Current Year, the Group did not issue corporate bonds.

KEY CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Current Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers and
total purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for less than
10% and 25% respectively. To the best knowledge of the Directors, save
as disclosed in the Group’s Prospectus, none of the Directors or their
associates or any shareholder who is expected to have 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company have any interest in the Group'’s five
largest suppliers and five largest customers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has maintained Directors’ liability insurance to protect the
Directors of the Company against any potential losses arising from his/
her actual or alleged misconduct. During the Current Year and up to the
Latest Practicable Date, the permitted indemnity provision (as defined in
section 9 of the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D
of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was and is being in force for the benefit of
the Directors of the Company.

TEMBE LA
AEBXEMBARZ AR  EBEEHY MK
TER KB BITRAZ HERNA O B WA
35¢

fE
BHE2023F12A3MHIUEFE - AEBRARNGHFE
FEE B D BIEN A FRE FH S RER M 725 KT
5136 °

At DIk E
ARNBFR2023F 12 A3TMHWM A EHRHEEAEARE

i — e —

1,283.3BBL(20224F : AR¥E2,1148B&ETT) °

M - BMERRE
NAFE  AEBYE  BEREHEESHNFHBIN
AP R TRRMIFES o

B8
RAEE » AREZ EEFEHN A HIM BRI T
29 °

RITHERER
RAFE - AEELRBTARES -

FEEFRMHE

REE  DRHREASEERAATFPZHEELR
10% « AAEERS 2 HBREON25% - RESFT
M- BRAEEBRBREMEEEIN  BEEENEHE
ARG AR BB BEITIRANP A 5% 3 A _F4E
FEHEARRARNEEAAESERE  ARAELHH
B -

EERFVRERIRX

ARFDRRESEARR - URADNEETLLH
SERAMELEE L uBEEOTETAMIHN
BRI ME S RIRE  EAFEENRBERETT
B8 BRARAIEAEROREEORERT (R
8RB A0 FE6220E(A R (EFRE) RIS
OffF) B 48 R IEAE A 5% -

DR ERSRIZRERD A
2023 F#f

73



74

Report of the Directors BB =2 iRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Company and its connected persons (as defined under the
Listing Rules) constitute connected transactions of the Company. The
Company regulates and manages such transactions in compliance with
the Listing Rules. The followings are the non-fully exempt continuing
connected transactions conducted by the Group during the Reporting
Period.

NON-FULLY EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

As of December 31, 2023, the following transactions are conducted in
the ordinary and usual course of business of our Group and on normal
commercial terms or better, where the highest relevant percentage ratios
(except for the profits ratio) for the three years ending December 31, 2024
calculated for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules will, as the
Company expect, be more than 5% on an annual basis. Pursuant to Rules
14A.49, 14A.71, 14A.35 and 14A.36 of the Listing Rules, the transactions
will be subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.

The following table sets out the proposed annual cap for such transactions
and actual transaction amounts:

FEXS

RIBCETRBDRE - RAREARRNEEAL
(R ETRADPAIER)HNZ SBKA R R BER
2 HRZER S » ARRHRRK EHRAD T IAR
MER - UTAAEERREDREMET 2T ERZE
HRREmeExs -

TEZHERRSERERS

HZE2023F12A31H1E - W TR G HIEAEEN—
MRIEFEFBRERZ —MMNE ERERRET A
NETEFAEE2024F12 A31BIL=EEE - BE( L
TMHRADETHWAZHENEEAEBE DL R (BRI
KRINIZFEEETIBERN5%  RIFCETRED
F14A.49 ~ 14A.71 ~ 14A35F114A 3615 * 2 EX 5
ST - FEEN - AERBSRRIVERT ©

ATRBIIE T HERSNERFEIH SR ERM
ERZ SR

Actual transaction
amount for the

year ended
Proposed annual December 31,
cap for 2023 2023
BZE2023F
#2023 F 12A31HLEFE
FE LR BERRZHER
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥BET) (AR¥RBET)
Total expenses paid by the Group to Luohe AREEAPR)A T EEEFHZEE 196 134.8
Delong Color Printing Development BRAR([{EEEFEN])M
Co., Ltd (“Delong Color Printing” )" YRR E B E MR
for the purchase of packing materials BEMNERESE
Total 4t 196 134.8
(1) A company owned as to 30% by Mr. LIU Fuping and therefore an associate (1) —FRAZEBFEEEBI0%RENAT - it AH M

of our Controlling Shareholder.
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PACKAGING MATERIALS SUPPLY FRAMEWORK
AGREEMENT

We entered into a framework agreement on supply of packaging materials
with Delong Color Printing (the “Packaging Materials Supply Framework
Agreement”) on November 29, 2022, pursuant to which Delong Color
Printing will provide food packaging materials to our Group.

The initial term of the Packaging Materials Supply Framework Agreement
will commence on the Listing Date and end on December 31, 2024, and
can be renewed upon its expiry as agreed by the parties to the agreement.

Separate underlying agreements will be entered into which will set out
the details of materials, purchase price, payment method and other details
of the materials supply arrangements in the manner provided in the
Packaging Materials Supply Framework Agreement. The definitive terms
of each of such agreements will be determined on a case-by-case basis
and on fair and reasonable basis after arm’s length negotiation between
the parties.

Delong Color Printing has historically supplied packaging materials to
members of the Group due to its satisfactory products, favorable prices,
and geographical advantage. In addition, our Group and Delong Color
Printing have a long term, stable relationship and Delong Color Printing is
familiar with our business needs and requirements. Based on our previous
experience in business dealing with Delong Color Printing, we believe
Delong Color Printing is capable of effectively satisfying our demands for
the relevant products and services in a stable and reliable manner.

The purchase price payable by us to Delong Color Printing under the
Packaging Materials Supply Framework Agreement will be determined
through a bidding process according to the internal rules and procedures
of the Group. We will send bidding documents to selected suppliers,
collect and compare quotes offered by at least two Independent Third
Parties for products of the same or similar quality. The Group will also
take into consideration the cost of materials provided, the quality of the
materials, as well as the production scale and capacity of the supplier.
The winning bidder and the purchase price of packaging materials will be
subject to approval of our procurement departments.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the proposed annual cap
for transactions contemplated under the Packaging Materials Supply
Framework Agreement was RMB196 million, while the actual amount
incurred was RMB134.8 million.

BEMBHABERT R
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2024512 3181 WA HS HRERER
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the above non-fully exempt continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that these transactions had been
entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
ii. either on normal commercial terms or on better terms; and

iii. in accordance with relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Group as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditors of the Group to perform work in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and report whether anything has come to their attention.

In a letter to the Board, the Group's auditor confirmed that with regard to
the above continuing connected transactions entered into during the year
ended December 31, 2023:

nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board of the Company.

ii. nothing has come to their attention that causes the auditor to
believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions.

iii. for the aggregate amount of the continuing connected transactions
as set out above, nothing has come to their attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the amount of the transactions exceeds
the annual cap for the Group.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended December 31, 2023, there
are no other related party transactions or continuing related party
transactions set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements
which constitute discloseable connected transactions or discloseable
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules. In respect of
the connected transactions and the continuing connected transactions,
the Group has complied with the disclosure requirements of the Listing
Rules (as amended from time to time).

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2023

RBCETRADF14ASSE - BUIFRTEFCDE
BA LT EZERENHERERS - WHERBZER
5

MARSE B E %%+

737

onk

T

i. IR — RPN B FETT &

i, BEAREHEEIET  TRIERATL
12 - 3 B A AEERROBETE -

REBCEMRADE14A 5615 EFECRBAKERZ
HENRIEE B R RIS ERIE 30005k (KIERT ) F&
BB BB LN BEZIET TR - YRS
ERBEMEESIERENTE -

AEEZEEMNREFT S NP ER - SLEE2023%F
12A31RIEFEAT D ERER M S ¢

H BRI EIE - USSR RAERE
MFEBEIHREARREFTEHAE

i. HAWSBIR A FIE - UBRBERBREHR
SFUBEMEEATERBEREZERZNA
BAWh AR AL ©

i.  BENAEFEREXSINESEMS - EX
BRIREMER  ABRBEIR RB R ER
ER S RBARREFI I MEE LR

B B EESN - B E2023F12A31HIEFEE » %A
IR A G EHRR M 34N T B 5 X 558
MBI RSB ETHRANDETEATEENEER
SRETEBENBENBERS - REESRIFE
FERSME @ AEEDETCETRRTERE
HIRTEEK -



Report of the Directors BB =2 iRE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographies of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out in the section headed "Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of the annual report.

The list of Directors during the Reporting Period and as at the Latest

EERENEEEBERE

AEBEERSRERENERSNAFRIEER
SRERERE | -

BEHRALRBEREATAMGRETHINNES

Practicable Date (unless otherwise stated) is set out below:

Name

#E
Mr. LIU Weiping

i

Mr. LIU Fuping

RS

Mr. SUN Yinong
BREE

Mr. PENG Hongzhi

Mr. CHEN Lin

it

Ms. XU Lil
RRRL L

Mr. ZHANG Bihong

KL E
Ms. XING Dongmei

kS o3

Position

Bt

Chairman and
executive Director

ESRRUITES

Executive Director and
Vice Chairman

BITEFRRESR

Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer
NTEERERITE

Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer and
Senior Vice President
HITESHRERIKE
ETUERE

Executive Director and Senior
Vice President

BITEERERE B

Executive Director and Senior
Vice President

HTEEFEREIER

Independent
Non-executive Director

BUFHITES

Independent
Non-executive Director

BUFHITES

Independent
Non-executive Director

BUFHITES

Relationship with other
Directors and senior
management
BHMESER
BREEENRE
Brother of Mr. LIU Fuping;
Cousin of Mr. LIU Zhongsi
BT
BBEENER

2

Brother of Mr. LIU Weiping;
Cousin of Mr. LIU Zhongsi

ETRENRS
HpREENER

N/A

n

Cousin of Mr. LIU Zhongsi

HRERLNRR

Cousin of Mr. LIU Weiping and
Mr. LIU Fuping; Cousin of
Mr. PENG Hongzhi and
Mr. CHEN Lin

ETRERBBT LN
ERPRERER
RIRFENR S

Cousin of Mr. LIU Zhongsi
BB REENRS

N/A

&

N/A

S

s

N/A

B

s

HEWNT :

Commencement

date of the Expiry date of
Time of joining current term the current term
the Group of office of office
MAR S B FEEHRRES AREHERAH
Since the establishment  April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024

of the Group
BARERILIR 2021647278 2024547268
Since the establishment  April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
of the Group
BAREEKILIAR 2021647278 2024547268
September 2021 April 27, 2022 April 26, 2024
2021%9A 2022F4R278 2024547268
October 2010 April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
2010%10A 202154R278 2024547268
July 2007 August 18, 2021 April 26, 2024
2007%7R 202148 718H 2024547268
June 2009 April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
200966 A4 2021544278 2024%4 7268
April 2021 April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
202164R 2021544278 2024547268
April 2021 April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
202164R 2021544278 2024547268
April 2021 April 27, 2021 April 26, 2024
202154 A 202141278 2024547268
DRERERERERDF
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PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

AND APPOINTMENT LETTERS

(a) Executive Directors
Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with us pursuant to which they agreed to act as executive Directors
for an initial term of three years with effect from the date of their
appointments. Either party has the right to give not less than three
months’ written notice to terminate the agreement.

(b) Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
an appointment letter with our Company. The initial term for their
appointment letters shall be three years from the date of their
appointments or until the third annual general meeting of the
Company since the Listing Date, whichever ends earlier, (subject
always to re-election as and when required under the Articles of
Association) until terminated in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the appointment letter or by either party giving to the
other not less than three months’ prior notice in writing.

None of the Directors had a service contract with the Company
which was not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND FIVE HIGHEST-PAID INDIVIDUALS
The Company offers the executive Directors and senior management,
as its employees, with remuneration in the form of salaries, allowances,
benefits in kind, performance-related bonuses, share-based payment,
pensions, and other social insurance benefits. Independent non-executive
Directors are remunerated according to their duties (including serving as
members or chairmen of the Board committees).

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, senior management of the
Group and the five highest-paid individuals for 2023 are set out in notes 9
and 37 to the consolidated financial statements in the annual report.
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For the year ended December 31, 2023, the remuneration of members of
senior management (including executive Directors) by pay range is set out
below:

Range F

HK$0 to 1,000,000 0%1,000,000/ 7T
HK$1,000,001 to 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to 2,000,000
Above HK$2,000,001 2,000,001 TA
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS
For the year ended December 31, 2023, none of the Company’s Directors
or entities connected with them had any material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any significant transactions, arrangements or contracts to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a

party.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

For the year ended December 31, 2023, none of the Directors, the
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries or their respective associates had
any interest in a business, which competes or is likely to compete, directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Company and its subsidiaries (except
as acting as Directors and/or directors of their subsidiaries and their
respective associates), which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules.

1,000,001%1,500,000/% 7T
1,500,001%2,000,000/% 7T

HZE2023F12A31HIEFE  aREEEKE(BE
WITER ) RFNSHE D OFBET 0T ¢

Number of
individuals

AE

O O O O

ESHEERS  REREBEATHAE

HE2023F12A31AEFE ARREFHHEFSE
BRENERAREAR A EA MM E R R kR R
BARGIVATIMNEZERS « THARFTZHEM
EEsk g E AR -

EEERFERPHER
HE2023F12A31ALLEFE  EF - AREETH
BRBIZEETRHES B 2BEATHELFMER
RNEIREME R EBER T F LT REERREF (T
wEEIMEE) CEETHRAES(FREER HE
MEBARIZERERESSBZHBEALRIN) WA
BB ETTIRBIES 101 2 IRE T IAREE o
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of December 31, 2023, the interests or short positions of our Directors
and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
our Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, which will have to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which will be required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein,
or which will be required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

EERESTRAEREQ AR EBEE
Bz~ HERG RERER ZBHER K
B

MR2023F 128310 EERESTBRABRAAT
R - BERD REEETEARB(ESF RS
&BIYEXVERET R85 SBAEME ANA A KB X TR 4
wmoAR (EE B(EFRIEKRFDEXVE) (B ER
B(EH RS RN EBRIECEEERBAEERN
AR » SRECES KA EEHI)EE 352167850
SRR ZIGFTIE B MRS sk R - SIRIBC TR
BIDETECZ AT RN BRNE A A A R R AT R 3
KEWT

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in  Long position/

Number of the total issued short position/

Name Nature of interest shares held share capital (%) Lending pool
BB BTRA
HEREN FEOKES

HE ERME BENRG BABDE(%) THERHRE
Mr. LIU Weiping™@® Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position

(note 1,2,3)
2R EME BrEX@mA (BIz£1,2,3) HE
Mr. LIU Fuping®@® Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
2B L ENRE BN HE
Mr. SUN Yinong® Beneficial Owner 7,326,683 0.31%  Long Position
HIMBFEE® ERBEBA HE
Mr. PENG Hongzhi® Beneficial Owner 5,601,592 0.24%  Long Position
ERETES ERBEBA HE
Mr. LIU Zhongsi® Beneficial Owner 6,521,919 0.28%  Long Position
2B B EEE ERBEBA HE
Mr. CHEN Lin® Beneficial Owner 5,122,216 0.22%  Long Position
PRI £ ERBEBA HE

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes:

(1) The Integrity Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green
Philosophy (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH Innovation
Group (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr. LIU Weiping
and Mr. LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust Company
Limited acting as the trustee. The Integrity Trust is interested in 95% of
shareholding in HH Global Capital through two intermediary entities, namely
Amused Town Limited and Adroit Fairy Limited.

(2)  The He He Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green Philosophy
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH Innovation Group (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr.
LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust Company Limited
acting as the trustee. The He He Trust is interested in 5% of shareholding in
HH Global Capital through two intermediary entities, namely Beacon Flash
Limited and Decision Stone Limited.

(3)  Immediately following the completion of the Global Offering, Mr. LIU
Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping, through their trust vehicles and various
intermediary subsidiaries (including HH Global Capital, Amused Town
Limited, Decision Stone Limited, Adroit Fairy Limited, Beacon Flash Limited,
HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group), were collectively interested
in approximately 80.99% of our enlarged issued share capital, thus they
remained as the group of our Controlling Shareholders. Accordingly, each
of Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping is deemed to be interested in the
1,904,243,183 shares held by HH Global Capital for purpose of Part XV of
the SFO.

(4)  Mr. SUN Yinong is interested in 7,326,683 underlying shares relating to the
RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

(5)  Mr. PENG Hongzhi is interested in 5,601,592 underlying shares relating to the
RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

(6)  Mr. LIU Zhongsi is interested in 6,521,919 underlying shares relating to the
RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

(7)  Mr. CHEN Lin is interested in 5,122,216 underlying shares relating to the
RSUs granted to him pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2023, none of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the requirements of the Model Code.

G

3)

(5)

The Integrity Trust 2 LA FI A1 4% 538 & (B@T F L £/
2EMBLR) RMMEBAEIF (BT EENDEN
BRA)AERRAMEBILMNET  EFREEHTEER
ZIEFEEAREALERERERARAITA -
The Integrity Trusti@BiBRIZ 71 & 88 (BlAmused Town
Limited & Adroit Fairy Limited ) 7 A1 2 B & 495% K
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The He He Trust2 AFIFI4R RIS (BEFLENEE
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A AZEAMBIHET - HRRAETEEREET
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RIGHTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR BONDS

During the Current Year, none of the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding company or subsidiaries of its holding company entered into
any arrangement that enables the Directors and chief executive of the
Company to obtain benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN
Details of the retirement benefit plan are set out in note 2.16 and note
9(a) to the financial statements.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at December 31, 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
the interests or short positions of the following persons (other than
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EERBRERTBRARBERONER 22
il

RAFE - ARF - AEAMBAR - RERATK
EERA RMOME A R T2 - REAR
Az EFREBTHABEBREARRAREME
fto % A AR MO BRAA 55 T 1 F 2 o

BIKERIGE
ERARKSTBFHBEEHNA H S ®mKRMIFE2.16 W
9(@a) °

FERRRAQXTRG REER G ER
5879

HZE2023F12A318  REEAA - LFAL(IIE
EERARRESTHAB)RARRAR RN &8 #ERK
NHREBRIB(ES MEEEN)FE3364EMETHE
ST SR I UK R

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding in  Long position/

Number of the total issued short position/

Name Nature of interest shares held share capital (%) Lending pool
EERITRABER FE %Ke/

HE ERtE FENRG EOEABES(%) THELHRG
HH Global Capital™™® Beneficial owner 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
AMMEIRER0@ ERBEBA A
Mr. LIU Weiping@®® Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Ik EQe BREXEA HE
HH Green Philosophy?@ Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
AR IR 2w BN e
The Integrity Trust@® Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
The Integrity Trust@@ SR E RS TR
Adroit Fairy Limited@®® Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Adroit Fairy Limited@@ A B oe
Amused Town Limited@® Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Amused Town Limited@@ S EE R TR
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Long position/

Number of the total issued short position/

Name Nature of interest shares held share capital (%) Lending pool
EERITRABER FE %8/
HE EEME FENRG REOBABES(%) THELHRG
The Core Trust Company Trustee 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Limited®®®

[EREFEAR AR A TR
Mr. LIU Fuping@®@ Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
2R kL BREEEA HE
HH Innovation Group®® Beneficiary of trust 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
AL EEIFHE@ EFEX@mA 3y}
The He He Trust®@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99% Long Position
The He He Trust®® Sy rEER TR
Beacon Flash Limited®@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99%  Long Position
Beacon Flash Limited®@ R EEER 55
Decision Stone Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 1,904,243,183 80.99% Long Position

Decision Stone Limited®@

(1

@)

(©)

XEmrEER

As of December 31, 2023, HH Global Capital directly held 1,904,243,183
shares of the Company.

The Integrity Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green
Philosophy (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH Innovation
Group (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr. LIU Weiping
and Mr. LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust Company
Limited acting as the trustee. The Integrity Trust is interested in 95% of
shareholding in HH Global Capital through two intermediary entities, namely
Amused Town Limited and Adroit Fairy Limited.

The He He Trust is a trust established for the benefit of HH Green Philosophy
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Weiping) and HH Innovation Group (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. LIU Fuping), with Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr.
LIU Fuping acting as the protectors and The Core Trust Company Limited
acting as the trustee. The He He Trust is interested in 5% of shareholding in
HH Global Capital through two intermediary entities, namely Beacon Flash
Limited and Decision Stone Limited.

M

e

BZE2023F12A318 - MIFEHEREEFBEALA
1,904,243,183R%f% 5 °

The Integrity Trust2 LAFIA&E 232 & (RIB F LA ®
2EWEAR]) RMAMEBAF (BB FEENZEN
BAR)AIHAMBUMNET  HREAFFLEER
2R T EERREALERERERATATTA
The Integrity Trusti@ BRI /> & 2 (BlAmused Town
Limited &z Adroit Fairy Limited ) 7 F1 A 2 3 & A8 95% Ky
ARt A s o

The He He Trust@ AFIFI4R @125 (BEFLENEE
WEAR) RAMMEEAF (ZETEENZENBR
) AT EAMBRIET  ERREFLERRIET
EERBREABERETARATAZIEA © The He
He Trustif i@ MK F1 /1 B 82 (B0Beacon Flash Limited &
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(4)  As of December 31, 2023, Mr. LIU Weiping and Mr. LIU Fuping, through
their trust vehicles and various intermediary subsidiaries (including HH Global
Capital, Amused Town Limited, Decision Stone Limited, Adroit Fairy Limited,
Beacon Flash Limited, HH Green Philosophy and HH Innovation Group), were
collectively interested in approximately 80.99% of our enlarged issued share
capital, thus they remained as the group of our Controlling Shareholders.
Accordingly, each of Mr. LIU Weiping, Mr. LIU Fuping, HH Green Philosophy,
HH Innovation Group, The Integrity Trust, The He He Trust, Adroit Fairy
Limited, Beacon Flash Limited, Amused Town Limited, Decision Stone Limited,
The Core Trust Company Limited and HH Global Capital is deemed to be
interested in the 1,904,243,183 shares held by HH Global Capital for purpose
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2023, the Directors were
not aware that any other person had any interest and/or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of our Company which would fall to be
disclosed to us pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or, who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of
the nominal value of any class of our share capital carrying rights to vote
in all circumstances at general meetings of our Company.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” of
the Report of the Directors, (i) no significant contracts were entered into
by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries during the Current
Year; and (i) there are no significant contracts in relation to the provision
of services by the Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the
Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Since the Listing Date and up to December 31, 2023, the Company had
not entered into or maintained any equity-linked agreement which would
or could result in the issuance of shares by the Company, or which would
or could require the issuance of shares by the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the
Company to offer new shares to existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions in the ordinary course of business
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements in the
annual report. Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” above, these related party transactions are carried out in the
ordinary course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms
or better, and the Directors of the Company currently expect that each
relevant percentage ratio calculated under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules (other than the profits ratio) will be less than 0.1% on an annual
basis. Pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, the transactions
will be exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08(1) of the Listing Rules requires that there must be an open
market in the securities for which listing is sought, and a sufficient public
float of an issuer’s listed securities shall be maintained. Generally, at least
25% of an issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held
by the public. Pursuant to Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, the Stock
Exchange may, subject to certain conditions and at its discretion, accept
a lower percentage of between 15% and 25% in the case of issuers with
an expected market capitalization at the time of listing of over HK$10
billion.

The Stock Exchange confirmed that it would exercise its discretion under
Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, provided that the minimum public
float of the Company shall be the highest of (i) 15% of the total issued
share capital of the Company; (ii) the percentage of shares held by the
public (including pre-IPO investors) after the completion of the Global
Offering, namely 17.06%. Based on information publicly available to the
Company as of the Latest Practicable Date and to the knowledge of the
Directors, the Directors confirmed that the above minimum public float
required by the Stock Exchange was maintained by the Company from
the Listing Date to the date of the report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

There was no contract concerning the management or administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company which
was entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
During the Reporting Period, the Group was not involved in any material
legal proceedings.

LOANS AND GUARANTEES

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not directly or indirectly
provide any loans or loan guarantees to the Directors, senior management,
Controlling Shareholders or their respective connected persons of the
Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

For details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance, please
see the Group’s 2023 Sustainability Report (ESG Report) issued with the
report.

ENTRUSTED AND MATURED DEPOSITS

As of December 31, 2023, the Group did not have entrusted deposits
with financial institutions in China, or any matured deposits which were
overdue and could not be withdrawn.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION FOR HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief to which any holder of the
Company's securities is entitled as a result of holding such securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company received an annual confirmation of independence from
the independent non-executive Directors, based on which the Company
believed that all independent non-executive Directors were independent
under the Listing Rules.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at December 31, 2023, the total number of employees of the Group
was 6,079, and during the Reporting Period, the total employee benefits
(including Directors’ remuneration) amounted to approximately RMB985.4
million. We always believe that the Group’s long-term growth depends on
the expertise and capability of our employees. We proactively optimize the
talent selection and cultivation mechanism in order to improve the overall
competitiveness of our employees and their sense of belongings to the
Group.

The human resources are one of the Group’s most important assets and
the key to the continuous growth of the Group’s business. The Group’s
remuneration policy is determined by the salary levels in different regions,
employee rank and performance and the market conditions. Apart from
basic remuneration, for all employees in Mainland China, the Group
makes contributions towards employee mandatory social security schemes
including pensions, unemployment compensation, work-related injury
insurance, maternity insurance and medical insurance in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations of Mainland China. The Group
also makes contributions towards housing provident fund schemes for
employees in Mainland China as required by applicable local laws and
regulations in Mainland China. For employees in Hong Kong and other
countries, the Group also makes contributions towards relevant insurance
schemes, pension schemes and provident fund as required by applicable
local laws and regulations. The pensions and unemployment insurance
belong to defined contributions schemes. The Group does not have the
right to confiscate the contributions, and therefore has no use of the
contributions for the year ended December 31, 2023. Meanwhile, we also
provide annual health examinations, holiday benefits, etc., so as to fully
protect our employees through a variety of benefit measures. Besides,
performance bonus and other incentive systems are established to
recognize and encourage organizations and employees which have made
outstanding contributions to the Group’s business. Generally, a salary
review is conducted annually to make sure that the overall remuneration
policy is competitive.

The Group has introduced human resource management system, which
facilitates the decision makers and management team to comprehensively
and timely understand the Company’s employee structure and the
growth status of its employees, and helps human resource department
to continuously improve the organizational structure of human resources
according to business development, thus greatly improving the business
collaborative efficiency.
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At the same time, the Group systematically plans the functions of each
department, attaches importance to the complementary allocation within
the Group in the selection and appointment of talents, pays attention to
the comprehensive performance assessment of the team and individual in
the assessment of personnel ability, and supplements the introduction of
external outstanding talents on the basis of the training of internal talents
to consummate the construction of the entire talent echelon.

The Group emphasizes on employee training and development, and has
established a systematic talent training system for providing employee
development resources and platforms. Based on the Group’s strategic
development needs, our training system is developed from three
aspects, namely basic general training, business professional training
and competency improvement training, with the aim of helping talents
improve their ability to achieve both organizational mission and personal
mission. At the same time, the Group has established an online unified
knowledge and information sharing platform named “Fenxiang Tang (5
Z &) ", through which the knowledge and information is disseminated
S0 as to add value among employees.

In strict compliance with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China
and the Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Group
pays labor remuneration and makes contributions to social insurance
and housing provident funds for its employees. Meanwhile, we also
provide annual check-ups, holiday benefits, etc., so as to fully protect our
employees through a variety of benefit measures.
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EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE SCHEME
In order to motivate and reward the Directors, senior management
members and other employees who contributed to the development
of the Group, the Company adopted the RSU Scheme pursuant to the
resolution of shareholders dated January 1, 2021. The main contents of
the RSU Scheme are summarized as follows:

1. Purpose
The purpose of the RSU Scheme was to provide incentives and
rewards to Directors, senior management members and other
employees who contributed to the development of the Group.

2. RSU participants in the RSU Scheme

Participants of the RSU Scheme (the “RSU Participants”) are selected
by the Board from our Directors (executive or non-executive, but
excluding independent non-executive Directors), management,
officers and existing employees of the Company or any member of
the Group.

3.  Number of shares and maximum number of shares

that each participant is eligible to receive

The number of RSUs to be granted shall be determined at the sole
and absolute discretion of the Board and may differ among selected
RSU Participants. The total number of shares which may be issued
under the RSU Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the total issued
share capital of the Company upon the approval of the general
meeting of the Company for the RSU Scheme, or 235,114,557
shares (representing 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of the report). The total number
of shares granted or to be granted to any participant shall not
exceed 1% of the total issued share capital of the Company upon
the approval of the general meeting of the Company for the RSU
Scheme namely 23,511,455 shares.

4. Vesting period
The awards to be granted will be vested and unrestricted pursuant
to the terms of the respective grant letters to the individual RSU
Participant.

5. Consideration for application for incentive shares
All awards under the RSU Scheme are granted at nil consideration.
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(1

(2)

Term of the scheme

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board,
the RSU Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Date of Adoption. As of 31 December 2023,
the remaining term of the RSU Scheme is 7 years. The Company
has engaged SWCS Trust Limited to administer and hold the
Company'’s shares before they are vested and transferred to the RSU
Participants. Before the Listing, the awards granted by the Company
correspond to 45,898,681 shares, accounting for 1.95% of the
total issued shares of the Company. As the RSUs in respect of all
shares under the RSU Scheme have been issued in full immediately
before Listing and no further awards will be granted under the RSU
Scheme after Listing, during the year ended December 31, 2023,
there were no further RSUs granted under the RSU Scheme, and
2,981,331 incentive shares have been vested to the corresponding
incentivised person that had met the vesting conditions, while
5,223,518 incentive shares that did not meet the vesting conditions
have become lapsed. Therefore, both the number of awards
available for grant under the RSU Scheme at the beginning and the
end of the Reporting Period, and the number of shares that may be
issued in respect of awards granted under the RSU Scheme during
the Reporting Period divided by the weighted average number of
shares of the relevant class in issue for the Reporting Period are not
applicable to the Company. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the
Board of Directors has approved the 2024 Restricted Share Unit
Scheme (the “2024 Incentive Scheme”) based on an aggregate
of 5,450,227 of all lapsed shares (including the aforesaid lapsed
incentive shares) up to the date of the Board meeting held on
March 21, 2024 (for the avoidance of doubt, existing shares of the
Company). As the 2024 Incentive Scheme was adopted after the
Reporting Period, no incentive shares were granted under the 2024
Incentive Scheme during the Reporting Period. The main contents of
the 2024 Incentive Scheme are summarized as follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the 2024 Incentive Scheme was to provide incentives
and rewards to Directors, senior management members and other
employees who contributed to the development of the Group.

Participants of the 2024 Incentive Scheme

Participants of the 2024 Incentive Scheme (the “Participant(s) of
the 2024 Incentive Scheme”) are selected by the Board from our
Directors (executive or non-executive, but excluding independent
non-executive Directors), management, senior management and
existing employees of the Company or any member of the Group.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2023

(1

()

HEPZ=p e
BHESSEBTRPELENBART - ZR
HIR D BEAIET BB RER10F - BIRMB LA
W B E20235 128318 - IR HIPRD ELLET
EIMBABE R ARTF - AAREEEHERE
EREBRARBEERFAEARRIZKRG  BEE
HEBROBETFIRIBOHEN2HEHE -
AT - AR E LA EN 5 R85 45,898,681
B - AEANRA BB BEITIRIDAEER1.95% - FE%
PR $IR% 15 BEALETEI T AT BR 1D B B A9 SZBR HI A D
BAIE R ETAEEET - EMERTHIREZR
HIRRD AL AT IR FEE— PR IEE) - EZE
2023F 12 A31HIEFER « WA R 5
MEMNIERE R THERE - 2,981,331 %8
BN AR B2 352 I 5L 5 BB 1R T 57 JB A AL FE A R 21
% 0 5,223,518 BN (5 R T A R BIE Mk
e Bt - TR AR A R AL R A O] IR IR SRR AR
DEEMIETEIR R LA REIEE - RIREEAR
PR HIAR (0 BBALEHEI 5 I Y 22 B i 31 TR AR (D
2 B BR AR E B 3 TROABRANR (5 8 R 80 hniE
HERARRMELTEA - HEREAIITH
B EEeCLEEZE202463821BEBHNE
EeeR B RINAE RN (B ik
MR BI D) A 255,450,227/ (AR5 E - B
AABIRERD) BER2024F ZRHIIXD E
758 ([ 2024 F R E1 1) o BB 2024 5 EHED
STEIN RS IR - F T AR ERR DR
REHRRIE2024F BN AT 8 H - 2024F 8
BB EZARHMAT

Sf:
20245 Rt 8l B R AB KRR A AR B
BREHEMNES  SREEEKRE MEME

8 o

2024 F BT EIB B E

20245 SEhFT Bl 2 B3 ([ 20245 SR =T 812
HE | HEFSRES(MITIFNTES £
TREBIFNTES) - ARRHAKEEM
REARIMERE =AEEENEBREERE
4o



Report of the Directors BB =2 iRE

3)

4)

(5)

(6)

Number of shares and maximum number of shares
that each participant is eligible to receive

The number of RSUs to be granted shall be determined at the
sole and absolute discretion of the Board and may differ among
Participants of the 2024 Incentive Scheme. The total number of
shares available for grant under the 2024 Incentive Scheme is
5,450,227 (0.23% of the total issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of this report). The total number of shares granted or to
be granted to any Participant of the 2024 Incentive Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the total issued share capital of the Company upon
the approval for the 2024 Incentive Scheme by the Board, namely
23,511,455 shares. For the avoidance of doubt, the awards under
the 2024 Incentive Scheme are based on the existing shares of the
Company.

Vesting period

The awards to be granted will be vested and unrestricted pursuant to
the terms of the respective grant letters to the individual Participants
of the 2024 Incentive Scheme.

Consideration for application for incentive shares
All awards under the 2024 Incentive Scheme are granted at nil
consideration.

Term of the scheme

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board,
the 2024 Incentive Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption (i.e., March 21,
2024). As at the Latest Practicable Date, the remaining term of the
2024 Incentive Scheme is 10 years. The Company has engaged
SWCS Trust Limited to administer and hold the Company’s shares
before they are vested and transferred to the Participants of the
2024 Incentive Scheme.
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As of December 31, 2023, details of the incentive shares granted HZE2023F 128318  REXEHIIRD BT
under the RSU Scheme and the changes were as follows: SR HENRG REBFEET
Weighted
average closing
price of the
Number underlying shares Number
of shares Number Number  immediately before Number Number  of shares
granted  of shares  of shares thedateson  ofshares  of shares granted
but not granted vested  which the awards lapsed  cancelled but not
Name and vestedon  duringthe  during the werevested  duringthe  duringthe  vested on
Category of January 1, Reporting  Reporting duringthe  Reporting  Reporting December 31,
grantee Date of grant Date of vesting 2023 Period Period  Reporting Period Period Period 2023
REEHR
R2023% EBERGE R2023%
1A18 RRER 12A31R
BRAE REEEA REEAR BEEE RMEEHR  REEER B
ES - 1 el BEN ZAIHIE X HEN  ERBEN
REARAREN  RHAH BERH Rti%E  RGUE  RhEE THWHE RSB RHHE  RGEE
Directors
£
SUN Yinong October 10,2021 April 30, 2023-April 30, 2028 6,060,621 - 476,234 HKD10.22 - - 6184387
R 2021E10A108 2023/40-2028/430 102287
December 1,2022  April 30, 2025 666,062 - - - - - 666,062
00512418 2025/4/30
PENG Hongzhi January 1, 2021 January 1, 2022-January 1, 2027 474300 - 83,700 HKD10.39 - - 390,600
7% WERIE 2022012027010 10.39%7
October 10,2021 January 1, 2022-December 30, 2030 4,255,494 - 426,682 HKD10.39 - - 3828812
21E10A108 20221/1-2030/12/30 103987
December 1,2022  April 30, 2025 509,236 - - - - - 509,236
0251418 2025/4/30
LIU Zhongsi January 1, 2021 January 1, 2022-January 1, 2027 592,450 - 104,550 HKD10.39 - - 487,900
T WNEIA1B 2022111-20271111 103987
October 10,2021 January 1, 2022-December 30, 2030 4,882,979 - 497,035 HKD10.39 - - 4385944
01F10A108 20221/1-2030/12/30 103987
December 1,2022  April 30, 2025 592,969 - - - - - 592,969
0F12818 2025430
92 WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Name and

Category of

grantee Date of grant

AEARZREN  HLEH

CHENLin January 1, 2021

ik 211718
October 10, 2021
2021107108
December 1, 2022
2022512818

Employees

(excluding Directors)

Ea(F2E3)

Employees January 1, 2021

E8 202151418
October 10, 2021
20215104108
May 26, 2022
202257268
December 1, 2022
2022512418

Total

ait

Date of vesting

5REH

January 1, 2022-January 1, 2027
2022111-20271111

January 1, 2022-December 30, 2030
2022111-2030112130

April 30,2025

2025/430

January 1, 2022-January 1, 2027
2022111-20271111

January 1, 2022-December 30, 2030
2022111-2030112130

April 30, 2023-April 30, 2027
2023/4/30-2027/430

April 30, 2023- April 30, 2027
2023/4/30-2027/4/30

Number
of shares
granted
but not
vested on
January 1,
223

R03%
1818
ERiLfE

AERH
htig&

400,350

3,941,542

465,656

2,018,750

9,096,144

1,555,513

7,993,569

44,105,635

Number
of shares
granted
during the
Reporting
Period

RRESR
el
i

For further details of changes in RSUs during the Current Year, see

Note 10 to consolidated financial information.

For details of the employee incentive scheme, see the Prospectus
published by the Company on the website of the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of the Company

(www.weilongshipin.com) on December 5, 2022.

Weighted
average dlosing
price of the
underlying shares Number
Number  immediately before Number Number  of shares
of shares thedateson ~ ofshares of shares granted
vested  which the awards lapsed  cancelled but not
during the werevested  duringthe  duringthe  vested on
Reporting duringthe  Reporting  Reporting December 31,
Period  Reporting Period Period Period 223
REEHR
HBRHE 2035
32l 128318
REESR FRAE REEHN  REEER BRH
BEMN ZATHE K N EXERN
kitg@ THHRE RREEE  RHEE  RAHEE
70,650 HKD10.39 - - 329,700
103987
392,186 HKD10.39 - - 3,5493%
1039% 7
- - - - 465,656
356,250 HKD10.39 49,000 - 1613500
103957
398,622 HKD10.39 1,554,444 - 7143018
103987
58,856 HKD10.22 645,239 - 851,418
102257
116,566 HKD10.22 2,974,835 - 4902,168
102287
2,981,331 5.223,518 - 35,900,786

BRAFEAZRBIRN ELSEBOE—TFHE &
2R E HTEERMEE0 -

1B BB AT SIFHIBR R AR R2022F12 A5 A FIE R
5 75 B 32 T 48 0k (www.hkexnews.hk) 172N 2 &) 48

(www.weilongshipin.com) AR E -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is fully aware of the importance of good corporate
governance in enhancing the management of the Company and
protecting the interests of shareholders as a whole. The Company has
adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
as its code for its corporate governance practices. The Directors believed
that the Company complied with relevant code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code during the Reporting Period. The Board
will continue to review and monitor the Company’s practices to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” in the annual report.

AUDITOR

During the year ended December 31, 2023, Ernst & Young acted as the
reporting accountant and independent auditor of the Company. The
financial statements set out in the annual report were audited by Ernst &
Young.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 25
May 2023 and the circular dated 2 June 2023. As the Company and
Pricewaterhousecoopers (“Pricewaterhousecoopers”) were unable to
reach an agreement on the remuneration of the auditor for the fiscal
year ended 31 December 2023, Pricewaterhousecoopers retired as
auditor of the Company at the end of its term of office with effect from
the end of the Company’s 2022 Annual General Meeting. Subject to
the consideration and approval of the Company’s 2022 Annual General
Meeting held on 28 June 2023, Ernst & Young was appointed as the
Company’s auditor for 2023 for a period of time from the date of
approval of the Company’s 2022 Annual General Meeting until the end of
the Company’s 2023 Annual General Meeting.

There is no disagreement between the Board of Directors and the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors regarding the selection and
appointment of independent auditor of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not changed its auditor since
the Listing Date.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Report of the Directors BB =2 iRE

OTHER EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no material events after December 31, 2023 that would
materially affect the Group’s operating and financial performance as at
the Latest Practicable Date.

Other sections, reports or notes to the report referred to above constitute
part of the report of the Board of Directors.

By order of the Board

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
LIU Weiping

Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, China
March 21, 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AR R SIS

EY::

To the shareholders of WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WEILONG
Delicious Global Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 103 to 208, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2023
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BASIS FOR OPINION (Cont'd)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

RRHE®2)

ERESE
MRETFRERERMANERAE - REHAHE
HUBHBRNBARAERNTIA - ELFHEETAER
BT ERAHMBHRRILASRRETRIEN
BMTEHELERREHEBNER - #fME TS
—FEAEET T RNAEHNHAENSES -

BME BT AREFHFT A EHRX A7 L&
o BREEELHRETFRAENET - AR
B ET TIEREINIT REMFHENE I ERE
BEAERRAR R MR NEFRF - LARITER
REFNGER  BRES NESEMATHNERF /8
HE B RARBRBETERRE TER -

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERETSEE RSO AEERRETSE
Revenue recognition and volume rebates Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition and volume
WA TR Rt E R T rebates included:

The Group is engaged in the production and sale of spicy snack
food. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recognized revenue from sale of goods amounting to RMB4,871.7
million. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer.

BEEEERRAE R M EE RIFE - 8122023512 431
HIEFE - EXERIAHEERHFRAARKELSTITAE
T o HERmBWAREEE ISR ET PR HREER -

The Group also offers volume rebates (including discounts,
rebates and trade incentives) to its customers. These rebates are
accounted for as a deduction from revenue.
EEETARPIRHAERA(BEFENN - RIS HE) -
ZERFAGRINER AR -

BPEHER AR R 2R AN BT 0IE

e  Evaluating the design and implementation of internal
controls and testing their operating effectiveness over
revenue recognition and volume rebates;

o AHEAERIE IR AT B B IR S A TR R L 2 R A Y
B

° Reviewing customer contracts, on a sample basis, to identify
terms and conditions relating to the transfer of control
over the products sold and assessing the Group's timing of
revenue recognition with reference to the requirements of
prevailing accounting standards;

o DA AEREP AR - AT HEATEE m R fIE
ERERRO R RIGN - WRERITEERINERRT
i BEREURARERRH

ERERSRERERAT
2023 &

97



98

Independent Auditor’s Report ¥ 3 #% 2 Efi R &

BASIS FOR OPINION (Cont'd)
Key Audit Matters (Cont'd)

Key audit matter

FARESER

RRNE# @)
BRETEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN EST N AEEBRENSEE

A large proportion of the volume rebates amounting to RMB99.9
million had not been paid as at 31 December 2023 and the
relevant accruals were included in refund liabilities.

2023512 A31H  AEHERFIAREEIOIBETH AL
- 1BRAERTIEB BEt AR KAE -

We identified revenue recognition and volume rebates as a
key audit matter because there was a huge volume of revenue
transactions generated in many different locations and from
various customers and the amounts of volume rebates were
significant to the Group’s gross profit and significant estimates
were involved in determining certain volume rebates granted to
major customers.
BMETWAERRIE BB AERETEE - TEARTZ
TRMERTRAEFPELANREWNARS - B ERNCHE
Y EEEEMNMEBEN  UKBEERTERTFPHE T
ERMP REKRMET -

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.17, 4, 5 and 28 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MERE R ERH SN & S IRRMFE2.17 - 4 - 5%28 »
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Comparing revenue transactions recorded during the
current year, on a sample basis, with those in invoices, sales
contracts and goods delivery notes;

A R ERIWAR Hresk B FERMARZ HHE
Z - HEARKEMBBEITILER |

Comparing, on a sample basis, revenue transactions
recorded before and after the financial year end date with
goods delivery notes and other relevant documentation;
VAR SIS BB 45 B AT R ABRMIRAZZ 5 B e m iR
N B AR S HETT LB

Reviewing underlying documentation on a sample basis,
for manual journal entries relating to revenue raised
during the year;

AR B F AR e B S 1B RE Y F T & 5t D 81y
FRRA A

Reviewing the Group’s assessment of expected volume
rebates, checking the Group'’s historical data for volume
rebates and the subsequent settlements of rebate;

iz BEEEHHEERFNE - &2 EEEMERA)
7 52 8 N BE e R FIASE

Selecting samples of volume rebates for the year and
comparing each selected item with the relevant sales
contract and customer agreement, and recalculating the
volume rebates payable by the Group; and
HEANPERFETHEI A EMETE B HARHES
RAREFHHERLR - EFtE SEBEMNLERM
K

Comparing the amounts of the subsequent actual
settlements of volume rebates with the corresponding
amounts accrued as at the year end.

A EIRNNEEBRAE & HEFRIEEHERRET
LEE o
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yin Guowei.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BOHER

Year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 B31HIFEE

2023 2022
2023F 20224F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MIsE AR®T T AREFTT
Revenue from contracts REEFERMAKBA
with customers 5 4,871,666 4,632,221
Cost of sales of goods HE A 5,8 (2,548,983) (2,672,616)
Gross profit EF 2,322,683 1,959,605
Distribution and selling expenses K N EEH 8 (806,709) (633,300)
Administrative expenses EIEBA 8 (458,927) (481,687)
Net impairment gains on financial assets &gt & & RE Y FEE 3.1 386 182
Other income, net HAb WA F 5 6 43,470 107,578
Other gains/(losses), net Huezs /(518 )25 7 2,810 (597,686)
Operating profit KERHE 1,103,713 354,692
Finance income BhE WA 1 197,085 71,067
Finance costs BB AR 11 (21,526) (13,382)
Finance income, net BEWAFEE 1 175,559 57,685
Profit before income tax FrigBi B S 1,279,272 412,377
Income tax expense Frigii & A 12 (398,918) (261,080)
Profit for the year FRAFIHE 880,354 151,297
Profit is attributable to: AT &S EEFIE :
— Owners of the Company R YNCIEZ =N 880,354 151,297
Earnings per share for ARAREE AEEFBEN
profit attributable to owners BREF(ARYE)
of the Company (RMB)
Basic earnings per share BRREREF 13 0.38 0.07
Diluted earnings per share SRESE R T 13 0.38 0.07
ERERSRERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Bt lREE

Year ended 31 December 2023 & ZE2023F 12 B31HIFEE

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Profit for the year FRFE 880,354 151,297
Other comprehensive income Hitira Wz
[tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss:  AIEFHIEEIBZMIER ¢
Exchange differences on translation of BEBINETHIE 2R
foreign operations (3,755) (16,500)
Items that may not be reclassified to TRAIEFHEEEEMNIER ¢
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation BB RN EREE K ZE5E
of the Company 46,961 115,880
Other comprehensive income for the year, FREf4REURE @ HRBIE
net of tax 43,206 99,380
Total comprehensive income for the year FRGEEWHHEE 923,560 250,677
Total comprehensive income for AT & AT EEFREGE WS
the year is attributable to: o
— Owners of the Company . VNGIETZ =N 923,560 250,677

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BRI &

31 December 2023 202312 B31H

31 December

12A31H
2023 2022
20234F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
st AR®T T AREFTT
Assets EE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R KERE 15 1,100,998 1,127,556
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 460,829 533,705
Intangible assets EBYEE 17 19,980 21,445
Term deposits with initial term A AR A =18 A A L/
over three months TEHBTF 3K 23 2,570,023 1,603,886
Deferred income tax assets BEFTSHEE 30 22,683 68,827
Other non-current assets Hi3EmeEEE 20 4,343 17,730
Total non-current assets JERBEERE 4,178,856 3,373,149
Current assets REBEE
Trade, other receivables and prepayments %5 « E fhEUL I8 K& T8 (T
FE 19 211,531 240,048
Inventories 78 21 419,893 599,263
Financial assets at fair value through AR EBEFEEEZSH:TA
profit or loss EHBEENeREE 33 122,820 382,440
Restricted cash SIRHIIR S 22 166 -
Term deposits with initial term over three  #J24HARR & = 1& A LA L&Y
months T HATF R 23 1,594,087 1,020,982
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBSEEY 22 526,193 1,314,453
Total current assets mENEEAE 2,874,690 3,557,186
Total assets EEHE 7,053,546 6,930,335
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings & 29 178,960 161,180
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 8,930 1,966
Deferred income EIEUWA 26 158,407 196,033
Deferred income tax liabilities FEEFTSHaE 30 93,362 46,498
Total non-current liabilities ERB B ERE 439,659 405,677
Current liabilities FREBaE
Trade and other payables B 5 &kE bR FRIE 27 662,744 689,732
Contract liabilities and refund liabilities AREBENRERARE 28 206,343 225,261
Current income tax liabilities BEAFTS R aE 33,258 81,795
Borrowings B 29 1,980 120
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 3,692 3,338
Total current liabilities MEEEREE 908,017 1,000,246
Total liabilities BEHAE 1,347,676 1,405,923
Net assets EEFEE 5,705,870 5,524,412
ERERSRERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & 3t B AR R 3R
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

31 December

12A31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BoaE ARET T ARBTT
Equity Em
Share capital &N 24 155 155
Other reserves Eb AR 25 2,680,382 3,226,009
Retained earnings B1iEEF 3,025,333 2,298,248
Equity attributable to owners of the RAREE AEERER
Company 5,705,870 5,524,412
Total equity BT 5,705,870 5,524,412
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEEREE 7,053,546 6,930,335
Mr. Weiping Liu Mr. Hongzhi Peng
2l1EF L ERELE
Director Director
EE EE

1 06 WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SHHERBER

Year ended 31 December 2022 & E2022F 12831 B ILF[E

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AN AIRERFER AR

Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings Total
AR HitfE BEAT At

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT AR®TT ARETE

Notes (Note 25)
MEE (Bt3E25)

Balance at 1 January 2022 H2022F1 1A M4 137 1,481,512 2,188,280 3,669,929
Comprehensive income REkiE
Profit for the year FRFE = - 151,297 151,297
Other comprehensive income Hipsr A58 - 99,380 = 99,380
Total comprehensive income REREEE - 99,380 151,297 250,677
Transactions with owners HESREAETHRES !

in their capacity as owners:
Profit appropriation to statutory FESBEEERBRE

surplus reserves 25(b) - 41,645 (41,645) -
Capital injection EE 1 - - 11
Issuance of ordinary shares related to PRERARABERTLR

IPO, net of underwriting commissions % - MG E#HEE K

and other issuance costs HAMEITRA 25(a) 7 876,360 = 876,367
Share-based payments related to BRAREENIRERREN

pre-IPO investments i BEREK 7 = 628,811 = 628,811
Share-based payments — value of VAR A B 3R —

employee services EERKER 25(c) = 98,133 - 98,133
Deferred tax impact related to share- HEEE I MHARGD A

based payments to employees RN REEN

BETRTE 30 - 484 — 484

Transfer to retained earnings — EBREBFAN-

deregistration of subsidiaries MEBARHE = (316) 316 -
Total transactions with owners in EEZREAERTHRS

their capacity as owners 4z 18 1,645,117 (41,329) 1,603,806
Balance at 31 December 2022 12022512 A31 A K 4EeR 155 3,226,009 2,298,248 5,524,412

DR ERSRIZERERD A
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &z & Eh &
Year ended 31 December 2023 #,£2023% 12 A31H ILEE

Balance at 1 January 2023 R2023F18 18 M&8H 155 3,226,009 2,298,248 5,524,412
Comprehensive income mAWE
Profit for the year FERFIHE - - 880,354 880,354
Other comprehensive income HipgreWas - 43,206 - 43,206
Total comprehensive income SFEWEBE - 43,206 880,354 923,560
Transactions with owners HEERBEAETHRS !

in their capacity as owners:
Profit appropriation to statutory FEIBEEERMRFHE

surplus reserves 25(b) - 154,769 (154,769) -
Dividend declared and paid BEIRRIRMRE 14 - (831,599) - (831,599)
Share-based payments — value of LARRD BEREA R —

employee services EERBEE 25(c) - 89,981 - 89,981
Deferred tax impact related to share- HEEE X HARGD A

based payments to employees ERmNREEN

EERIE 2 30 - (484) - (484)

Transfer to retained earnings — BRERFRAN -

deregistration of subsidiaries (SN - (1,500) 1,500 -
Total transactions with owners in BEEREEAETHRS

their capacity as owners k] - (588,833) (153,269) (742,102)
Balance at 31 December 2023 #2023F12A31H ke 155 2,680,382 3,025,333 5,705,870

P
A
%
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEHRETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #%E2023F 12 A31 8 IEFE

2023 2022
2023F 20224
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
B = AR¥TT ARBTIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHREEESRE
Cash generated from operations KEMESIRE 31(a) 1,482,635 1,456,451
Interest paid BEARFLE (23,695) (12,792)
Interest received EHALS 55,224 25,273
Income taxes paid B FTEH (358,449) (265,988)
Net cash generated from operating RETEABEESTHE
activities 1,155,715 1,202,944
Cash flows from investing activities RETBFIBRERE
Payments for acquisition of property, BEWE  WERRENNK
plant and equipment (121,084) (288,482)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEKRENETER
plant and equipment ] 35,793 4,336
Payment of intangible assets | EENK (1,173) (8,715)
One-off payment made for purchase of BEERAREEFELHN—RIERN
right-of-use assets = - (368,581)
Return of a deposit payment related to SFERETHFRERENRES
land-use-rights ES - 2,000
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEUAREENER EE
through profit or loss ABHERNEHEE (1,526,547) (5,137,265)
Redemption of financial assets at fair value BB AR EEE B EEH
through profit or loss ABHBEENERHEE 1,808,576 5,619,994
Increase in term deposits with initial Nig KR A =18 A LA EH)E B
term over three months M (3,545,087) (2,382,606)
Redemption of term deposits with initial ~ B&EI M4 HAR & =1 B LA F&95E
term of over three months ZEYVEE 2,163,560 1,570,674
Payment to a third party BE=VENEA - (50,000)
Received from a third party ME=HFUER 50,000 =
Government grants received BRABEND BRI
related to assets 26 5,184 42,305
Repayment of loans to third parties E=HERREE - 200
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHTARSFE (1,130,778) (996,140)
DREERSRIZERBRD
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows SR &REE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #%2023F 12 A31HILFE

2023 2022
2023F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = AR¥TT ARBTIT
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHREESRE
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRITIER TS RE 2,559,800 1,122,300
Repayments of bank borrowings ERBITER (2,540,160) (1,425,000)
Capital injection EE - 1
Proceeds from issuance of shares HE R AFAEEMBEITRMH
upon IPO FTS IR - 907,698
Dividend paid BERRE (831,599) -
Payments for listing expenses X B HIE (11,522) (15,086)
Repayment of the principal elements of BEEHERENASI D
lease liabilities (5,131) (5,231)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BMETEHME(FA)RE
financing activities FEE (828,612) 584,692
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and Re KRB EEMEM ORd)
cash equivalents FER (803,675) 791,496
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUBEENMRESEY
of year 22 1,314,453 494,275
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes ~ YNEEZREE)R) L 15,415 28,682
Cash and cash equivalents at FRESRESEEY
end of year 22 526,193 1,314,453
Analysis of balances of cash and RERRESENERIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances RE MIRITHEER 526,193 1,314,453
Cash and cash equivalents as stated &HREFEBRRESHEHTE
in the consolidated statement MRRAMIEARER
of cash flows and consolidated REZEEY
statement of financial position 526,193 1,314,453
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GENERAL INFORMATION

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 July 2018 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Company Act (Cap 22, Law
3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is the offices of Maples Corporate
Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the production and sale of spicy snack food in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC").

The ultimate holding company of the Company is HH Global Capital
Ltd. The ultimate controlling parties are Mr. Liu Weiping and his
brother Mr. Liu Fuping (the “Controlling Shareholders”), who are
also the chairman and the executive director of the board of the
directors of the Company, respectively.

The Company'’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 15 December 2022 (the
“Listing”) by way of its initial public offering (“IPO").

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of material accounting policies adopted in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SO EwRRMEE

31 December 2023 202312 B31H

—RER

DR ERZHIERBR AR AAA])RR2018
FIA6RIRBEHEMSERE2E(RFAE)
(1961 FE3EN - KEMRIEFT)RHSHS
A AR BRAT - HEfitEEan
Maples Corporate Services Limited &) 3 5 &z (it
#F PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands) °

RARR—RREERAF « ARAIREWER
Al ARl TR2ETEARKMB( +
B DIEERRARBRBHEENHE ©

RRABNREERARBMMEIRERFGRR
Al - ARG RBIEFRERE S REREFEL
F(MERBIR]) - BRERDBARAREEEE
FRBITES -

RATRMDER2022512 15 B A B R AR 3
E(EXRLFABE D) FAEETERERZNER
ARERET( LMD -

EXRETBEME

R ERTIRB S Gt B RREF AN EANSF
B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") and interpretations issued by IFRSs Interpretations
Committee (“IFRSs IC") applicable to companies reporting
under IFRSs. The financial statements comply with IFRSs as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB"). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of certain financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“"RMB”) and rounded to nearest
thousand, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates
Deferred Tax related to Assets

and Liabilities arising from a

Amendments to IAS 12

Single Transaction
International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules

Amendments to IAS 12

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2023

2.

BEARETHEME 2
2.1 REEAE

2.2

BB RER IR B B 1 S R
BZzEe((ERVBERERARERS
g RGO ERRRE(ERIBREE
BIETTHRE B R B BIRR B s 3R 22 Al
((ERMEREEAN ) RREES - B
BT AR e EAESE (RS
FHEAPE=S |) B BRR S &
A1) - AR MARRIBIE L KANEHIETT
RmEL WEBH AR EEFERLEE
AAEHBESENETEREESHHEE
TED - RAREFHBAI - ZFEA G R
RAANRBTARE D27 EMBERAE
REIMTIT

RIBCRBR P 1 S AR B A GBI 53R
KEERE TG RFERE
BEERAASEE S BERBRT EL
B - 3% K= 2 A SRR A 0 7T E SRR
RASETH 6 6F I 1 3R % 8 B A0 77 E AP
AR o

SR RIFESES
REEDHEFEMBRE - 8 REN
THFE] RIS T BB B R 3 5 22 Al o
(BRI BERERR)  Rbgs A
FE175%
(RBEER)E1S DB ERE
T B B i R 5 2
BB RS E29R)
({&3TA)
(B g 2ER) BEAET I EE
EXTACCHIES)
(B ER]) BB —X G HEE
F125 (BT A) CEERBES
B2 BEAAT
CEIRR g Er2ER) R FAR R E —
F1258(IBETA) H=HRE R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Cont’d)
The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs that

are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a

Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the
material accounting policy information in Note 2 to the
financial statements. The amendments did not have any
impact on the measurement, recognition or presentation
of any items in the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since the
Group's approach and policy align with the amendments,
the amendments had no impact on the Group's financial
statements.

EXETTBRBE )

2.2 SBERRKRESESE (F)

ERRAEENFH R MEEKERM G HRELE
ADMEE RZEMT

(@)

(b)

(BB EIDE 1R BT AR) EX
CEBRBEEERSHHRERS - M
HEASEBR - ESTBRESR
ERVERERMBNEMES —HE
B IRERReRE - RAR
MEHROTBERERBEZEUH
WERMMELAVRE - AIZEFERBR
EREHBRER - (BEBRMB®RE
HRABBRAEVE2RUEFT RN EHE
ZAEFARNAEEZ RS EAR
BETBORE R T e b1t ES| -
AEEERPBHRERME2HESEAN
BRTHERER - RFETHA KRB
BHmETEAIRE TR - BRKE
BRI mALfZE

(B & ERIDEK (BFTA) BIF
TE AT ERREHBRREE LR
ME R - ETEFTRE R AWK
THEEFETHEENEBSE - &
FTEER T ERBMAIE B A ERMA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Cont’d)

()

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow
the scope of the initial recognition exception in IAS 12 so
that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such
as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognize a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and
a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising
from these transactions.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group has
determined the temporary differences arising from right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately, which have
been reflected in the reconciliation disclosed in Note 30
to the financial statements. However, they did not have
any material impact on the overall deferred tax balances
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the related deferred tax balances qualified for
offsetting under 1AS 12.

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar
Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary
exception from the recognition and disclosure of deferred
taxes arising from the implementation of the Pillar Two
model rules published by the Organization for Economic
Co-operation and Development. The amendments
also introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements better
understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes, including the disclosure of current tax related to
Pillar Two income taxes separately in the periods when
Pillar Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of
known or reasonably estimable information of their
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which
the legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but not
yet in effect. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively. Since the Group did not fall within the
scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the amendments did
not have any impact to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2. EXSHBEMER)

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective International 2.3 BEMERERERVCERIIEHRE

financial reporting standards ZHY

REEWRRZENBREFERBUTE
FEMRE (8 R A A S BT BIRR B I e 5 2
B o ZNER BB B A AR B sZ S RT
(BB BAFSSR 2R (RNE A ) o

The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised IFRSs, if
applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets (BEIPRBFEIRE LR VE REZHAHEL

and 1AS 28 between an Investor and its 105 (B & 5t ARG ELES
Associate or Joint Venture? BINE285R(IBRTAR) ARy EEL &R
PE—E
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and (EBRB S RELERYE EEHLOMHE
Leaseback' 165 (B3] A) =§-¢
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current (BB e:ERER BESBEATEHE
or Non-current’ CCHEN) FETRE
Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with (BB @ ER)E 158 X378
Covenants' CHEY) I=§-%

Amendments to IAS 7
and IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements' (BEREHERDETS HEBBEZH
N BIRR A Fs o o5 2
EIVEYEACCHIR)

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability? (R EsHERINE21  #h= AL

$RUERTA)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 1 R2024F1 8183k BB REE R 4
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025 2 §§2025¢1 B1B s 4 ta EE AR A
g No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for 3 iﬁﬂggig@%\]igﬁagg o ME AT B4R
adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the 2N £ B30 TF 504 B R FE A S B ST B
impact of these revised IFRSs upon initial application. So far, B FGEREB D SE - T4 KEFERA
the Group considers that, these revised IFRSs are unlikely to Vb i =T B R B 75 2 45 9 B YR A TT B

ST RL =

have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

HAKENEERERTBHARNELEXN

2/ 48
=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

BORBIRR M

2.

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations not under common control by
the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)

BORBIRR M

2.

2.4 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Cont’d)
(b) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change
in ownership interest results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of
the adjustment to non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognized in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, or
significant influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognized in profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate
is reduced but joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

ERSTBRME

AN
4 =8

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)
2.5 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

BORBIRR M

2.

Items included in the consolidated financial statements

of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the

currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
Company’s functional currency is HK Dollar (“HKD"),
while the Group’s presentation is presented in Renminbi

("RMB") as the Group mainly operates in Chinese

Mainland.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the

functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates

of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses

resulting from the settlement of such transactions and

from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange

rates are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to

borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss, within “Finance income, net”

. All other

foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net basis

within “Other gains/(losses), net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Contd)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
() Group companies

BORBIRR M

2.

The results and financial position of foreign operations

(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated on the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognized
in other comprehensive income, except to the
extent that the differences are attributable to non-
controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation less impairment. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line depreciation
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values
over their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment, the
shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery 10 years
Vehicles 3to 5 years
Furniture and office equipment 5 years
Electronic equipment 3 years
Building improvement and decoration 3 years

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized within
"Other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.7 Intangible assets

BORBIRR M

2.

(a) Software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring the
specific software into usage. These costs are amortized
using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives of 3 to 10 years. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programs are recognized as expense as
incurred.

(b) Research and development
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalized and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets with definite life but not ready for use are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.9 Financial assets

(a)

(b)

(9]

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income (“OCI")
or through profit or loss); and

. those to be measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

Recognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on trade date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at financial assets at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(9]

Measurement (Cont’d)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortized cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized
directly in profit or loss and presented in “Other
gains/(losses), net” together with foreign exchange
gains or losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognized in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognized in “Other
gains/(losses), net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in “Other
gains/(losses), net” and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(9]

Measurement (Cont’d)

Debt instruments (Cont’d)

o FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognized in
profit or loss and presented net within “Other gains/
(losses), net” in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognized in profit or loss as
other income when the Group'’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognized in “Other gains/(losses), net” as applicable.
Impairment losses and the reversal of impairment losses,
if any, on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(d)

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit loss associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortized cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, impairment is measured as lifetime
expected loss.

For other receivables, impairment is measured as either
12-month expected credit loss or lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime expected credit losses.

2.10 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable

value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labor and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of
purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates

and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price

in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

2.11

2.12

2.13

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business,
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognized
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 19 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and Note
3.1 for a description of the Group's impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise of cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within
three months that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group's cash management.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.14 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalized. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred income tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses or unused
tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It makes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred income tax liabilities are not
recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized, or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to
utilize those temporary differences and losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)
(b) Deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognized for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The Group considers the asset and the liability separately
for lease transactions. The Group recognizes a deferred
income tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilized) and a
deferred income tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with the right-of-use
assets and the lease liabilities since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.16 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(o)

Liabilities for wages and salaries

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are recognized
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Pension and other obligations

The entities within the Group registered in the PRC
make employee benefit contributions based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the employees to a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan, unemployment plan,
work injury plan, maternity plan and medical benefit plan
organized by relevant government authorities in the PRC
on a monthly basis. The government authorities undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations payable to
the existing and future retired employees under these
plans and the Group has no further obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.
Assets of the plans are held and managed by government
authorities and are separate from those of the Group.

Housing provident fund

The PRC employees of the Group are also entitled to
participate in various government-sponsored housing
provident fund. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to those funds based on a certain percentage of
the employee’s salaries. The Group’s liabilities in respect
of these funds are limited to the contributions payable in
each period.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.16 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(d) Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via the restricted share unit scheme (“RSU
Scheme") or third parties. Information relating to the RSU
Scheme is set out in Note 10.

Restricted Share Units (“RSUs"”) of the Group

For grant of RSUs, the total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the Group’s
shares at the grant date.

The total expense is recognized over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of RSUs
that are expected to vest based on service condition. It
recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity.

Share-based payment transaction among group entities

The grant by the Company of share incentive plan
over its equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiaries undertakings in the Group is treated as a
capital contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognized over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiaries undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in separate financial
statements of the Company.

Modifications and Cancellations

The Group may modify the terms and conditions on which
share incentive awards were granted. If a modification
increases the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
the incremental fair value granted is included in the
measurement of the amount recognized for the services
received over the remainder of the vesting year. A grant
of share incentive awards, that is cancelled or settled
during the vesting year, is treated as an acceleration of
vesting. The Group immediately recognizes the amount
that otherwise would have been recognized for services
received over the remainder of the vesting year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. No significant element of financing is deemed present
as the sales are made with a prepayment or a credit term up to
90 days.

(@) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally upon the acceptance of the goods.
The costs of transporting finished goods to a customer
are recognized in distribution and selling expenses when
occurred.

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers
with rights of return and volume rebate. The rights of
return, volume discounts and trade incentive give rise to
variable consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.17 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)

(b)

©

(d)

(e

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right of
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will
not be returned because this method best predicts the
amount of variable consideration to which the Group will
be entitled. The requirements in IFRS 15 on constraining
estimates of variable consideration are applied in order
to determine the amount of variable consideration that
can be included in the transaction price. For goods
that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue,
a liability is recognized. A right-of-return asset (and
the corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also
recognized for the right to recover products from a
customer.

Variable consideration: volume discounts

The goods are often sold with retrospective volume
discounts based on aggregate sales over a 12-month
period. Revenue from these sales is recognized based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used
to estimate and provide for the discounts, using the
expected value method, and revenue is only recognized
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur.

Trade incentive — co-advertising services

The Group may enter into agreements with its customers
in relation to product advertising and promotion, under
which the customers will be entitled to an advertising
allowance. If no distinct service can be identified, the
amounts due by the Group to its customers would be
deducted from revenue.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when a payment is
received, or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods.
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the
Group satisfied the performance obligation under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods to the
customer).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.17 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont’d)

(f)  Refund liabilities
A refund liability is recognized for the obligation to
refund some or all of the consideration received (or
receivable) from a customer and is measured at the
amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates
of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the
transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

2.18 Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.18 Leases (Cont'd)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases of the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the company, which does not have recent third-party
financing, and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g., term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)

2.18

2.19

Leases (Cont'd)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

e any initial direct costs, and

O restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying
asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise equipment and small items of office
furniture.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorized and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.20 Government grants

2.21

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grants
will be received, and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognized in profit or loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant
and equipment and other non-current assets are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are recognized
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives
of the related assets. Note 26 provides further information on
how the Group accounts for government grants.

Interest income
Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in the
net fair value gains or losses on these assets, see Note 7 below.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets, see Note 11.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).

2.

EXETTBRBE )

2.20 BUFEED

2.21

2 L0 6 TR MR 38 B 4R B A AT UER Je AR
SEN AN BE NS IREE - BTH
BYAR AR BEMR

SRR E BN BUT BN BE S ERHE
FXAABIC AP R AR - W R s P g

w7 °

HEBEWME  BMELREBBEZIBEHE
REMIERE EERETERAGT AR
BfE - YREREENTEAFHANER
AR B PHER - ARAKENESIAREK
R BV RH IR BB RE26 -

FEUA
NanBEAEEEZHAAZTHIERN
EREENNERAGAZEFEENRA
EEKEIERFR(ETXMET) -

SRVEEMSFEBRAR 2T ARE A
(RBEE11) ©

MEMABEEEREELARAEERE
BAEAE  RESELEERARENS
BREERSI - REEERRENESHBEE
s DRBHeREERNFHERAE
RFIRGTE (MR IRER) -

DR ERSRIZERERD A
2023 &

137



138

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.22 Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i

(i)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(@i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Contd)
2.23 Fair value measurement

BORBIRR M

2.

The Group measures certain of its financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs, see Note
3.3 below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group'’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall

risk management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
regularly monitors its exposure and currently has not used any
derivative financial instruments to hedge any of these financial

risks.

(@) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk primarily arises from
recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities. The Group manages its
foreign exchange risk by minimizing non-functional
currency transactions.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most
of the transaction settled in RMB. The functional
currency of the subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland
is RMB, while the functional currencies of the
Company and subsidiaries outside Chinese Mainland
are HKD and United States Dollar (“USD"). Both the
entities in and outside Chinese Mainland have assets
and liabilities like cash at bank, restricted cash, term
deposits with initial term over three months are
denominated in USD and HKD. Foreign exchange
risk arises from the fluctuation in exchange rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MBERER®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1 BrigmE B l%(ﬁ)
(a) Market risk (Cont'd) (a) ™BRARE)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd) (0 57/‘C/7 % (&)
The Group has continued to closely track and AREHR - AEBEEFBERY)
manage its exposure to fluctuation in foreign Lm&m@z}xﬁ@ﬁ*ﬁ D BAGNEE
exchange rates confronted by the majority of the =HE Y 1F TR E Ba &9 7 N BE RO
Group’s deposits denominated in foreign currencies BEK o
during the reporting period.
The Group is primarily exposed to changes in USD/ AEETEmRET AREE
RMB exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit or loss R E) o IBYERE B
to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from REFBREUETFENE R
USD denominated financial instruments. THR-
31 December
12A31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Impact on post tax profit HBEF BN
USD/RMB exchange rate — weaken 5% 3571,/ ARBER —§7{E5% (4,573) (698)
USD/RMB exchange rate - strengthen 5% 37t/ ARBER —FHE5% 4,573 698
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MBRAKREE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1 BIKREEZE)
(a) Market risk (Cont'd) (a) HBEAMKE)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIERE

The Group's income and operating cash flows are REEHBKARKESIRSREE
substantially independent from changes in market RETZIENEEGHTE - )F
interest rate. Borrowings carried at floating rates BEFFAEEBRIERESRET
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk, $H[§gg SRR ER D AR LA A R
which is partially offset by cash held at variable REFFOIRSAEE  MELSE
rates, whereas borrowings carried at fixed rates FEAEEmMR AR EBEFER
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. % o
None of the Group's borrowings are at variable rate RBEIR - AEBBEE TR
at the end of the reporting period. An analysis by FIFEFIE o fIzE294 51 2| 25
maturity is provided in Note 29. B4 o
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, if the interest 20234 K 202212 A318 -
rates of borrowing, cash and cash equivalents WMED HeLRSEEBY T
restricted cash and term deposits with initial term PR 1|28 & LA X2 99046 BARR & = 1@ B
over three months had been increased/decreased VA BT HATE BRI 2R 38 o0, Rl >
by 50 basis points with all other variables held SOMEEE - BEFMBEHMESEY
constant, the change of the post-tax profit would 1%%7“ RIF B AR B E i
be disclosed as follows: W

31 December

12A31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Net profit increase/(decrease) SRR, CR )
increase in interest rate EsSE 16,911 15,378
decrease in interest rate IESn (16,911) (15,378)
The majority of the Group’s borrowings carried at REB KD EESMERESRI™
fixed rates is either close to current market rates or BHERBEIBR—ENEES -
repayable within one year and hence the group is F it R BN R E R EA R
not subject to any significant fair value interest rate BEMNERE o
risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk
(i) Risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary

course of its operations.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The credit
risk of the Group’s financial assets, which mainly
comprise cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
term deposits with initial term over three months,
trade receivables, other receivables and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, arises
from potential default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts

of these instruments.

All of the Group’s trade receivables and other

receivables have no collateral.

The Group assessed the credit quality of the
counterparties by taking into account their financial
position, credit history, forward-looking information
and other factors. Management also regularly
reviews the recoverability of these receivables and
follow up the disputes or amounts overdue, if any.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has the following types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit losses:

o Cash and cash equivalents

. Restricted cash

e  Term deposits with initial term over three

months

. Trade and other receivables

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and term
deposits with initial term over three months

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the
Group's cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash
and term deposits with initial term over three
months were held in state-owned or reputable
commercial banks, which management believes
are of high credit quality. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
counterparties.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables mainly represents the trade
receivables from direct sale customers and several
distributors for sale of spicy snack food. The Group
applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables. As at 31
December 2023, the expected loss rate of trade
receivables was 0.08% (2022: 0.19%). Thus, the
loss allowance for trade receivables was not material
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Other receivables

Other receivables at the end of each reporting
period were mainly deposits from third parties and
loans to third parties. The Group applies the IFRS
9 general approach to measuring expected credit
losses for all other receivables. The directors of the
Company consider the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd

Annual Report 2023

3.

MBRBRER )
3.1 BIEBER )
(b) EERBE)

(ii)

EREERE(E)
RelReEEY  XRHES
R Asa HARR A =18 A A -89 5
LEZ 73

20234 K% 2022128318 -
AEENMERSRBESEE
) ZRHIRE RVBHRA=
18 B LA LB E BiTE 2917 U
AR EEBRTMBERTR &
BEREZSHRITAERENE
BEERE - EREBRPZERSY
FRBLOZTSERTAERE -

2 S YRR

B RIFIAEERREEBER
FPRaTRIEEEHAKKEE
MIEENE ZRIKRFUE - A%
BEERCRBRTBHRELERE
O ART ETEHEEEE -
ZAEEMBE S EWEIERA
48 BRTE B 1B 2E 4 - 722023
F12A31H - ESEKFIEN
TEHAETE R 50.08% (20224 -
0.19%) » At - # %2023 12
A31HIEFE - 85 EWIEA
RIS IEEE I T EX -

HoA & YRR

RIS BRH A R WRIAE
ERRBFE=THERREET
FE=THER - AEBERACH
BRI RELERDFEIR—RTT
AR EMA B AR UG R R IE
EEEE - ARREERVIAE
REERZERENMAIREERIE
ERREECHEREEM - B
AHEEERRELBEIEM - K
SEBEENRRE B EERZON
[\ BN W SR HE R B B2 A0 R
HEITHE - LEBREATHER



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MBRREE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1 BEREZEZ)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d) (b) EERKE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) (i) =HEEHEEE)

Other receivables (Cont'd)

o actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change
to the counterparty’s ability to meet its
obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the counterparty;

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behavior of the counterparty,
including changes in the payment status of the
counterparty.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. Where other receivables have been written
off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due.
Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in
profit or loss.

The Group reviews regularly the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Over the term of the financial assets, the
Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely
basis.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the expected
loss rate of other receivables carried at amortized
cost was minimal. Thus, the loss allowance for
other receivables carried at amortized cost as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 was not material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MKREKRERE#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1 BiEBEZEE)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d) (b) EERKRE)
(i)  Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) (i) THEEREGE)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging e BB B A 4EBE ER
The table below shows the credit quality and the TRENMBAEBREEHRRD
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the FEEEERSAEERRMO
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past (X EREBEmPER (KRIE
due information unless other information is available HibERBAEN BTN NER A
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging LHENA S ) EBEE) kL2023
classification as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. FR2022F12 A31 B F LA
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts BN - M2YeBACREE
for financial assets. HIRRE/B(E o
12-month
31 December 2023 ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12EAEH
2023%12A318 FEBR 2HRAEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FIRE Ep1EE F3ME kA% @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
ARETRT AR®TR AR%TRT AR%ETn ARETn
Trade receivables* B SRR - - - 51,659 51,659
Other receivables HA IR
- Normal** —EE** 38,689 - - - 38,689
- Doubtful** — [ gE - - 200 - 200
Cash and cash equivalents 34 R4 %EY
— Not yet past due — Ky Hf 526,193 - - - 526,193
Restricted cash XREEE
~ Not yet past due — KB Hf 166 - - - 166
Term deposits with initial ~ IEAHEAR A=1E A A £
term over three months B5E B7F
~Not yet past due — K@ 4,164,110 - - - 4,164,110
4,729,158 - 200 51,659 4,781,017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MBEREE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Contd) 3.1 BiEBEZEE)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d) (b) EERMEE)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) (i) ZFEEREE)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Cont'd) EaER R EERER(E)
12-month
31 December 2022 ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A TEE
2022124318 CEERE PHEREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F 1P FUEE F3RE ol apz @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARRTRE ARBTT ARBTRE ARETR

Trade receivables* B S REYGRIR - - - 66,554 66,554
Other receivables HAb IR

— Normal** i 62,404 = = = 62,404

- Doubtful** — A = = 503 = 503
Cash and cash equivalents 54 RE £ %EY

— Not yet past due — AR 1,314,453 = = - 1314453

Term deposits with initial ~ #IAERA=(E AN L
term over three months 0E HiE

- Not yet past due — MR EH 2,624,868 = = = 2,624,868
4,001,725 = 503 66,554 4,068,782
W For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * MRS BIRAGLREE
simplified approach for impairment. HESEWSRIEmMS -
**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in o P AEMERGIEN S R
other receivables is considered to be “normal” when BENEZEEGEZEAEAR
Fhey are not past dge an.d there is no mfprmgtlon B B EARBERER
indicating that the financial assets had a significant . PR
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. BRENEERRBMIHE
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is SR DA SR A 3 ANBF 45 4R 5
considered to be “doubtful”. [E% ] DRISRMEAEDN
EEERERAIAIE] -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

3. BIRREE 2
3.1 BiEBEZEE)
(b) EERKRE)

Impairment losses on financial assets are recognized

in profit or loss.

During the reporting period, the movements in the
loss allowance for impairment of financial assets are

as follows:

(ii)

EREERE(E)
EREENREBBR RS’
K& HRE - SREERERBE
ERNEIHIT

For the year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31BILEE
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Net impairment losses on financial ¥4 /Y& ZR(E K518
assets at the beginning of FER(PFEE19)
the year (Note 19) 627 903
Movement in loss allowance for E S RBGENE B AR
trade receivables b= (83) 211)
Movement in loss allowance for L th JE L TR A Y 1R
other receivables g (303) 229
Receivables written off during the SR E &AL EE 5 fE
year as uncollectible for trade ORI T i EE A FE UK
receivables RIA - (94)
Unused amount reversed for other  H {ih fE Y 178 K Eh AR 7k 18
receivables (o] - (200)
Net impairment losses on financial ~ FRH 4 @A EREEE
assets at the end of the year FEE(FEE19)
(Note 19) 241 627

(iii)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in relation
to the investment in wealth management products,
structured deposit and fund management products
issued by reputable banks and other financial
service institutions that are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2023, the
maximum exposure was RMB122,820,000 (2022:

RMB382,440,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(c) Liquidity risk
(i)  Maturities of financial liabilities

To manage the liquidity risk, the Company monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Company’s operation and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations cash flows. The Company expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through internally
generated cash flows from operations.

The maturity analysis of borrowings that shows
the remaining contractual maturities is disclosed in
Note 29. Generally, there is no specific credit period
granted by the suppliers but the related payables
are normally expected to be settled within one year

after receipt of goods or services.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had cash and
cash equivalents, term deposits with initial term
of over three months, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and trade receivables of
RMB4,864,741,000 (2022: RMB4,388,191,000),
that can be used for fulfillment obligation or used in

operation to generate cash inflows.

The directors of the Company closely monitor
the Group’s cash flow projections, which cover
a period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2023, to enable it to meet its liabilities
and obligations as of the date of this report.

3.

E\jﬁ%@ [@’;%ii‘ iZ)
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A R #4,864,741,000 7T ( 2022
£ AR#4,388,191,0007T)
A ARBITEISAREE TN
EERESRA -

AABESHFYEERERD
RemETER - ZBARE A
2023F 12 A31HETLR121E
RAeVERRE - LA HBESE TR E
AmEAHNBERRE

DR ERSRIZERERD A
2023 &

149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd) 3. MKREKRERE#)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1 BiEBEZEE)
() Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (00 RBELERE)
() Maturities of financial liabilities (Cont'd)) () LB EHPEIER (&)
The table below analyzes the Group’s financial TRIBBERERRESRIEA
liabilities by relevant maturity groupings based on MFISEE - SAEENSRA
the remaining period at the end of the reporting B B ET O EDHT o
period to the contractual maturity date. The TR EZ 25 AR HREHE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual MNAERIKREIRRERE ©
undiscounted cash flows during the reporting
period.
Lessthan  Between1  Between 2 Over
1year and2years and 3 years 3 years Total
PREF 1225 2Z3F 3ENE &t

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR

31 December 2023 2023F12A31H
Borrowings BE% 9,097 9,951 177,621 - 196,669
Trade and other payables & 5 & E e 218
(excluding non-financial ~ (FBHEFERARE)
liabilities) 360,633 - - - 360,633
Refund liabilities ERARE 99,918 - - - 99,918
Lease liabilities HEaE 4,238 4,144 2,600 2,765 13,747
473,886 14,095 180,221 2,765 670,967
31 December 2022 2022F12A31H
Borrowings A 6,514 8,081 8,845 158,305 181,745
Trade and other payables % 5 Jx KLt fE 0B
(excluding non-financial ~ (TBHEFERERE)
liabilities) 399,476 - - - 399,476
Refund liabilities ROEE 62,635 - - - 62,635
Lease liabilities MEBE 3,530 1,091 997 = 5,618
472,155 9,172 9,842 158,305 649,474

1 50 WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.2 Capital management

The capital structure of the Group consists of net cash, which
includes cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, restricted cash, term deposits with initial
term over three months, borrowings and lease liabilities.

The directors review the capital structure on a continuous basis
taking into account the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through raising new debts as well as redemption of the existing
debts. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirement. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of liability-
to-asset ratio, which is calculated as total liabilities divided by
total assets.

The liability-to-asset ratios of the Group as at 31 December
2023 and 2022 were as follows:

3.

R EEE )
3.2 BEAXREE

AEENEANERRRESFEMANK - Hf
BRASIREEFEN  UAR(EEFE
BEZFFAEHERINESREE  XR
HIRE - MHRBRA=EAN LN EHF
oo EREEERE -

EERHERNBELRERE Wit REARKAR
REREARMPIRORER - RIBEFHNE
FAKEBBREETEBARELRIR
BEBM L EHEREERERSE - AEET
SN B E R E KR & - B =
2023F 202212 A31HIEFE - EE
AHEE - BRSEFHEELEE) o

AEBRBEERBREREENERE
BEABXLABRERNEERERE -

REEMN2023F K2022612 A31BHIEE
BEZRMOT :

31 December

12H31H

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTFT

Total liabilities Ev it 1,347,676 1,405,923

Total assets BEEE 7,053,546 6,930,335

The liability-to-asset ratio EEEER 19.1% 20.3%
DRERSIRZBERA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.3 Fair value estimation
(a) Fair value hierarchy

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Group has classified
its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards. An explanation of each
follows the table below.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
technigues which maximize the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs are
not based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.

Recurring fair value

3. BRERER#)
3.3 AREEME
(@) DAEEEBR
AEBHEBET AR BEMBRAK
BT A SRR AEERREITE
ARTHESMIASA=HAER -
TRAHSERNHA -

F-ER: EAEMSEENSRT
AW AREENITETAREAR
BHR)NAABERBEREHROT
BREVR - AEERENTREE
FrERMTISRERRFERE - %
ETAFAEER -

uE\

FoER AFNERTISEENS
BT AEMDIZIMTETR)NAAE
BERGERNEE - ZFHER
MEENBABRTSEIE - WEA
R AR B BRAS E VLT o METE
TARABEMBNMBEEABAR
BOBAEER RIS TAFASE-E

FZER W EXZEERNB AR
B SRR BEMSEES L - Al
TAFAF=ZER - JELMIRAES
ERZERR

measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
KEMANEETE E—EBHR F-EBR HZE&R &&t

Notes =~ RMB'000

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

i ARETRT AR®TRT ARSTRT AR%®TxR
31 December 2023 2023%F12A31H
Financial assets at fair value ~ LARABETEREE
through profit or loss T ABHERNS
BEE 18 - - 122,820 122,820
31 December 2022 2022%F12A31H
Financial assets at fair value ~ LARABETERHE
through profit or loss T AEHERNS
MEE 18 - - 382,440 382,440

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

The fair value of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is estimated by discounting the future cash
flows using the expected yield rate with reference to the
benchmark yield rate of the financial investment products
of banks.

There were no transfers among levels 1, level 2 and level
3 for recurring fair value measurements during the years
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

PRS2
3.3 AREEMEE)

() AREBEEBRE)
UAABEDEARSSHALHE
HMEREENAREE  NHESE
BITERIRBERMELYSERE -
BB R RRE S RS
TR &R -

HZE2023F M2022F12 A31B IEF
B E-BR -F_BEARE=ER
ZESEKLEUEARBEFENE
%7 o

(b) ERAEXTATEEBABBNAAE
B E(E=ZER)
TREVEZ2023F %2022F12 A
JNHIEFEFE=ERIBENEE :

Opening balance as at 2023F1 B 1A FENEEE

1 January 2023 120,149 262,291 382,440
Additions NE 1,040,000 486,547 1,526,547
Settlements HE (1,166,220) (642,356) (1,808,576)
Fair value gains on financial AR BEFEEEEHTA

assets at fair value through EHBRENEREEN

profit or loss D EEKE 6,071 13,306 19,377
Exchange difference X EH - 3,032 3,032
Closing balance as at 2023F 12 A31 A ERLRR

31 December 2023 - 122,820 122,820

DR ERSRIZERERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MBEREE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d) 3.3 AREEMET#E)
(b) Fair value measurements using significant (b) BERAEXFIBREEBABBNAAE
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Cont’d) BB (BE=ZEBR) (&)

Financial products

SREmR
Investments
Wealth in fund
management Structured  management
products deposits products Total
HEER
BHMER ABLEX EnRE At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AREBTR ARETT ARETR

Opening balance as at 202251 1B FNEeH

1 January 2022 454,882 220,274 126,947 802,103
Additions NE 471,230 3,960,800 705,235 5,137,265
Settlements 7E (933,448)  (4,082,538) (609,246)  (5,625,232)
Fair value gains on financial assets at A% E(E:HE B EE A

fair value through profit or loss SHEZNSREENAR

{BE%KE 7,336 21,613 1,943 30,892

Exchange difference [EHZE - - 37,412 37,412
Closing balance as at 2022F12A31 B R

31 December 2022 - 120,149 262,291 382,440
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

(9]

Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

The following table summarizes the quantitative
information about the significant unobservable inputs
used in level 3 fair value measurements.

BERERER )
3.3 AREEMETE)

(0 MHEHABERENAEENBER
TERAE=ZBRAABHENEEEAN
BERTABRBGAMBNTEEERZ
HE .

Description Fair value at 31 December Unobservable Inputs
A M12A31BNAREE TABRBARE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFTT
Structured deposits - 120,149  The estimated weighted average return rates

IR
Investments in fund 122,820
management

products

EeEREMKRE

The financial assets measured at fair value through profit
and loss were investment in structured deposits that
usually held from several months up to one year and
investments in fund management products that usually
held for several months. The increase of estimated
weighted average return rates will lead to the higher fair
value of the financial products. If the estimated weighted
average return rates had increased/decreased by 0.5%
with all other variables held constant, the profit before
income tax for the year ended 31 December 2023 would
have been approximately RMB684,000 higher/lower
(2022: RMB1,069,000).

262,291

of these products were 2.95% to 3.30%
(2022:1.40% to 3.50%) per annum.
ZEEMBENGEINMETIILHMEF2.95%F
3.30% (20224 : 1.40%%E3.50%) °

The estimated weighted return rates of these
products were 2.25% to 2.55% (2022: 2.25% to
4.00%) per annum.
ZEEMBENMGFIIETHRBRER2.25%E
2.55%(2022%F : 2.25%%E4.00%) °

NARBEFEEEESH:TAEHIE
ENEMEEAHBTHRBAMBAR
—ENEBREERNRERH BT
BREANESESEEMNKRE - &
ETONEF Y B R RGNS E R S E
ERNARBEL - MBERBE
b B R ARIETE BB R T INRETF
HEIREE N, 0.5% - BlEZE
2023F 12 A31 B L FE BB A F
TG IR #9 A R #5684,0007T
(20224 = ARK#1,069,0007T) °

ERERSRERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)
(d) The Group’s valuation processes

For the financial assets, including level 3 fair values, the
Group's finance department performs the valuations. The
finance department reports directly to the chief financial
officer (“CFO"). Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO and finance department
annually, in line with the end of the Group’s reporting
period.

The valuation technique is discounted cash flows. Future
cash flows are estimated and discounted using the
expected yield rate with reference to the benchmark yield
rate of the financial investment products of banks.

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
measured at amortized cost
The fair values of the following financial assets and liabilities

approximate their carrying amount amounts as at the end of

the reporting period:

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Term deposits with initial term over three months

Restricted cash

Trade and other payables

Refund liabilities

Borrowings

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred income tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred income tax
assets relating to recognized tax losses and deductible temporary
differences at 31 December 2023 was RMB102,294,000 (2022:
RMB135,158,000). Further details are contained in Note 30 to the
financial statements.

Variable consideration for volume rebates
The Group estimates variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sales of products with volume rebates.

The Group’s volume rebates are analyzed on a per customer basis for
contracts that are subject to a single volume threshold. Determining
whether a customer will likely be entitled to a rebate depends on the
customer’s historical rebate entitlement and accumulated purchases
to date.

The Group updates its assessment of expected volume rebates yearly
and the refund liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates of
expected volume rebates are sensitive to changes in circumstances
and the Group's past experience regarding rebate entitlements may
not be representative of a customer’s actual rebate entitlements in
the future.

BORBIRR M

4.

BERErHhEH R A K

FrERH A AT R o et RHE DERE LK
BEABRE  BRATEHBERELNMBEYEY
RLLEER TR AEEZ KRB 2 T8 -

ELEFEHERE
BIEFGEHEER A RELEBEAMAZEEER
AR E R R T AR FER R ADER - ghR
ERMIBEE R TR EEER - BEa T
BRELEMSHEESTER - BEEARER
B RERBF AT gEEE A OB K - FRA KRR
FRIERBIRBSEH E A X E - 712023F 12 A31
H - HE R IEEE R AR YR = AN
BEASHEAEREEAARE102,294,0007T
(20224 : AR#¥135,158,0007T) ° #E—FF15
BB SRR I EE30 o

HEERF R T2 K E
REER BT AHEESLBRNNERZ S B
BRI R EETTAR

REFENHERNTIMREE—HERBNAR
REREPETIN - EXEFP AR ILERR
FMERRZ P BERSRNNERREZS RETH
PRABE -

REEGFEFH AR E RN - RELER
BEFEERE - BHEEHERMNOETEHE
REEEEGUR - MAKREBRTEBRANZMAE
MBS AR KRB R REFER IR
3R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of spicy
snack food. Majority of the Group’s revenue and business activities
are conducted in the PRC.

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business
units based on their products and has three reportable operating
segments as follows:

By product type:

e Seasoned flour products, primarily comprising Big Latiao, Mini
Latiao, Spicy Hot Stick, Mini Hot Stick, Kiss Burn, Mala Mala
and BADAO PANDA

e  Vegetable products, primarily comprising Konjac Shuang,
Fengchi Kelp and XIAO MO NV

o Bean-based and other products, primarily comprising Soft Tofu
Skin, 78° Braised egg and others

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") monitors the results
of the Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on gross
profit. No analysis of segment operating profit is presented as
CODM does not regularly review such information for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment assets
and liabilities are not presented as CODM reviews the assets and
liabilities on a central basis. Therefore, only segment revenue and
segment gross profit are presented.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 20234E12 A31H

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5. 2WER @

Segment revenue and results DEBUIA R FE4E

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by AR RIRAT SRS H 2R8I A EUR A B 2EE R
reportable segments. AR il

For the year ended B £2023F12A31H
31 December 2023 IEFE
Revenue A 2,549,244 2,118,519 203,903 4,871,666
Cost of sales SHEMKA (1,379,477)  (1,032,501) (137,005)  (2,548,983)
Gross profit ER 1,169,767 1,086,018 66,898 2,322,683
Seasoned Bean-based
flour Vegetable and other
products products products Total
Z®mR
FARAERL B m HAihEm At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARBTRT ARBTT ARETET
For the year ended B Z2022%12A31H
31 December 2022 LtFE
Revenue WA 2,718,613 1,693,339 220,269 4,632,221
Cost of sales HENA (1,634,171) (900,160) (138,285)  (2,672,616)
Gross profit EF 1,084,442 793,179 81,984 1,959,605

DR ERSRIZERERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

(a)

BSOS ERRME

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5. DERER (&
Segment revenue and results (Cont'd) PRl H&AEZ%M(%/
Geographical information (a) EBIIER
Revenue from external customers by location of the customers is BEEPNBESHINEEPHW AN TR
shown in the table below: TR
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREETIT
PRC m 4,774,043 4,566,747
Overseas RSB 97,623 65,474
4,871,666 4,632,221

(b)

(9]

160

Majority of the Group’s identifiable assets and liabilities were

AEBENKSBDAIHRBNEERBEHON

located in the PRC. RAFE -
Information about major customers (b) BEBEFXEEFHNER
No revenue from the Group’s sales to a single customer R EHE - AEEMEYE -TPaH
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue during BURAEAREE LKL ARI10%0A £ o
the reporting period.
An analysis of revenue is as follows: () WADHWT :
2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTFT
Revenue from contracts with REEFEENBA
customers
Sale of goods HEEMm 4,871,666 4,632,221

The timing of the above revenue recognition is when the
performance obligations of sales and delivery of goods are
satisfied at a point in time.

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment in advance is normally required, except
for customers with credit terms up to 90 days. Some contracts
provide customers with a right of return and volume rebates
which give rise to variable consideration.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5. DERERE)
Segment revenue and results (Cont'd) DEBARER ()

() An analysis of revenue is as follows: (Cont’d)
All contract liability balances at the beginning of the year were
recognized as revenue in the reporting period, see Note 28 for
further information.

The Group has no revenue contract that has an original
expected duration of more than one year, thus management
has applied the practical expedient under IFRS 15 and is not
required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction
prices allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied or partially satisfied as of the end of the reporting

(0 WADHWMT : (&)
FUINMA AR B EAREINRE HREE
RBRWA - E—FERFLHME28 -

AEBERERIE BRES —FORA
AR AiEEEREB(ERMBHREE
ANFISHRENERETT L BEER
SR ARWESE T REBITRALDET
MBREHHIR ZERBEE

period.
6. OTHER INCOME, NET 6. HMWAFE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETIT
Government grants ERATHE BN
Related to income (a) W AHERE(a) 19,857 85,586
Related to assets (b) (Note 26) & EEFRR (D) (BT E26) 5,983 4,144
Sale of scraps and raw materials SHES BB R R MR
Proceeds income related to scraps and EREERL N R AR RE A
raw materials Frisies 20,308 24,058
Cost related to scraps and raw materials EREER R R R AR RE R A AR (4,684) (8,679)
VAT reduction WERRE 2,006 2,469
43,470 107,578

The government grants represent subsidy income received from
various government authorities as incentives to certain subsidiaries
of the Group in the PRC.

(@) The government grants and subsidies related to income
have been received to reward for the contribution to the
local economic growth. These grants related to income were
recognized in profit or loss upon receipt of these rewards and
the related conditions associated with the rewards, if any, are
being met. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants.

(b) The Group has received certain government grants related to
the investments in production plants. The grants related to
assets were recognized in profit or loss over the useful lives of
relevant assets. Details of these grants related to assets are set
out in Note 26.

B F BRI S BUT R FIES MR - 1ER
HARKEEDEETHEARREE -

() ANERET YE) U A KA BE O T 4 B K 4
B MEREHEMEFIERMIERERM
2E - 2FREAEENMBELIZS
B2 DA Ko 2 2 52 D B B A AR B 151 (e
BB ERSTER - ZSEBEYRE
AR R B S

(b) AEECWINELAETHREMBENET
BB - A ERBOMEBERREE
MERFHANBETRR - HEERH
HRZ 5 BN R IE B Y5126 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

7. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 7. Hits (E1R) FHE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARBTFT
Fair value gains on financial assets at AR BEFEEEZEHTA
fair value through profit or loss (a) BEHESNEREEN
DR EEKE@E) 19,377 25,654
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BENMREEIR
equipment (245) (2,185)
Donation =k (2,348) (2,021)
Share-based payments related to pre-IPO HERAFRBEEIIREB BRI
investments D ARERR - (628,811)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) bE H Was, (8518) F58 (8,906) 13,185
Impairment of property, plant and Y - BB R ERE (FE15)
equipment (Note 15) (4,896) (7,026)
Others At (172) 3,518
2,810 (597,686)
(@) Included fair value loss of RMB5,238,000 related to a foreign (a) BFEHEEZE2022F12A31HIEFEREL
forward exchange contract acquired and settled during the HEEHERBAINESREEN AR EEEIE
year ended 31 December 2022. AR#5,238,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

8.

EXPENSES BY NATURE

8. BRMHEBINER

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR¥F T AREETTT
Consumption of raw materials R ELERE 21 1,922,757 2,141,677
Changes in inventories of finished K~ FRmREREYF
goods, semi-finished goods, and EREE
goods in transit 36,607 (38,318)
Employee benefit expenses EEETNEA 9 985,388 852,998
Transportation expenses ERER 150,667 160,191
Utilities KERREH 99,995 92,353
Promotion and advertising expenses HENESE D 213,970 139,266
Other tax expenses HbFiIaE A 50,242 44,538
Depreciation and amortization I B Y 15-17 128,450 135,267
Travelling expenses ZiEH 45,188 30,129
Repairs and maintenance HERRE 35,529 32,003
Office expenses mAER 56,252 38,511
Listing expenses kX - 34,852
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEE
— Audit services —B|AIR% 3,800 2,680
— Non-audit services — IEEE RS 980 28
Expense relating to short-term leases %2 HATA E1ERIE 16 17,833 11,158
Professional fees BEEH 36,129 70,479
Others EAh 30,832 39,791
Total of cost of sales of goods, HERA - KHER
distribution and selling expenses, HEEHAREEE AR
and administrative expenses 3,814,619 3,787,603
DREERSRIZERBRD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9. EEEFNER
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R AREBTFT
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE& - & RaF 669,327 602,817
Pension costs — defined contribution RIKSNA — R EH-K
plans (a) BEE) 83,647 58,056
Welfare and other expenses & ) K oAt B A 142,433 93,992
Share-based payment expenses (Note 10)  LARR (D AR TR 2 (FisE10) 89,981 98,133
985,388 852,998
Employee benefit expenses charged to profit or loss are as follow: REZFHBRNEERMNERIIMOT :
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETT
Cost of sales of goods EER A 327,776 322,421
Distribution and selling expenses S NI EEH 346,337 248,660
Administrative expenses EIREM 311,275 281,917
985,388 852,998
(a) Defined contribution plans (a) AEMIKETE
The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of a REERFENES BT BEBFEEDNE
state-managed pension obligations operated by the PRC RERRNSETNKE - REBEILE
government. The Group is required to contribute a specified B T EE TN TEKANEER
percentage of payroll costs as determined by respective local AmMBEREEEHK  URHEENE
government authority to the pension obligations to fund © o AKBEHENKRBIFENE—EESR
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect METEIELE IR EHR -

to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions under the scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Cont'd) 9. EEEFNER®)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEERESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in HZE2023F12A31HIEFE » AEEHT
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 include four BEREITMATBIENZES(20224F :
directors (2022: five) whose emoluments are reflected in the 1A) HMSERWEI7TFRITA - K
analysis shown in Note 37. Details of the emoluments of the BRIEBEEHFSHFMATRERNOMES S
remaining highest paid non-director individual during the year HHwmT :

are set out as below:

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETT
Wages, salaries and bonuses T& &< REF 2,401 -
Pension costs — defined contribution plans ER& K2 — R EkETEl 69 =
Welfare and other expenses & T R H b A 67 -
Share-based payment expenses VARG B ERE R R 2 11,196 =
13,733 =

The emoluments fell within the following band: BERATEHEANZEAT M

Number of individuals

AH
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
HKD15,000,001 to HKD15,500,000 15,000,001 7.5 15,500,000/ 7T 1 =

DR ERSRIZERERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

10. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES 10. BEEEHNURGBEBRNAR

166

During the year ended 31 December 2021, to incentivize directors,
senior management and employees, the RSU Scheme was approved
and adopted by the Company. Shares of 41,389 were allotted and
issued to for the purpose of the RSU Scheme.

On 1 January 2021, in exchange for employee services to the Group,
4,764 RSUs were granted to certain eligible persons selected by
the Company (the “January 2021 Awards”). On and subject to the
limitations and conditions of the RSU Scheme and the terms and
conditions of the respective grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested
as to 15%, 15%, 20%, 20%, 20% and 10% on 1 January 2022,
2023, 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027 respectively.

On 31 March 2021, the Company effected a 1,000 for 1 share split
of its shares. Accordingly, the shares allotted and granted under
the RSU Scheme were then equivalent to 41,389,000 shares and
4,764,000 shares, respectively.

On 10 October 2021, the Company granted an aggregate of
32,295,893 RSUs under the RSU Scheme to selected eligible
participants with performance and service conditions at a
nil consideration to incentivize them for the Group’s future
development (the “October 2021 Awards”). On and subject to the
limitations and conditions of the RSU Scheme and the terms and
conditions of the respective grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested in
different proportions from 2022 to 2030.

On 27 April 2022, pursuant to a shareholder resolution, additional
shares of 4,509,681 were issued for the purpose of the RSU Scheme.
After the issuance, the aggregate number of ordinary shares under
the RSU Scheme was 45,898,681.

On 26 May 2022, the Company granted an aggregate of 2,135,376
RSUs under the RSU Scheme to selected eligible participants
with performance and service conditions at a nil consideration to
incentivize them for the Group’s future development (the “May
2022 Awards”). On and subject to the limitations and conditions
of the RSU Scheme and the terms and conditions of the respective
grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested in different proportions from
2023 to 2027.
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20211 A18 - 4,764{EZ R HIA 1) B ALK IR
TARAREENETEERAL  EREASEE
RENEBREHIE([2021F1 A28 ) - R
B R G AR 19 BB AL 5T B ARl 2 G LA R AR B 7
FRHE R RIGRE REEABART - ZREIRMD
BRI H20224 + 20234 ~ 20244 ~ 20254
2026F 2027 F1 A1B D RIERE15% * 15%
20% ~ 20% ~ 20% % 10% °

2021438318 @ ARBIHERMET T 1R
1,00089 5% » E Lt + ARIRS PRSI (D B A5 E
Br s 3R T HOAR (D B B BIAE & 704 1,389,0000%
A% {7 AN4,764,0008L A% 1
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B BB SRR EENARREREL TR
([2021F10 A 82E) ) - IRIEXZ R BIAR D BEALE
B &9 BR il S M5 LA R AR R 4% T Bl B AR R B R 1
NMEHBRT - ZBRHIRMDELKB2022F 2
2030F AT AL FISHE -

202264 A27H - IRIERE R - 4,509,681
AR BB IR 1 5t 2 PR 1 AR 1 BE A2 7T &I B ) i & 2%
17 RETIR - XBHIRM EMFTEITE TRE B
fi% 4821 A45,898,68 1% ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

10. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES (contd) 10. B{EEEHHNURAEERNN=R &)

On 1 December 2022, the Company granted an aggregate of
10,254,671 RSUs under the RSU Scheme to selected eligible
participants with performance and service conditions at a
nil consideration to incentivize them for the Group’s future
development (the “December 2022 Awards”). On and subject to
the limitations and conditions of the RSU Scheme and the terms and
conditions of the respective grant letter, the RSUs shall be vested in
different proportions from 2023 to 2027.

Share-based payment expense relating to awards granted to
employees is determined based on the grant date fair value of
the RSUs and is recognized on a straight-line basis over the entire
vesting period for each batch. The fair value of each RSUs at the
grant dates are determined by reference to the fair value of the
underlying ordinary shares of the Company on the date of grant.
The grant date fair value of the underlying ordinary shares was
determined with the assistance of an independent valuer. The
discounted cash flow method under the income approach has been
applied in the determination of the fair value of the equity interest
of the Company. The discounted cash flow derived by management
considered the Group’s future business plan, specific business and
financial risks, the stage of development of the Group’s operations
and economic and competitive elements affecting the Group’s
business, industry and market.

The table below sets forth share-based payments expenses for RSUs
during the reporting period:

R2022F 12 B18 » ANRGIRE R HIAK 7 B L
FEIATHEMTEEERRBIEGRETE?
M EEA LR H 10,254,671 18 R I M {7 B
7 - BUSKEN R 5 AR S B R R R E R EDL BB
([2022F 12 A82E) ]) - WRIRZ R IR (D BEALET
10 BR il B2 (R DA R AR T 5k B R SR R AR 1
MEEBRRT « ZRHIGEL G EH2023FE
2027 F AR BISHE -

A [A) (& B PR 52 B A SARR (7 R ELHE Y 1 SR B
SRR RGO BB A BER R L A
BE  a8RBENZMERRANAERERE
R o BRRHIRAD B E AN R AEBEDD
SBARBRNE L AHNERTARAAEET
NEE - fHEBRNR L BBAREBETINE
MAEHEEA 7B TEE - AEEARAIRENR
AEER KA TRAETHORSREFHRE -
AEENEREESHNTRASREZE T AL
BH RS 8 - ARNEBMPBER - A
SEEBHERBBRIANZEREEER 175
M SHEEMZFRE -

NREFINIRE B R BIAR) BALH AR ) A E
REEYT RIS

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥BT T AR¥ETT

RSUs PR FilfR 0 B AL 89,981 98,133
IRERSRERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

10. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TO EMPLOYEES (Contd) 10. BM{EEELHHURAEERNNR =)

Movements in the number of RSUs granted and the respective R THZIREIIGMEMSE T8 & & a8 intE
weighted average grant date fair values are as follows: EHEYBHALBEDT

Weighted average

Number of grant date fair
RSUs value per RSU
SFEZR
RPN
ZREIRMD INEFHRE A S
BNEE AREE
RMB
AR¥ T
Outstanding as at 1 January 2022 M2022F1 B1HBKRITE 36,313,538 8.94 t0 11.01
Granted during the year RENDET 12,390,047 7.25 to 9.57
Forfeited during the year RERE LU (2,832,083) 7.25t0 11.01
Outstanding as at 31 December 2022 M2022F12A31H KT 45,871,502 7.25t0 11.01
Outstanding as at 1 January 2023 K2023F 1 B1BR1TE 45,871,502 7.25 to 11.01
Forfeited during the year RERNDIEU (5,223,518) 7.25 to 11.01
Exercised during the year RERNBITE (4,747,198) 7.25 to 11.01
Outstanding as at 31 December 2023 72023128318 KT 35,900,786 7.25 to 11.01
11. FINANCE INCOME, NET 1. BERAFHE
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
Finance income AE WA
Interests from bank HRITHLE 197,085 71,067
Finance costs [ES=Y2 &S
Interest expenses on borrowings BRFBFHZ (22,398) (16,289)
Finance costs on lease liabilities (Note 16) HEAGEMREKRAR(FIEE16) (648) (391)
Less: borrowing costs capitalized in property, J& : ¥1% - BiE kR EHERLH
plant and equipment (Note 15) AR (F3E15) 1,520 3,298
(21,526) (13,382)
Finance income, net BEWAEE 175,559 57,685
(a) Capitalized borrowing costs (a) EALEBRAA
The capitalization rate used to determine the amount of HE2023F12A31HLFE EEH TN
borrowing costs to be capitalized is 3.97%, which was BREMERKACERFERANERNMEE
applicable to the Group’s borrowings during the year ended 31 £3.97%(2022F : 3.97%) ' ZEERE
December 2023 (2022: 3.97%). KFANRNEB LS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRSHER
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREETTT
Current tax FIEIR1E
Current tax on profits for the year FRFERBNERRE 306,394 274,397
Deferred income tax EALFT1Z
Decrease/(increase) in deferred income
tax assets BEFSRIEERD, (3 m) 32,380 (36,866)
Increase in deferred income tax liabilities EEATSRI B ER N 60,144 23,549
Total deferred tax expense/(credit) EERIEER, (BR) 858 92,524 (13,317)
Income tax expense FrIBHRER 398,918 261,080
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at BARN G RERLZEME AR AT A AR AE
the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the EMEAENRBAENOERARBERAZRIEZE
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the BRI R EMMRIBRAZ R - LRATE B
effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the statutory tax rate to the ERWEOERAT
effective tax rate are as follows:
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Profit before income tax FRriS 35t A7 B 1,279,272 412,377
Tax calculated at statutory tax rate of 25%  ¥Z25% %M Rt E R IE 319,818 103,094
Tax effect of; AT EENRBZE
Difference in tax rate BEER 740 458
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose NGB LR == 61,225 162,375
Income not subject to tax EARTA (23,900) (5,423)
Additional deduction of research and
development expenses ffEs & A INEH 0B (889) (4,735)
Tax loss for which the deferred income WEERBELEMSHEER
tax assets were not recognized TIEEE 348 1,606
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable %A% E R B E A 7
profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries Al SRR AR E 45,609 =
Effect on opening deferred tax of
increase in rates BRI NS R IRE TR IA 2 (2,133) =
Other HAp (1,900) 3,705
398,918 261,080

DR ERSRIZERERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

(@)

(b)

(0

(d)

Cayman Islands Income Tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is exempted from
local income tax.

British Virgin Islands profit tax

The Company’s direct subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands
were incorporated under the BVI Companies Act, 2004 and
accordingly, are exempted from British Virgin Islands income
tax.

Hong Kong profits tax

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax was provided as the
Company. Pursuant to the two-tiered profit tax rates regime,
the Group’s first HKD2,000,000 of assessable profits under
Hong Kong profits tax during the reporting period were subject
to a tax rate of 8.25%. The Group’s remaining assessable
profits above HKD2,000,000 will continue to be subject to a
tax rate of 16.5% during the reporting period.

PRC corporate income tax

Enterprises incorporated in the PRC are subject to income tax
rate of 25% throughout the reporting period unless subject to
tax exemption set out below.

Certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are qualified as small
and micro enterprises and were entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 5% during the reporting period.

One of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is accredited as a “High
and New Technology Enterprise” and was therefore entitled to
a preferential income tax rate of 15% during the year ended
31 December 2023. Such qualification is subject to review by
the relevant tax authority in the PRC for every three years.

Certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are engaged in
agriculture and entitled to the tax exemption on agricultural
products.

The income tax provision of the Group has been calculated
at the applicable tax rate on the estimated assessable profits
for the reporting period based on existing legislations,
interpretations and practices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
(e) PRC Withholding Tax (“WHT")

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profit derived after 1 January 2008
are generally subject to a 10% WHT. If a foreign investor
incorporated in Hong Kong meets the conditions and
requirements under the double taxation treaty arrangement
entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant
withholding tax rate will be 5%.

Deferred income tax liabilities have been recognized at 31
December 2023 for the withholding tax that would be payable
on the earnings of certain subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC that are expected to be distributed in the foreseeable
future. The remaining undistributed earnings generated from
1 January 2008, for which withholding tax is not provided for,
amounted to RMB2,889,370,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB2,889,370,000).

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company, excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the

12. FISHER#)
(e) FPEITEHB([FEINF )
BFBEARBEBREER  ERBEKRIHR
A L2008 1 A 1 B & E 15 8 A )E [ S EX
BEEDRKEE—RBER10% M TEN
o BEEBEMAZOINEIREETS
P EEEBRTNEEHRKTE LK
HRETE - HERETEINFREE A5% °

M2023F12 8318 Bt EEMAK
UHETHBRARGRARRES IR
B MEXL N 2 BINHERELEREH
BE - R2023F 128318 " 88 TEH
2008F 1TA1TBZADREBFESEAA
R #2,889,370,000 7T (2022 F : AR
2,889,370,0007T) * RFEULEEETEF

13. EREF
(a) EA
FRERBFIRAR FIHEAE AREEFECR
ERL BRI AR BB
FRERBATEIN SRR DT B

year.
2023 2022
20235 20224
Profit attributable to equity holders of the ZNA RIEZS15E A (G F)H
Company (RMB’000) (ARETIT) 880,354 151,297
Weighted average number of outstanding 27T E5ME 38 % HAE F 15 E
ordinary shares (thousands) (F%) 2,309,771 2,163,327
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BEREREF(ARET) 0.38 0.07

Outstanding ordinary shares that are contingently returnable
(i.e. subject to recall) are not treated as outstanding and are
excluded from the calculation of basic earnings per share until
the date the shares are no longer subject to recall.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, an aggregate of
2,981,331 RSUs (2022: 1,765,867) become vested under the
terms and conditions of the RSU Scheme, so the effect of these
shares has been taken into account in the calculation of basic
earnings per share since the vesting date.

HEAREANARA E) MBETEIMNE BRI
BRETENINRD - BTHABRELRRN B
EROHABARKARZASLE

HE2023F12A3181EFE - 532,981,331
(20224F : 1,765,86717 ) ZBRHIIX D BEAIRIES
R EI 0 AL ET SR R R G ESRE - Bt
TEERBOSRNEREABNRCHERZSE
BRI -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont'd)
(b) Diluted (b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company after adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the year.

13. BRER(#)

BmE

SREERNSERFAME THENE
EEBEHBNBRET - ARBITEIN
BRI TR - REARBHES

BRI -

2023 2022
20234 20224
Profit attributable to equity holders of the 7 FlfEzsi5 5B A (S T
Company (RMB’000) (AR¥F7T) 880,354 151,297
Weighted average number of outstanding Z%7T7EYNE 3 A% HNAE 198
ordinary shares (thousands) (Fm%) 2,309,771 2,163,327
Adjustments for: FETNYSIEEHFAR -
— RSUs (thousands) — R BRI BAL(FAR) 6,530 5,693
Adjusted weighted average number of
outstanding ordinary shares for diluted G ER MR B THEINE B
earnings per share (thousands) A% HY AR AR kg S5 8 (TR%) 2,316,301 2,169,020
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) FREERFN(ARET) 0.38 0.07
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

14. DIVIDENDS 14. B2

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREETTT

Final and special dividends declared in respect #Z=2022412 8318 ILFE
of year ended 31 December 2022 BB IR AR B R RIS 564,276 =

Interim dividend declared in respect of year & Z2023%12A31H IFEE
ended 31 December 2023 EEIREF B S 282,138 -
846,414 =

On 28 June 2023, the Company’s shareholders approved a profit
distribution plan at an annual general meeting, pursuant to which
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022
of RMBO0.12 per share, amounting to a total final dividend of
RMB282,138,000, and a special dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022 of RMBO0.12 per share, amounting to
a total special dividend of RMB282,138,000, were declared to all
shareholders.

On 29 August 2023, the Company’s board of directors approved a
profit distribution plan at the board meeting, pursuant to which an
interim dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023
of RMB0.12 per share, amounting to a total interim dividend of
RMB282,138,000, was declared to all shareholders.

The dividend was paid in July and October 2023, except for dividend
attributable to the unvested shares held by the trustee in relation to
the RSU scheme amounting to RMB14,815,000, which the holders
will entitle to dividend right upon vesting of the RSUs.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023
of RMBO0.10 per share, amounting to a total final dividend of
RMB235,115,000, and a special dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2023 of RMBO0.11 per share, amounting to a
total special dividend of RMB258,626,000, are to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial statements do
not reflect these dividend payables.

72023F6 288 © AR E REMAREEF K
eHE—EHBEIRIR - Bt AE2ER
REREZ£2022F12A31HIEFERARBEK
BEBRAREC12TT  REKRBBEAARE
282,138,0007T * MEZE2022512A31HIEFE
RIS BIARK0.127T - BRI E A% A
AR#282,138,0007T °

20238 H29R  ARBEZEREESH
HEFB A RS - BUHRAEERRESRES
2023F 12 A3THIEFEMNF AR EFRARE
0.127t + FHAR B 4858 B ARH282,138,0007T °

R BR2023F7 A RI10AXAT - MXRFIRMDE

MEFEIZTEARBENAREBRMDRERI - €
HAARE14,815,0007 * 38 AR SR HIIHD
BUBBREARESRKRSE -

HZE2023F12A3MBIEFENREBERES
BMARBOIOTL  RHWMBAEAARE
235,115,0007T * LAREZE2023F12 A31HIESF
ErERIBREERARK11T BRIl E 458
A ANR#258,626,0007T © E 5 EE R R EF
AELHIRRE - ZEMBHRERTERBZEEMNR

B o
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BENRFZE
Building
Furniture improvement
and office  Electronic and  Construction
Buildings  Machinery Vehicles  equipment  equipment  decoration in progress Total
BFEg

B HE B0 FARMORE BTEK Rkt ERIE &it
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB00D  RMB'000

AR®TR  ARBTR ARETz ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARETz ARETR

Net book amountasat1  #2022E181RH

January 2022 BEE 265,030 331,610 6,277 59,627 4,793 80,641 216,471 964,449
Additions e = 6,769 3,495 14,256 3,088 1,346 262,381 297335
Transfers upon completion 2R 14 &7% 200,388 129,324 - - - - (330.212) -
Disposals RE - (4.917) (500) (345) 9 - - (5771)
Depreciation (Note 8) fE(fizs) 22173) (47330) 2,901) (14,249) 2,197) (32,581) - (11.830)
Impairment (Note 7) HEMET) = (6,601) - (425) - - = (7,026)
Net book amountasat31 R2022512 83184

December 2022 RERE 443,745 408,855 6,371 58,864 5,675 55,406 148 640 1,127,556
Asat31December 2022 42022%12431R
Cost 2% 494,619 550,884 15,136 92,999 12,706 115,285 148,640 1,430,269
Acumulated depreciation  E3HE (50874)  (135428) (8765  (33710) 7031) (59879 - (295,687)
Impairment WA - (6,601) - (425) - - - (7,026)
Net book amount REFE 443,745 408,855 6,371 58 864 5,675 55,406 148 640 1,127,556
Net book amountasat1  }20235181RK

January 2023 REEE 443,745 408,855 6,371 58,864 5,675 55,406 148,640 1,127,556
Additions RE 123 5719 1,103 9,59 5,450 23,611 76,495 122,095
Transfers upon completion 2R & &7 35,780 105,068 - - - - (140,848) -
Disposals RE (14,570) (15,812) (638) (4,808) (20) - - (35,848)
Depreciation (Note 8) HE(Mis) (19,046) (41,065) (2.362) (8,626) (5,993) (30,817) - (107,909)
Impairment (Note 7) A7) - (4,037) - (859) - - - (4,89)
Net book amountasat31  }2023%128318#

December 2023 RARE 446,032 458,728 4,474 54,165 5112 48,200 84,287 1,100,998
Asat31December2023 120235128318
Cost A 509,864 635,999 14,903 80,688 15,106 138,896 84,287 1479783
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z5HTE (635832)  (167,056) (10,429) (25,239) (9,994) (90,696) - (367,246)
Impairment e - (10,215) - (1,284) - - - (11,499)
Net book amount FEFE 446,032 458,728 4,474 54,165 5112 48,200 84,287 1,100,998
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment of the Group is
analyzed as follows:

15. ¥I5% ~ BERR W)
REMPE - BERRENTESTWT ;

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETFT

Cost of sales of goods $EHER A 69,875 71,778
Administrative expenses BEEEA 37,764 49,321
Distribution and selling expenses KHENEEER 270 332
Total A% 107,909 121,431

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2023 mainly
comprised of machinery (2022: buildings) being constructed in
the PRC.

The Group has capitalized borrowing costs amounting to
RMB1,520,000 on qualifying assets during the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: RMB3,298,000) (Note 11). The
weighted average capitalization rate was 3.97% for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 3.97%,).

Refer to Note 29 and Note 33 for information on non-current
assets pledged as security by the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of buildings
without building ownership certificates was RMB4,060,000
(2022: RMB141,230,000). The Group is in the process to
obtain the certificates.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, an impairment loss
of RMB4,896,000 (2022: RMB7,026,000) was recognized for
certain property, plant and equipment. Impairment was fully
provided for the obsolete machinery and furniture and office
equipment with no alternative use by taking into account the
fact that these assets would not be economically viable for
their remaining life and there was no identified alternative
utilization, the directors of the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of these assets were nil and made full provision on
their carrying value.

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

R2023F12A31EMERTIETERREE
PRSI EE(2022F  #EF) -

HZE2023F 128318 LFE  AEEAE
BEEENMEERAAR B AR1,520,000
Jr (20224 + A% 3,298,0007T) (K
11) « BE2023F12831BILEFEE - 10
BFEHEREFEAR397% (2022 F :
3.97%) °

FRAEBERAERNIERDEER
B B2k 29 M KEE33 o

M2023F12A318 - XEAREEEEE
IEFEREE A AR 4,060,000 (2022
1 AR¥141,230,0007T) © KEBEARE
FEHIREE -

HZE2023F12A31BIEFE EMABET
ME - BEMEERIBREBGEARYE
4,896,000 7T (2022 % = AR # 7,026,000
TL) o ERZEEETFIGERAFHEL
I EMRS BV EBHENERAE
EREERASNRES KR R
NERBRENE  AEBEFTEHZSE
EEMAKESEAT  UHEEKEEES
HHETIRHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

16. LEASES 16. HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a MRt AR ASEEEARBANEEES -
lessee.
(@) Amounts recognized in the statement of (a) RUIEMREFFERNEEE
financial position
The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position R BRI ETRRANEBEREANSRE
in relation to leases are as follows: N
31 December
12831H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land-use-rights + 3th {5 F 4 447,445 527,694
Buildings B3 12,263 6,011
Equipment % 1,121 -
460,829 533,705
Lease liabilities HESE
Current & (3,692) (3,338)
Non-current FETRED (8,930) (1,966)
(12,622) (5,304)
Additions of the right-of-use assets during the year BHE2023F12A318LLFE - AENFEA
ended 31 December 2023 were RMB17,672,000 (2022: EEERARY17,672,0007C (2022 F -
RMB369,407,000). AR¥369,407,0007T) °

1 76 WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

BORBIRR M

16. LEASES (Cont'd) 16. HE &)
(b) Amounts recognized in profit or loss (b) WH, wHRERNEEE
The amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to leases RIERP RN ERERBNESENT :
are as follows:
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEESERE
Land-use-rights b A AE 11,550 6,761
Buildings s 5,203 5,307
Equipment B 521 -
17,274 12,068
Interest expense (included in finance cost)  F B R G ARIEKA)
(Note 11) (BFF=E11) 648 391
Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in cost of goods sold, EATH SRR (G AHE EJZ
distribution costs and selling expenses and 7 ~ 4L$4 MSHE B A LE
administrative expenses) (Note 8) ) (KizEs) 17,833 11,158
Total amount recognized in profit or loss R IBzmF R AT 35,755 23,617

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31
December 2023 was RMB22,964,000 (2022: RMB16,780,000).

(c) The Group's leasing activities and how these are

accounted for

The Group lease factories, office buildings, warehouses and
equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 22 months to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purpose.

(d) As at 31 December 2023, the carrying value of right-of-
use assets related to land-use-rights purchased from the
government of RMB158,778,000 (2022: RMB232,447,000)
and purchased from a third party of RMB288,667,000 (2022:
RMB295,247,000), has useful lives of 50 years stated in the
relevant land-use-right certificates. All the Group’s right-of-use
assets related to land-use-rights are located in the PRC.

(e) Refer to Note 29 and Note 33 for information on the land-use-
right pledged as security by the Group.

BHE2023F12A31BIFE - HE#B S
T A ARB22,964,0007T (20224 A
R #16,780,0007T) ©

(0 AEEHNHEE
TE
AEEHRETR - HAE - BREREE -
FEARMERE—MA22E A ESFETE
HARR - HEGRFIRIBER B R IBEEE -

S EBTRMGR RGNS - HERHT
REEANER R  EEARERAAMSR
EEEMERFE - HEEETA BIERE
FHER o

R RZEHENM

(d) M2023F12A318 - BBFERBE=
FFTEE Tinh EARRECE AR EEREE
D RIAAR#158,778,0007C (20224 = A
R#232,447,0007T) & AR #288,667,000
J0 (20224 : AR#295,247,0007T) » I
HASOFRE RS - SRR H(E A
HERE o ANEE[E P 1 {5 P AE AR RE 5 PR AE
BEHMPFE -

(e) EBAEELEHAERN L FERER
B B2 29 kB EE33 -

DR ERSRIZERERD A
2023 &

177



178

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

17. B EE

Software

B

RMB’000

AR¥ET T

Net book amount at 1 January 2022 7A20225F1 51 A EREFE 9,740
Additions INE 13,473
Amortization (Note 8) #3H (MI7E8) (1,768)
Net book amount as at 31 December 2022 2022512 A31 A WERE R E 21,445

As at 31 December 2022 72022412H31H
Cost BN 30,671
Accumulated amortization RETHEESY (9,226)
Net book amount BREFE 21,445
Net book amount as at 1 January 2023 7A2023F1 81 B HEREFE 21,445
Additions NE 1,802
Amortization (Note 8) B H (Bf7Es) (3.267)
Net book amount as at 31 December 2023 7A2023F 12 A31 B WEREFE 19,980
As at 31 December 2023 7A2023%F12A831H
Cost A AR 32,473
Accumulated amortization RETE Y (12,493)
Net book amount BREFE 19,980
Amortization of intangible assets of the Group is analyzed as follows: REBBEEERESTOT

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREETTT

Administrative expenses (Note 8) %A (fF3E8) 3,267 1,768
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The Group holds the following financial instruments:

18. BEHE TSI A

AEEFA T ERIA

31 December

12A31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FffaE AR¥T T AREETTT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortized cost R ER ARG 28
THREE
— Trade and other receivables — & 5 R HEMEWRIE 19 90,307 128,834
— Cash and cash equivalents —BEeRBEELEEY 22 526,193 1,314,453
— Restricted cash —XRHEE 22 166 -
— Term deposits with initial term —EEIR A=A A L
over three months B E HATF K 23 4,164,110 2,624,868
Financial assets at fair value through A AR EEEE A H# &)t
profit or loss AEHERNEREE
— Structured deposits — BT 33 - 120,149
— Investments in fund management
products —REESERERD 33 122,820 262,291
4,903,596 4,450,595
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities at amortized cost (s AAEN SR B E
— Trade and other payables —B S5 RHEMERNFIR 3.1 360,633 399,476
— Refund liabilities —RFEE 28 99,918 62,635
— Lease liabilities —HEAaE 16 12,622 5,304
- Borrowings — &5 29 180,940 161,300
654,113 628,715

The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the financial
instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of each
class of financial assets mentioned above.

AEEED R T AR S ER R O RS
At - RBEHRNEAEERRKO & Lt

EHpIeREEMNREE

o
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19. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

19. BES R EABRPCRIER RN R

31 December

12A31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Trade receivables: B S EWNIE !
Receivables from third parties FEWE =18 51,659 66,554
Loss allowance (Note 3.1) BB (FH5E3.1) (41) (124)
51,618 66,430
Other receivables: Heb U RE ¢
Deposits T 4,535 10,286
Proceeds receivable from sale of property, HEME - BE MRBHOERIATE
plant and equipment E 460 650
Loans to third parties (d) RIEFE=FHERC) 200 200
Receivables from local government JEUE HO BT 5RIR 29,068 50,000
Others Hi 4,626 1,771
Loss allowance (Note 3.1) B R (FE3.1) (200) (503)
38,689 62,404
Prepayments: FAfRRIA -
Prepayments for raw materials R EIFE R K18 25,530 35,335
Prepayments for services AR TR 5RIE 28,110 6,616
Input VAT recoverable RIS ET AT 63,151 68,348
Prepayment for income tax FriS it sIa 4,433 915
121,224 111,214
211,531 240,048
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

19. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amounts are considered to be approximate their fair
value.

Trade receivables primarily arise from credit sales of products.
The Group usually deliver products to distributors after they
have made the payment, while for direct sale customers, the
credit terms are generally up to 90 days. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. The balances of trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing. All the trade receivables of the Group are
from third parties.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the aging analysis of the
trade receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

19.

B REMBUWREARANRE2)

(@)

B BN W R IA Y R IR (A - HBR
EEREREE QA EBEIM

(b) BRRUERETIERBERNEEHE -

AEBBRERNEHEBENRRAELRINE
m MEREHEETF  AIRTEESR F
EH—RTHIB0E - XEBEWEKEEE
SR TR SRR AR R EMmE
BERTHGMN - EHRKRFIRER/RE ©
AEEMAEZRUFIRIGREE=T] -

M2023F K%20224E12 A318 - ENEER
HRE 5 IERGIBIRER ST T ¢

31 December

12A31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Trade receivables: & S REWIE
Within 90 days 90HWN 40,344 61,842
91 to 180 days 91£180H 11,315 4,712
51,659 66,554
Impairment and risk exposure () REREREHKO

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses for trade receivables. The loss allowance
for trade receivables at amortized cost was not material during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. Note 3.1(b)
provides details about the calculation of the allowance.

Loans to third parties were unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

IR B8 A BB B 7 s o5 ZE RN D EE oS A SRt
B S ERFIEFEREEEBRE - B1E2023F
N2022F 12 A31 B IEFEMIZEEKNATED
B S RMEEBBEET TNERX - H15E3.1(b)#
FIE R E AR -

(d) RHTFE=FNERRELR - T5E8E

RERMEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

20. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20. EfttERBEE
31 December
12A31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETFIT
Prepayments to suppliers of property, plant — [E¥% - BB & 5@ (e R 2 8
and equipment TEfTFRIA 4,343 17,102
Prepayments to suppliers of intangible assets [A/#E 2 & 2= H B B 2 (S B9 FE (S 708 - 628
4,343 17,730
21. INVENTORIES 21. F&
Our inventories mainly include raw materials and packaging BN FEETZRREMERBEME - K& -
materials, finished goods, goods in transit and semi-finished goods, B RFlm - EREMERBEMRE
with raw materials and packaging materials being the major ZHEKE D ©
component.
31 December
12A31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARBTFT
Raw materials and packaging materials EMERaEmR 341,270 484,934
Finished goods and goods in transit R RIS EY 71,291 105,400
Semi-finished goods F G - 2,498
Low-value consumption goods KEZFEmD 7,332 6,431
419,893 599,263
The costs of individual items of inventories are determined using FEREREB KA MEF K ARETE -
weighted average costs.
The cost of inventories recognized as an expense and included in HZE2023F12A3MBLEE  FEAR
cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to BRARIUFAHEREANEER A
RMB1,922,757,000 (2022: RMB2,141,677,000) (Note 8). R ¥ 1,922,757,000 7t (2022 F : AR ¥

2,141,677,0007T) (K15£8) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

RESTRICTED CASH

22. RERBESEYUARZRFRE

31 December

12A31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AR¥ETFT
Cash and cash equivalents: ReRELEEY:
Cash at bank RITIRE
- RMB —AE# 463,255 266,074
- UsD " 59,529 164,036
- HKD —B7T 3,409 884,343
526,193 1,314,453
Restricted cash ZREES
- Usb —E7T 166 =
Cash at bank can be redeemed by the Group within a short-term. BITE S A AREBR N EHEARNER -
IREREREBRERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

23. TERM DEPOSITS WITH INITIAL TERM OVER

THREE MONTHS

23. MHHRB=EA X LNEHER

31 December

12A31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Current assets REBEE
Term deposits with initial term over WA AR A =18 A LA LAY
three months TEBITE R
- RMB —ARK 515,560 223,800
- USD -5 1,078,527 797,182
1,594,087 1,020,982
Non-current assets FEREEE
Term deposits with initial term over WA AR A =1 A LA LY
three months TEBITE R
- RMB — AR 2,385,305 1,603,886
-UsD —%7T 184,718 -
2,570,023 1,603,886
4,164,110 2,624,868

The carrying amounts of term deposits with initial term over three
months approximated their fair value, since the interest receivables
on these term deposits with initial term over three months is either
interest bearing at rates close to current market rates or the term
deposits with initial term over three months are of a short-term
nature.

As at 31 December 2023, the term deposits with initial term over
three months that denominated in RMB were at the fixed interest
rates ranged from 2.65% to 4.13% (2022: 3.10% to 4.13%)

As at 31 December 2023, the term deposits with initial term over
three months that denominated in USD were at the fixed interest
rates ranged from 5.05% to 5.90% (2022: 3.50% to0 5.36%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

Number of

ordinary shares,

issued and Nominal value
fully paid of ordinary shares
ERTRHE
WEERHE EEREE
usD
=
Authorized EE
Shares of USD0.00001 as at 1 January 2022, 7202241 H1H8 -
31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 and 31 20224128318 20234
December 2023 1A18%2023%F12831H
E1E £0.00001 E T AR 5,000,000,000 50,000
Nominal Equivalent
Number of value of nominal value of
ordinary shares  ordinary shares  ordinary shares
EERHE EEREE EEREEEE
usb RMB
EYn ARM
Issued 28T
At 1 January 2022 R20224E1 A18 2,092,612,007 20,926 137,499
Issuance of ordinary shares upon the BREERAREENHAIRE
supplemental pre-IPO investments BITERR 157,626,890 1,576 10,367
Issuance of ordinary shares for REZRHIR D B ETE
RSU Scheme BITEBAR 4,509,681 45 296
Issuance of ordinary shares related to IPO  ZE7TEE N AR EGREN
R 96,397,000 964 6,684
As at 31 December 2022, 1 January 2023 2022412 A31H ~ 2023%F
and 31 December 2023 1A18X%2023F12831H 2,351,145,578 23,511 154,846

The movement of paid-in share capital is shown in the table below:

ERBRARBEIERIATRAR -

31 December

12H31H

2023 2022

2023 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Beginning of the year F4) 155 137

Proceeds from shares issued BRBITRMFTSFIA - 18

End of the year FR 155 155
DREERSRIZERBRD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

25. OTHER RESERVES

25. Htif#fE

Statutory  Share-based  Shares held Currency
Share Capital surplus payment forRSU translation
premium reserve reserve reserve Scheme differences Total
NRARER HESRHRG
R EE BAE EERHERE  NAREE EUREORG EXZE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARMTR  ARMTRZ  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR
Notes (a) (b) (0
iF3
As at 1 January 2022 R202251818 1,238,439 (1,745) 235,705 50,519 3 (41453) 1481512
Profit appropriation to statutory ~ FIEHBE AT BsREE
surplus reserves - - 41,645 - - - 41,645
Issuance of ordinary shares KRB AREEREY
related to PO LER 907,691 - - - - - 907,691
Underwiting commissions and -~ AEEREMETER
other issuance costs (31,331) - - - - - (31,331)
Share-based payments related o EERAHEETRERTN
pre-PO investments WA B RT3 7 = = = 628,811 = = 628,811
Share-based payments-value of LR AEREIE -
employee services [EERHER 10 - - - 98,133 - = 98133
Deferred tax impact related to share-£FJ[E B 3 (TH0 LB Ap AR
based payments to employees  AINFEBNETHEZE 30 - - - 484 - - 484
Transfer to retained eamings -~ EEZAEER-
deregistration of subsidiaries NS = - (316) = = = (316)
Currency translation differences  EXZH - - - - - 99,380 99,380
As at 31 December 2022 H2022512831H 2,114,849 (1,745) 277,034 177,941 3 57,927 3,226,009
As at 1 January 2023 202351818 2,114,849 (1,745) 277,034 177,947 B) 57,921 3,226,009
Profit appropriation to statutory ~ FIEAREZTRBHE
surplus reserves - - 154,769 - - - 154,769
Dividend declared and paid BERREANRE (831,599) - - - - - (831,599)
Share-based payments-value of — MARR(D BRI F1-
employee services EEREER 10 - - - 89,981 - - 89,981
Deferred tax impact related to share-£ e[ B 3 (TH0 LB p A SEE
based payments to employees ~ AINFEBNETHEYE 30 - - - (484) - - (484)
Transfer to retained eamings -~ ERZERRAR -
deregstration of subsidiaries NGRS - - (1,500) - - - (1,500)
Currency translation differences  EXZH - - - - - 43,206 43,206
As at 31 December 2023 #2023512831H 1,283,250 (1,745) 430,303 867,444 B 101,133 2,680,382
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

25. OTHER RESERVES (Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

(©

Share premium

On 15 December 2022, the Company completed its IPO
by issuing 96,397,000 new shares with nominal value of
USD0.00001 each at a price of HKD10.56 per share. The
gross proceeds raised was approximately HKD1,017,952,000
(equivalent to RMB907,698,000), with which share capital was
increased by approximately RMB7,000 and share premium
was increased by approximately RMB907,691,000. The share
issuance costs directly attributable to the issuance of the new
shares amounting to RMB31,331,000 were charged to share
premium.

Statutory surplus reserves

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, when distributing the net profit of each year, the Group
shall set aside 10% of its profit after income tax (based on
the PRC statutory financial statements and after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years) for the statutory surplus
reserve fund (until the reserve balance has reached 50% of the
paid-in capital).

Statutory surplus reserves can be used to make up for the
loss or increase the paid-in capital after approval from the
appropriate authorities.

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the portion of
the grant date fair value of RSUs granted to the directors
and employees of the Group that has been recognized in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2.16(d). Information relating to the share-
based payments is set out in Note 10.

25. HifEE o)

(a)

(b)

(9

B =E

2022F 12 A15H * A AR LABREE
10.5678 T {B 1% 2£1796,397,000% F AL &
0.00001ETTHIFT RN TR B IR AFEE o
HEBSEENA,017,952,0007 7T (48
WA RB907,608,0007T) » H b g AIE
INEI A R #7,00070 M % AN S5 (B 18 N4 A
R #907,691,0007T ° & - & JE 7 B 17 %
TERTEZLEROHBIHEAS - FME -
HRSTAMEAREMEEER - B1TH
BROBEEEBEOROKBTERAABARE
31,331,0007C( BRRDEENR)

EERERE IR
RBEPBEMEBERER - ROIKEFFF
B AEERMEERBREBEES BT
H10% B ER AT S B & AE (ER e BURE M
BHRA B HAEEN R EERR &
ERFEARTRED BIR50%)

KBS HBIER R ERBRFBETRA
R ERSIE D BB -

URAD BER BV KR

AR RERNNREEEER TAEE
EENEEXBRHIBRNEMRETANA
REBERD - ZEDEREMHMEE2.16(d)F
BIAR D AR B PSR R B & SHBUR
TARER - BRANKRN RERKN MR E
LR HEE10
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

26. DEFERRED INCOME

26. ELEWA

31 December

12A31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREETTT
Beginning of the year F9 196,033 160,316
Government grants received BT B 5,184 42,305
Government grants returned EREBTHREE (36,827) -
Transfers to other income (Note 6) A H A A B FIAE (FisE6) (5,983) (4,144)
Offset with property, plant and equipment  #¥J2 « B MREEE - (2,444)
End of the year FR 158,407 196,033
27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. EZ REMBENARIE
31 December
12H31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETFT
Trade payables: B EMARIE .
— Third parties —%=F 154,662 171,462
— Related parties (Note 34) — BT (Pf5E34) 10,066 15,790
164,728 187,252
Other payables: HtERIE -
Salary and welfare payables N #He MAER) 262,432 245,048
Amounts due to a related party (Note 34) FE A~ R 5 2 3E (P 7E34) 260 260
Deposits payables EffiEe 80,384 88,684
Freight charges payables JERTEE 17,584 25,270
Payables for purchase of property, BEYE - BB MEEN
plant and equipment FESH 0B 17,786 27,853
Tax payable FEANTFX 26,264 24,791
VAT payable related to contract liabilities AR BHEENEMNEER 13,415 20,417
Utilities payables JERIKEIRRE A 10,612 9,120
Payables in relation to the Listing Hi T A B E T EIE - 25,668
Others HAth 69,279 35,369
498,016 502,480
662,744 689,732
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd) 27. ES RHMBENRIE®)
The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date is as EREEOMNSE S RN SEERAFTOT
follows:

31 December

12A31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥ETT
Within 90 days 90H A 164,728 187,252
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered to \féf%&E1‘[ﬁﬁ§1ﬁ%ﬂl§ﬁ'\]Eﬁﬁ{ﬁﬂﬂﬁé\ﬁiﬁ,ﬁﬁ’lig%ﬁ
be approximately their fair value, due to their short-term nature. RAREANREERE
28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REFUND LIABILITIES 28. ERABRERER
31 December
12A31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Contract liabilities (Note 5) AREEFES) 106,425 162,626
Refund liabilities RREE 99,918 62,635
206,343 225,261
(a) Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arose from advance (@) AEEMARABETERAREFARES
payments made by customers while the goods have not mEEE{ENTERNRIE - TAERNEYLE
been provided. All carried-forward contract liabilities at the EHERAE—MRNARKI2(E AR R/
beginning of the year were usually recognized as revenue in I °
the next 12 months.
(b) Refund liabilities of the Group mainly are volume rebate (b) AEEHEFEBETEZEAERMNEENMtE
payables to customers, which had not been paid at the end of BF - ERSREBREART o
the reporting period.
29. BORROWINGS 29. B
31 December
12A31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTFT
Current liabilities: RBEE
Secured borrowings from bank BEBIRITER 1,980 120
Non-current liabilities: FRBEE
Secured borrowings from bank BIEFRIEITER 178,960 161,180
180,940 161,300

DR ERSRIZERERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

29. BORROWINGS (Cont'd)
(@) The weighted average effective interest rates (per annum)
during years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as

29. B (&)

(@) EZFE2023FK2022F12A31HIEFERM
BEHEBRFEFNEHI AT

follows:
31 December
12A31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Borrowings from bank RITER 2.18% 2.54%

(b) Secured bank loans of the Group which were guaranteed and
pledged are set out below:

(b) NEBERERBITERNERLERBFRN
T

31 December

12H31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTFT
Guaranteed and pledged EERIE R 180,940 161,300

Borrowings from bank of the Group as at 31 December 2023
and 2022 were guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Company
or pledged by the land-use-right held by a subsidiary of the
Company (Note 33).

(¢)  The maturity of the borrowings is analyzed as follows:

AREER2023F 2022F12 A31 BRRTT
ERAARRD BIHK B A R ERE AR AR
FIMIE N B AT A M L b i 1 A R IR
(M7E33) ©

(0 EXWIHEDIHNAT

31 December

12831H
2023 2022
2023F 20224F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within 1 year —FR
- RMB — AR 1,980 120
Between 1 and 2 years —EWEF
- RMB —ARK 2,945 1,740
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF
- RMB — AR 176,015 159,440
180,940 161,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

29. BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

29. fERR(2)

(d) The fair values of the Group’s borrowings are not materially (d) HBERZEEZOENFETHIREE /TS
different from their carrying amounts, since the interest FRBENFRAE N ZEERBEE T
payable on those borrowings is either interest bearing at rates g MAREBERE BEREERDE
close to current market rates or the borrowings are of a short- WHEEAER
term nature.

(e)  The borrowings from banks are all at fixed rate during the years (e) FHE2023FN2022F12A31HIEFERR
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. Details of the Group's TEFIHEETHE - AEEREBENEIE R
exposure to risks arising from current borrowings are set out in EE SRR BRI S -

Note 3.

(f)  The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its ) RBEHRR - KEBDEBTHERMUK

borrowings during the reporting period. B2

30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED 30. B SERELFEHARS

INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

The deferred income tax assets and liabilities balance as at 31

PA2023F N 2022F 12 A3 HRIRIEAMBREE

December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: RaEEsmT
31 December
12A31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREETTT
Gross deferred income tax assets EEFTIST EERRE 102,294 135,158
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities R IR E BB ATE R
pursuant to set-off provisions AafE (79,611) (66,331)
Net deferred income tax assets BIEFSHEESE 22,683 68,827
Gross deferred income tax liabilities ELPTST B EERE (172,973) (112,829)
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities RIEHER T HUE B E TS
pursuant to set-off provisions aE 79,611 66,331
Net deferred income tax liabilities RIEFEHAREFE (93,362) (46,498)
DREGRESRIZRERD A

2023 &

191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED 30. EEiEFiEH SERIEEEHAE &)
INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Movements in deferred income tax assets during the reporting RIREHAREEFTEMEENEE T
period are as follows:

Impairment Tax Lease Unrealized  Deferred
Deferred income tax assets of assets losses liabilities Accruals profits income Total
BEMEHER EERE BHEFR HERE  EPEE AERAE BERA fit

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARWTr ARMTR ARRTn ARMTR

As at 1 January 2022 #20225181A 226 21,730 3519 43,285 2,627 26,421 97,808
Credited/(charged) to REBETEA/ (308)
profit or loss 1,635 1,823 (2,193) 23,622 3472 8,507 36,866
Credited directly to equity BRI AER - - - 484 - = 484
As at 31 December 2022 ®2022F128318 1,861 23,553 1,326 67,391 6,099 34,928 135,158
As at 1 January 2023 ®2023%181H 1,861 23,553 1,326 67,391 6,099 34,928 135,158
Credited/(charged) to RBEFREA/ (k)
profit or loss 2,241 (511) 1,585 (28,057) 518 (8,162) (32,380)
Charged directly to equity BENERTHR - - - (484) - - (484)
As at 31 December 2023 #2023F12831A 4,108 23,042 2,91 38,850 6,617 26,766 102,294
Deferred income tax assets have not been recognized for the Group’s AR AREBR2023F 12 A31BEFRBRELMNAT
tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately RMB6,422,000 as at SHBBHARYE,422,00070(2022F + AR
31 December 2023 (2022: RMB6,422,000), that will expire in one to #£6,422,0007T) * KR —ZRFARE - AUK
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. SHARRERTIANE - B AR Z S IERREL
TIBEE -
Movements in deferred income tax liabilities during the reporting RIREBAREMSHaENESNT -

period are as follows:

Accelerated Unrealized
tax Right-of-use investment  Withholding
Deferred income tax liabilities depreciation assets income tax Total
BEFEHAE BB ERE RRAREE REAMREWA s &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R AR¥TT AR¥TT ARET R
As at 1 January 2022 202261818 (81,221) (3,670) (4,389) - (89,280)
Credited/(charged) to

profit or loss RBEFRETA/ (F18k) (16,143) 2,178 (9,584) = (23,549)
As at 31 December 2022 20226128318 (97,364) (1,492) (13,973) - (112,829)
As at 1 January 2023 R2023F181A (97,364) (1,492) (13,973) - (112,829)
Charged to profit or loss ERERBRTMR (6,292) (1,618) (11,107) (41,127) (60,144)
As at 31 December 2023 #2023%12A831A (103,656) (3,110) (25,080) (41,127) (172,973)
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31. CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) Cash generated from operations

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

31. BEREEHR
(a) KEBRE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARBTT
Profit before income tax Fri8 8 AT 1,279,272 412,377
Adjustments for: MTFIRIEELRE
Impairment losses on property, Y% - B kBRI EEE
plant and equipment (Note 7) (PfFEE7) 4,896 7,026
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BEREERTE
equipment (Note 15) (FfFEE15) 107,909 121,431
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 17) & A # 4 (FizE17) 3,267 1,768
Amortization of right-of-use assets EREEE#HE(MMT16)
(Note 16) 17,274 12,068
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BERREHENEER
equipment (Note 7) (FF5E7) 245 2,185
Loss/(gains) on disposal of HEFAEEEDN
right-of-use assets &8, (as) 6,810 (169)
Fair value gains on financial assets at AR BEEEEZEH:TA
fair value through profit or loss (Note 7)  EHIERNEREERN
AR EEME(FFET7) (19,377) (25,654)
Other income transferred from HiE I ONYNEOE TGN
deferred income (Note 26) (B5¥26) (5,983) (4,144)
Finance income, net (Note 11) BB AT (FIEE11) (175,559) (57,685)
Impairment gains on financial assets ©RVEE R E WS (FTEE3.1)
(Note 3.1) (386) (182)
Non-cash employee benefit expense — FRBEERINER —AKND
share-based payments (Note 9) BEROS (M) 89,981 98,133
Share-based payments related BERAREERNRER B
to pre-IPO investments (Note 7) & 1D RER TR (FIEE7) - 628,811
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) P& 5 EiE, (ks ) /F5a 8,906 (13,185)
Change in operating assets and REBEREEZET
liabilities:
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SZRRFIIR SR A, (3 hn) (166) 294
Decrease in trade, other receivables and 8 5 K . fth g L 7018 K2
prepayments FES FOBR 10,496 117,437
Decrease in inventories FEmD 179,370 4,992
(Decrease)/Increase in contract liabilites AR&ENMEZERE
and refund liabilities CR ) /18 hn (18,918) 44,678
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other B 5 hEMEMAFECRD)
payables g (5.402) 106,270
Cash generated from operations REFBRE 1,482,635 1,456,451
ERERSRERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

31. CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Cont'd)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing

activities

31. REREER (2
(b) BMEEHEEHR

Liabilities from financing activities

RETEHEE
Leases
Borrowings liabilities Total
LR HEAE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T AR®T
Balance as at 1 January 2022 MR2022FE1 A1 8 &8 (460,112) (14,715) (474,827)
Cash flows HeEme 302,700 5,231 307,931
Additions NE - (826) (826)
Accrual interest FERTFIE (3,888) = (3,888)
Disposal HE - 5,006 5,006
Balance as at 31 December 2022 #2022F12A318K
and 1 January 2023 2023F 181048k (161,300) (5,304) (166,604)
Cash flows REmE (19,640) 5,131 (14,509)
Additions NE - (17,672) (17,672)
Disposal He - 5,223 5,223
Balance as at 31 December 2023 20235128318 &8 (180,940) (12,622) (193,562)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

32. COMMITMENTS
(@) Contractual commitments
The Group has the following significant capital commitments

32. KiE
(a) ERIEE
AEEBER THIEKREARFERIRERR

not provided for as at the end of the reporting period. i AR B o
31 December
12A31H

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTFT
Property, plant and equipment M - B KR 49,427 79,479

(b) Non-cancellable short-term leases and low-value
leases
The Group leases various offices, warehouses, buildings
and manufacturing equipment under non-cancellable leases
contracts.

The Group has recognized right-of-use assets for leases, other
than short-term and low-value leases, see Note 16 for further
information. The commitment about short-term lease and low-
value lease were as following:

(b) FrAIAEHEREERKEERE
AEERBETARENEESREERE

WMAE  RE - BFREERME -

BRERREEERESN  NEECERE
EEREEE  HtEMNF2HME16 -
AR E REEEHENRENT

31 December

12A31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETFIT
Within 1 year —FR 5,097 3,879

33. ASSET PLEDGED AS SECURITY 33. AERRYNEKREE
The carrying amount of asset pledged as security for borrowings is: REERBERYHOEREENREER -
31 December

12831H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Land-use-right T A 91,836 93,822

DREGKERERERAT
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Transactions with related parties

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

34. BEE SR F

(@)

The Group had the following transactions with related parties

BB SRS

MRIWEHA - NEBEBBITETTIAT

during the reporting period: K
2023 2022
20235 20224F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBTFT
Property leasing MEEE
A company controlled by the AR AR R HIRI 2 A -
Controlling Shareholders:
Zhumadian Pingping Limited (i) HEETEERBBRAFN 2,827 2,842
Purchase packaging products REEHER
A company significant influenced by R HEA LN A] -
the Controlling Shareholders:
Luohe Delong Color Printing B EE Y IR AR AT
Development Co., Ltd. (T1=BEFZED ) Gi)iii)
(“Delong Color Printing”) (ii)iii) 72,938 98,371
Notes: ks

(i) The prices for the rental fees were determined in accordance
with the terms and conditions mutually agreed by the contracting

parties.

(i) The purchases from the related parties were conducted in the
ordinary course of business and based on commercial terms

mutually agreed by the counterparties.

(i)  The above related party transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

WEILONG Delicious Global Holdings Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 2023412 H31H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

34. BEE SR F (#)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties (b) EEREEE T RIREZELEE
The Group has the following significant balances with its 20235 K2022F 12 A31H - REEHF
related parties as at 31 December 2023 and 2022: THEBBMINERNES
31 December
12A31H
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET R ARBTFT
Balances due to related parties: FESRARE T 564 -
Trade and other payables B RAMETE
Non-trade related HE SR
A company controlled by the Controlling #7582 58 2 #EI 2 7] -
Shareholders:
Zhumadian Pingping Limited HEEEMFTFRMERAT 260 260
Trade related HE S HRH
A company significant influenced by the AR E EA ZEmy a] -
Controlling Shareholders:
Delong Color Printing EmEERED 10,066 15,790
10,326 16,050
As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, amounts due to related HZE2023F K2022F12A31H » BT
parties were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand B RIEREER TR EERENRE
and were related to the transactions as disclosed in Note 34(a). B WEMF34FEENR S B -
(c) Key management personnel compensation () FAREIREABEHM

Key management compensation for the reporting period is set
out below:

RREHA - BEREZNHIESIT

2023 2022
2023F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE - #Hekiar 38,503 29,221
Contributions to pension plans RIRSEEIfER 535 367
Welfare and other expenses BRI R HE M 502 452
Share-based payment expenses LARZ AR A B et 0B 52 62,184 62,173
101,724 92,213

DREERSRIZERBRD

2023 & 197



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

35. SUBSIDIARIES 35. B2
The Group'’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 are set out A2023%E 128318 » AEEFEWEBATHY
below: N
Place of
Establishment Equity interest held
Date of and type of Principal activities and Registered by the Company
Name of subsidiaries establishment  legal entity place of operation capital as at 31 December
KL BHR TEED AAFM12A318
WEAREB B3 A 5 EAEREL REEEHE aMER FERAER

2023 2022
203F 200F

Directly held by the Company

FAREERE

HH Global Holdings Ltd 2018-07-09 British Virgin Investment holding, usp1 100% 100%
Islands, limited British Virgin Islands
liability company

MAERER AT 18F7H9F  RBHARES S RERR (E 100%  100%
BREAATF RERARES

EFeng Capital Ltd 2018-06-28 British Virgin Investment holding, usb1 100% 100%
slands, limited British Virgin Islands
liability company

HEEARBRAH 018F6H280 RBARRES - REER E 100%  100%

BREARA RREMREE

Indirectly held by the Company

RREERE
HH International Enterprise Limited. 2018-07-19 Hong Kong, International trading, HKD100 100% 100%
limited liability Hong Kong
company
MMEREZERAA 201877198 FE - BRE5 B4 10087 100%  100%
BREAAH
EFeng Investment Development limited 2018-07-10 Hong Kong, Investment holding, HKD100 100% 100%
limited liability Hong Kong
company
HERARRARDA 2018578108 &% REMER - &8 10077 100%  100%
BREERR
Luohe Weilong Delicious Industry Development ~ 2018-08-31 Henan, PRC, Investment holding, UsD44,060,000 100% 100%
Group Co., Ltd. (formerly known as “Luohe wholly- Chinese Mainland
Hehe Foods Technology Co., Ltd.") foreign-owned
enterprise
BAUIAXKREXEREEERAA (ARA 2018F8A310 BT RERR - PEAME 44,060,000% 7 100%  100%
PEAHARRRSEAREERA] ) NEEELE
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The Group'’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 are set out

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

35. i@ A= (&)
MR2023F12A31H » KEBEEHE R A5

below: (continued) W (88)
Place of
Establishment Equity interest held
Date of and type of Principal activities and Registered by the Company
Name of subsidiaries establishment  legal entity place of operation capital as at 31 December
KILBER TEEE AARM12A318
WEAR BB B3 A 5 EAEREL RIEERH AMER EERAER
2023 2022
203F 2002F
Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)
ARRMEERE (8)
Luohe Weilong Commerce Co., Ltd. 2014-07-11 Henan, PRC, Trading of food, RMB300,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Chinese Mainland
company
BAT I REEERAA 014F7TANA RETRE - AmR 5 HEAE  AR#300,000,0007 100%  100%
BREALH
Henan Weilong Foods E-commerce Co., Ltd. ~ 2017-07-12 Henan, PRC, Trading of food, RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Chinese Mainland
company
AEIREmEEERERER AT 201778128 HETE RmR% - PEAE  AK%30,000,0007T 100%  100%
BREMAR
Luohe Weilong Meiwei foods Technology 2019-01-22 Henan, PRC, Trading of food, RMB20,000,000 100% 100%
Development Co., Ltd. limited liability Chinese Mainland
company
B DR ERRBBREREREALA 2019F18228  HEARE - AmR5 - REAE  AR20,000,0007 100%  100%
BREFAF
Luohe Ping Ping Foods Co., Ltd. 2004-09-09 Henan, PRC, Manufacture and RMB120,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Chinese Mainland
AT T TRREREERT 200459A98  FETE RESENHE - AR120,000,0007 100%  100%
BREAAH HREIARE
DREGRESRIZRERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

35. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The Group'’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 are set out

35. i@ A= (&)
MR2023F12A31H » KEBEEHE R A5

below: (continued) wmr ()
Place of
Establishment Equity interest held
Date of and type of Principal activities and Registered by the Company
Name of subsidiaries establishment  legal entity place of operation capital as at 31 December
KILBER TEEE AAAR12A31H
WEARERE KA EAEREL RIEERH &R EERAER
2023 2022
2023F 20225
Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)
FARBERE (4)
Luohe Qinzui Foods Co., Ltd. 2010-06-24 Henan, PRC, Manufacture and RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Chinese Mainland
BARERMERAR 201067248 FEE AmBUERHE AR #30,000,0007T 100%  100%
BEREFAR HEIARE
Luohe Weilai Foods Technology Co., Ltd. 2013-11-11 Henan, PRC, Manufacture and RMB30,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Chinese Mainland
BAERRBMRERAT 2013F11ANE B RmBERHEE - AR#30,000,0007 100%  100%
BREAAHA HEIARE
Luohe Lewei Seasoning Processing Co., Ltd. 2017-07-31 Henan, PRC, Manufacture and RMB20,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Chinese Mainland
BATER AR MIERAR 201778318 FEWE RmBHERHE - AR20,000,0007T 100%  100%
BREFAR HEIARE
Luohe Lewei Agricultural Foods Processing Co.,  2017-07-31 Henan, PRC, Manufacture and RMB50,000,000 100% 100%
Ltd. limited liability sale of food,
company Chinese Mainland
BTERRENNIERAR 2017%78318  HETE - RESHENHE - AR 50,000,0007T 100%  100%
BREMEAT HEIARE
Luohe Weidao Foods Technology Co., Ltd. 2018-07-11 Henan, PRC, Manufacture and RMB250,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability sale of food,
company Chinese Mainland
FNHHRRREERAR 201878118 FEWE RmBHERHE - AR#250,000,0007 100%  100%
BREFAR HEIARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

35. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The Group'’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 are set out

35. i@ A= (&)
MR2023F12A31H » KEBEEHE R A5

below: (continued) W (88)
Place of
Establishment Equity interest held
Date of and type of Principal activities and Registered by the Company
Name of subsidiaries establishment  legal entity place of operation capital as at 31 December
KIBHR TEE AAFR12A318
WEAREB B3 A 8 EABRER REERH aMER FERAER
2023 2022
2023 20225
Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)
FRAMEEE ()
Zhumadian Weilai Foods Co., Ltd. 2017-07-20 Henan, PRC, limited  Manufacture and RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
liability company  sale of food,
Chinese Mainland
BEEERRRERAR 2017478208 HETE RmBUERHEE AR ¥10,000,0007T 100%  100%
BREALH HEIARE
Luohe Xinglin Foods Co., Ltd. 2019-12-25 Henan, PRC, Trading of food, RMB200,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Chinese Mainland
company
BABHEMERAH 2019%128258 HETE - RmR 5 AR#200,000,0007T 100%  100%
EREEAR HEIARE
Luohe Weilong Biotechnology Co., Ltd. 2020-06-12 Henan, PRC, Research and RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability development,
company Chinese Mainland
BT DR ANRIERAF 202066R128  HEFE - B - hEARE AR ¥1,000,0007 100%  100%
BREFAR
Shanghai Weilong Meiwei Biotechnology 2020-05-18 Shanghai, PRC, Research and RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. limited liability development,
company Chinese Mainland
TEIRERENRBERAA 2020655188 FELSE - Bra  mEARE AE#1,000,0007 100%  100%
BREFAA
Shanghai Weilong Meiwei International 2020-05-18 Shanghai, PRC, Trading of food, RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Commerce Co., Ltd. limited liability Chinese Mainland
company
LRI RFREEFEERREELT 2020%5A8188  HELSE RmX% - TEAE  AE#1,000,0007T 100%  100%
BREEAF
DREGRESRIZRERD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

35. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

The Group'’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 are set out

35. i@ A= (&)
MR2023F12A31H » KEBEEHE R A5

below: (continued) wmr ()
Place of
Establishment Equity interest held
Date of and type of Principal activities and Registered by the Company
Name of subsidiaries establishment  legal entity place of operation capital as at 31 December
RIBER TEEE AARMM2A31H
WEAREB B3 A 8 IN kLl RiZEHE aMER FERAER
2023 2022
023F 2022
Indirectly held by the Company (Cont'd)
FRAMEEE ()
Shanghai Weilong Information Technology 2021-01-22 Shanghai, International trading, UsD2,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. PRC, wholly- Chinese Mainland
foreign-owned
enterprise
LB RESRNBRAR 221518228 #HELS - IR 5 - MEAE 2,000,000% 7 100%  100%
WEBERE
Shanghai Weilong Digital Technology 2021-05-26 Shanghai, PRC, International trading, RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. limited liability Chinese Mainland
company
HEDRBFRERARAR 2021458268  HELE BRES pEAE  AREKS5000,0007T 100%  100%
BRELAR
Shanghai Weidao Trade Co., Ltd. 2021-12-20 Shanghai, PRC, International trading, RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability Chinese Mainland
company
LEEHESERREANT 201F128208 +ELS BRES  FEAR AR%1,000,0007 100% 100%
BREFAF
Luohe Honglong Trading Co., Ltd. 2023-06-09 Henan, PRC, limited Manufacture and RMB1,000,000 100% -
liability company ~ sale of food,
Chinese Mainland
BATALEEE AR AR 2023698 FETE RESUENHE - AK#1,000,0007 100% -
BREAAHF VNS
Guangzhou Jilong Food Co., Ltd. 2023-08-04 Guangzhou, PRC,  Manufacture and sale RMB1,000,000 100% -
limited liability of food, Chinese
company Mainland
BEMERRRERAR 2023F8R4R  FEREM RMBERHE - AR ¥#1,000,0007 100% -
BREFAF HEIARE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

35.

36.

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 35. AT
The English names of the companies registered in the PRC represent RAEFMATINEXEZBI AT EIREYH X
the best efforts made by the management of the Company to ZNFIPRXEBOALCEE  RRAHRSWETE
translate the Chinese names of these companies as they do not have AEHTE o
official English names.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in FRIINHEER AT EZEREFFRNEENTT
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the KRAEB A D BEFEZ AANBINHB AT ©
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. SEEZEDNBRMAR - S ESY| HE MM E AT
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the ZEEE o
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. AR TFMB MR KRR FZHEES
RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) AT REK
31 December
12H31H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARET R ARETFT
Assets EE
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB ARIRE 276,887 184,673
Total non-current assets FEREBEERE 276,887 184,673
Current assets RENEE
Trade, other receivables and B 5 N E b U sk I8
prepayments TEfIFRIR 165,746 162,559
Financial assets at fair value through LA QAR EBE=ZH
profit or loss FFAE BEE
TRIBE 122,820 262,291
Term deposits with initial term of  ¥FAHARR A=1E A LA LA
over three months THIFR 1,141,307 797,182
Cash and cash equivalents WERIREEEBY 35,498 970,640
Total current assets RBAERE 1,465,371 2,192,672
Total assets BEHAE 1,742,258 2,377,345
IREREREBRERDF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

(a) ADBIMBARRK(#)

36. X RFABBRA KRR FEED 2

(Cont’d)
31 December
12A31H
2023 2022
2023F 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MosE AR®T T ARETFTT
Liabilities a8f&
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payable E 5 R HMERFRIE 7,076 24,644
Total current liabilities MEEELREE 7,076 24,644
Total liabilities B &8 7,076 24,644
Net assets BEZE 1,735,182 2,352,701
Equity Em
Share capital N 155 155
Other reserves E AR (b) 2,301,115 2,995,772
Accumulated losses BxtEig (566,088) (643,226)
Equity attributable to owners of the ZNAEHEA AE(GHER
Company 1,735,182 2,352,701
Total equity RSB 1,735,182 2,352,701
Total equity and liabilities EzRkEEREE 1,742,258 2,377,345
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

36. X RFABBRA KRR FEED 2

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

(b) Reserve movements of the Company

(b) ARBEFEE

Share-based Shares held Currency
Share Capital payment forRSU translation
premium reserve reserve Scheme differences Total
DRtR  HESR
EiEn RAPEN
RAEE EXGRE AREE  ENREG ERER G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARMTRT AR¥TR ARETR AR®T:R
As at 1 January 2022 R2022F1 818 1,238,489 30,632 50,519 3) (43,049) 1,276,588
Issuance of ordinary shares BITHERNHEE
related to IPO BRNLER 907,691 = = = = 907,691
Underwriting commissions and 81§50 & R £ %17
other issuance costs =4 (31,331) = = = = (31,331)
Share-based payments related to £2 & X AR ERTRE
pre-IPO investments BRNARND AR
RARIR - - 628,811 - - 628,811
Share-based payments-value of - LARR/H B ELRE B 50—
employee services EEREEE = = 98,133 = = 98,133
Currency translation differences [& i Z%8 - - - - 115,880 115,880
As at 31 December 2022 #2022%12 8318 2,114,849 30,632 777,463 ®3) 72,831 2,995,772
As at 1 January 2023 RW2023F181A 2,114,849 30,632 777,463 (3) 72,831 2,995,772
Dividend declared and paid BEERLKTRRE (831,599) - - - - (831,599)
Share-based payments-value of - LARR/7 B ELRE 89 50—
employee services EERKEE - - 89,981 - - 89,981
Currency translation differences [ i =% - - - - 46,961 46,961
As at 31 December 2023 20235124318 1,283,250 30,632 867,444 (3) 119,792 2,301,115
DRERERERERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 20234E12 A31H

37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

37. EENENRER
() EM=

For the year ended

31 December 2023

BZ0BE1283101LEE

Executive directors: HiTEE:

Mr. Weiping Liu AETEE - 8,784 - - 79 67 8,930

Mr. Fuping Liu URTEE - 8,784 - - 8 67 8,929

Mr. Yinong Sun BRERE - 5,520 - 17,839 68 66 23493

Mr. Hongzhi Peng YEEEE - 2,861 - 12,200 68 66 15,195

Mr. Lin Chen BAEE - 2,522 - 10,784 68 66 13,440

Mr. Zhongsi Liu e - 2,689 - 13,605 68 67 16,429

- 31,160 - 54,428 429 399 86,416

Non-executive directors: FHTEE:

Ms. Lili Xu BRERL 239 - - - - - 239

Mr. Bihong Zhang RAEE 239 - - - - - 239

Ms. Dongmei Xing TR 239 - - - - - 239
"7 - - - - - "
ni 31,160 - 54,428 429 399 87,133
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz
31 December 2023 202312 A31H

37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd) 37. EENREAN R ER 2

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd) () EEM=E 2
Welfare,
Share-based ~ Contribution medical
For the year ended Discretionary payment  to pension and other
31 December 2022 Fees Salaries bonuses eXpenses plan eXpenses Total
]
E=2i) e R/ BE
HEANENANALEE e ¥ BEEL  MRRx HEMR RAMEX it

RMBOOD  RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMB'OOD  RMBOOD  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETL  ARBTL ARETR ARMTR ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR

Executive directors: HiTEE:
Mr. Weiping Liu AETEE - 8,784 - - 63 70 8917
Mr. Fuping Liu URTEE - 8,784 - - 63 63 8910
M. Yinong Sun EngLs - 3,959 - 11,823 13 61 15,886
Mr. Hongzhi Peng YRERE = 2,139 = 14,481 63 86 16,769
Mr. Lin Chen BAE - 1,935 - 13317 55 74 15,381
Mr. Zhongsi Liu mmiks = 2,100 = 16,749 62 73 18,984
- 21,701 - 56,370 349 421 84,847
Non-executive directors: FHIEE
M. Lili Xu Bt 239 = = = = = 239
Mr. Bihong Zhang KLTE 239 - - - - = 239
Ms. Dongmei Xing HiES s e 239 - - - - - 239
mni - - - - - mni
mni 27,701 - 56,370 349 4271 85,564

DR ERSRIZERERD A
2023 Eiﬁ 207



208

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & B &R R Mz

31 December 2023 2023512 A31H

37. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)
(b) Directors’ retirement and termination benefits
There were no retirement benefits paid to or receivable by any
director in respect of their other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits
There were no termination benefits paid to or receivable by any
director during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for
making directors’ services available
No payment was made to the directors for making available
the services of them as a director of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favor of directors
There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered
into between the Group and the directors and in favor of the
directors during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by
the board of directors on 21 March 2024.
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37.

38.

39.

EENENRER#)

(b) EEMEMRRBEBER
HE2023F12A318ILFE  TEBRARD
RIS EMB AR EHEERENE MRS
MEAE B AR EERRARKE
F(20224 : 4&) -

() E=EEREA
HE2023F12A31BILFE - WERT
fA] 28 3 2 A+ AT o] 3 35 E AR O BE B AR
(2022%F - &) o

(d) BESEEREMETFTE=Z NS
(]
HZE2023F12A831BILFE - BEARKS
EEARRESREREMEESELA
(20224 : 4E) -

I

(e) BRALESAZTRAZER - £8
MEHMRZ 2ER
HZE2023F12A831HILFE - AEBRE
EZRHMETYNEEASZANTME
M EERREAMI S (2022F « &) o

) ESERRS ZHIERFPHWEK
=
RERFNEF2023F12 A31 B IHEEH
ERERE - TN FEEA R AEFR—FA
AAREEREFEENEERAENR
SHIAERAEREBNEARS &%
HERAE(20224F « ) -

HEEE
720234 2022912 A310 - AREHEAE
REBALE -

AUy F I ES
EFED2024F3 821 B LA R TZEB SR
ig °
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